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ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARDR ECEIVED

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION MAR 12 2012

. ion Mus f ; ) HEALTH FACILITIES &
This Section must be completed for all projects SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
Facility/Project Identification
Facility Name: U.S. Renal Care Vilia Park Dialysis
Street Address: 200 E. North Avenue
City and Zip Code: Villa Park, 60181
County: DuPage County Health Service Area 7 Health Planning Area: 7
Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification

_[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].
Exact Legal Name: USRC Villa Park, LLC
Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System
Name of Chief Executive Qfficer: Stephen Pirri
CEQ Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Telephone Number: 214.736.2700
Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant
O Nen-profit Corporation O Pantnership
O For-profit Corporation 1 Governmental
[x] Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Parnnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

s APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
* APPLICATION FORM. - ..

Primary Contact
_[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Edward Clancy

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Ungaretti & Harrig, LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison Suite 3500, Chicago, illingis 60602

Telephone Number: 312.977.4487

E-mail Address: eclancy@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.4405

Additional Contact
Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Shawn Moon

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison Suite 3500, Chicagoe, llinois 60602

Telephone Number: 312.977.4342

E-mail Address: skmoon@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312,977.4405
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Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Alliance, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Name of Registered Agent. CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri
CEO Address: 2400 Dailas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Telgphone Number: 214.736.2700

rTXFLe of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

U Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship l Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATFACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. e i i Bt




Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: 1J.8. Rena! Care, Inc.

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plang, Texas 75093
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri

CEO Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75053

Telephone Number 214.736.2700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
[x] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
O Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL

. AFTER THE LAS
APPLICATION FORM, %% .. e -




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive alf correspondence subseguent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Thomas L. Weinberg

Title: Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Company Name:U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700
E-mail Address: Tweinberg@usrenalcare.com

Fax Number:244.736.2701

Site Ownership
[Provide this infermation for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner; Royal Plaza Management, LLC
Address of Site Owner: 26 East 7th Street, Hinsdale, lllinois 60521

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:
Froof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

allestlng to ownershlp, an option to lease, a letter of mtent to lease or a lease

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTI':'R THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. -

Operating identity/l.icensee
{Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: USRC Villa Park, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

! Non-profit Corparation | Partnership
O Far-profit Corporation O] Governmental
Limited Liability Company ] Scle Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownership.
—rTT o — — }gyww/ ; < <~
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE o
APPLICATION FORM. . i 1 :

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant} an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. . - .
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
Refer to application instnictions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illincisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
reqwrements of IIImo:s Executive Order #2005 5 (http:/fwww.hisrb.illinois. qov]

—_—

By .., ’<‘x“°"’> -

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. R e

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preser\ratlon Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT.G, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER A%\TER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM, k . — SR

?“\W?\

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
|Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20{b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only ]
X Substantive O Part 1120 Not Applicable

[] Category A Project
O Non-substantive [X] Category B Project

[ DHS or DVA Project
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

USRC Villa Park, LLC ("Applicant”) proposes to establish a thirteen {13) staticn in-center hemodialysis
facility at 200 E. North Avenue, Villa Park, llinois 60181 {the "Facility") focated in Health Service Area
("HSA'") 7. The Facility will utilize leased space to be built out by Applicant. The facility will provide both
in-center hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease ("ESRD").

This project is categorized as "substantive” under the lllinois Health Planning Act as it contemplates the
establishment of an in-center hemodialysis facility.

Page 4




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal,

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Seil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts

$991,800

$991.800

Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees

$42,000

$42,000

Consulting and Other Fees

$30,000

$30,000

Maovable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

$62,412

$98.601

$161.013

Bond Issuance Expense {project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction {project
related)

Fair Market Value of L eased Space or Equipment

$1,627,726

$1,627,726

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

$91,244

$91,244

Acguisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

$2,845,182

$98,601

$2,943,783

SOURCE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securities

$1,217.456

$98,6801

$1,3186,057

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bongd Issues {project related)

Morigages

Leases (fair market value)

$1,627,726

$1,627,726

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

$2,845,182

$98.601

52,843,783

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT -7, IN NUMERIC SEQUEN'i'IAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project []Yes @ No
Purchase Price:  $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

MW ves [ No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs {(including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ (73,606)

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project's architectural drawings:

[] None or not applicable W Preliminary

[] Schematics [ ] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): February 28, 2013

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to abligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[ ] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

Iil PrOJect obhg atlon WI|| oceur after @rmlt |ssuance

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE -
APPLICATION FORM E

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
N/A [] Cancer Registry
N/A [ ] APORS
N/A [] All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

N/A [ 1 Alf reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Cost Space Requirements

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Frovide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Inciude outside walt measurements pfus the department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

That Is:

Dept. / Area

Cost

Existing

Proposed

New
Const.

Modernized

As s

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Taotal Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

APPLICATION FORM.

I ==

ATTACHMENT-9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

-
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Inciude observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

LFACILITY NAME: CITY:

REPORTING PERICD DATES: From: to:

C
| Beds hanges Beds

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed

Medical/Surgical N J

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care J

Comprehensive Physical
Rehahbilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness JL

Neonatal Intensive Care jL i

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ({identify) JL

TOTALS: ] | |

Page 8
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or mere managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general pariners (or the scle general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Villa Park, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

ﬁ?’oé/a e Tlontfe

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

Thomas L. Weinberg David Eldridge

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Manager Manager

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subgcribed and swopn to before me Subscri and sworn tq before me
thlséaf day 0 % this 9@ day of 201

\.‘“\v.mmu,f,.lf

“\“““""H” \\\ TE WA}? (7
w ” ....‘ ? ,
s....ARr % é@{]{,&"‘wa} ,§§‘vs~ B,

’f
%,
"/
&

% £
3 % 3 E
Signature of Notary § é " Z Signature of Notang ;& 8 Z
= 3 T = = T =
— - * - - - . -
Seal = i = Seal E w i =
E «*{?:5 2 el S §

- .' » — - -
.’;’,’ “, Sarg n? § ’f,,,’ 0.'“9([:\??;?; §

’ faan®
*Insert EXACT legal nafég of My, 22 B

”fmm..mn\\\ LTI
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are;

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or

more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more

beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Alliance, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

A2l ),

SIGNATURE

Thomas L. Weinberg

SIGNATURE

James D. Shelion

PRINTED NAME

PRINTED NAME

Manager Manager

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization::

Subscriped and swarnito befare me SubWG sworn to before me
this ‘i"day of %ll this ay of K1

Signature of

F N
S "
Seal g 2?2 3
= 3 :
= 5 H
Z ;
-

- ., d> I‘
“nsert EXACE Jedal napag thedipplicant

N
T

)

vy,
\\\\“ fff’
%ajﬁomﬁ S SIEWAR ",

Signature of NQEERF.%. PU‘%'O'-._

O

{/

&

Seal

LTIV
o)
it

"
LI TYTY Ll

gy
A

=
.'53
7, !”

“, IO o
/7 -7 )
My

N
iﬂ’

‘7 .71- o
Ly
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
mere general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lilinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

97M

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
Thomas L. Weinberg James D. Shelton
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Senior Vice President Executive Vice President
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notan‘zation:
Subsecr and sworRto before me Sub d sworn to before me
this day of t\b\o 20\ this day of 20

\\\mll IIIIllh‘.f.\r»‘I ’,

oo Yoo N3, Shor. Poor

gy
\\\‘\_ STEWA 9"; %,

’f,

% SN,
Signaturé of Notary § ‘,- ~ % Signature of Notary § .‘:::9} . %
Seal s : - Seal g ¢
2y I Neis e
oy
*Insert EXACT legal name of t 3y SRS % S
\)
’mmuum\“‘ M
Page 9

13



ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to al! projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with ng project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
durng the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. M, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for pemit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall atiest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and cerify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update andfor clarify data.

v R v&‘%%&* B

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-“ IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL’ORDER AFTER THE LAST -

PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM {1-4) MUST BE |DENT|FIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.
O RIS

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problerms or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4, Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation,

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

8. Provide goals with guantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” witl be included |n the State Agency Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

Page 11
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a podion of the project's intended purposes; deveioping
alternative settings to meet alt or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparisen of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long
term  This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS

REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED,

3 The applicant shali provide empirical evidence, including guantified outcome data that
verifies improved guality of care, as avallable.

- ' ' L M m '\‘fg"f . ) §
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT»13 IN NUMEREC SEQUENTEAL ORDER "AFTER THE LAST igﬁé
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. %gc o \.\x\\W& 2:33 . . i B »w
» ”@” fw’{:w.. G i o Vrs

- Page 12
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ILLINDIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive, This must be a narrative.

2. if the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space 1s needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facilty's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard, A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, 1N NUMERIG SEQUENTIAL ORDER_AF'I:ER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. oL )

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that Involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT. HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
{TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE,
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

G. Criterion 1110.1430 - In-Center Hemodialysis

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modernize In-Center Hemodialysis
must submit the following information:
2, Indicate station capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of stations changed by
action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Stations Stations
[ In-Center Hemodialysis 1 3
3 READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.1430{b){1) - Planning Area Need - 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 X
{fermula calculation)
1110.1430(b){2} - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.1430(b}{3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110.1430(b){4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Expansion of Existing Category of Service
1110.1430(b}(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.1430(c)}1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.1430(c)}2) - Maldistribution X
1110.1430(c)}3} - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
$110.9430{d){1} - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.1430(d){2} - Docuementation X
1110.1430(G)3} - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.1430(e) - Staffing Availability X X
1110.1430(f) - Support Services X X X
1110.1430{(g) -  Minimum Number of Stations X
1110.1430(h) -  Continuity of Care X
1110.1430() - Assurances X X X

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-28, IN NUMERIC SESGENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. .

R o v e wmn v P

4, Projects for relocation of a facility from one location in a planning area to another in the
same planning area must address the requirements listed in subsection (a}(1) for the
"Establishment of Services or Facilities”, as well as the requirements in Section 1110.130 -
“Discontinuation” and subsection 1110.1430(i) - “Relocation of Facilities”.

Page 26
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor’s rating agencies, or A3 ¢r better from Moody's {the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
»  Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIl - 1120.120 - Availahility of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial rescurces shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable; Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$1 316.057 aj Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
1 + institutions, board resolulions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, inctuding the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds:; and

2) interesi to be earned on depredialion account funds or to be earned on any
assel from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated ptedges showing anlicipated
receipts and discounted vatue, estimaled lime table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

€) Gifis and Bequests — verificalion of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, ang
the estimated time table of receipts;

$1.627 726 d) Debt - a statement of the estimaled 1erms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable
Z s or permanent interest rates over the debt lime period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for
any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the reguired referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3} For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expeciation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rale and any conditions associated with the mertgage:, such as, but not
limited to, adjusiable interesi rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase oplions, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) £or any opticn to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

€) Govemmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of ihe governmental unit. If funds are to be made
avaitable from subsequenti fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental
unit attesting ta this intent;

fi Grants — a leiter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$2.943.783 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

- APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-39, )N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their reles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding {sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or perforrnance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS A'I'I'ACHMENT-dO,. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. . W : :

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system’s viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

§Prowde Data for P‘olects Classmed B . Category B
‘as: é« ~Helilina s gl PR
B : . ik {Projected)
 Enter Htstorlcal and!or Projected ngg

Years: e i

Current Ratio

. Not Applicable - Applicant qualifies for the
Net Margin Percentage financial viability waiver as all of the project's
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization |capital expenditures are completely funded

Projected Debt Service Coverage |ty roug h internal sources.
Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calcutation
and applicable line item amacunts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2 Variance
Applicants not In compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,

public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt abligations should the
applicant default

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. : RN R

- —— Page 51 —
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APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

n

2}

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A} A portion or att of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B} Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within & 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reascnable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that atiests to the following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, nc required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part} the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A | B c D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ." | Mod. Circ.” {AxC) {B x E} (G +H)
ESRD $150 6,612 $991,800
Contingency
TOTALS $150 6,612 $991,800

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

Page 52
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs {in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first ful fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and suppfies
for the service.

K. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capitat costs (in current doflars per equivalent
patient day) far the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMERNT 42, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Xl. Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project’s material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the communily, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicani to have such knowledge.

2 The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known 1o the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impacl the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasanably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also inctude all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years pricr to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculaled by hospilal applicants shall be in accordance wilh the reporting requirements for charity care reporiing in the
llingis Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall reporl charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients. Hospita! and non-
hospitat applicants shall pravide Medicaid informatian in a manner consistent with the information reported each year te the llinois
Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Qutpalients Served by Payor Scurce” and "tnpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source™ as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicanl believes is directly relevant to safely net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A tablo in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
(npatient
Cutpatient
Total
Charity {cost In dollars}
inpalient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid {# of patients) Yoar Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Page 53
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Medicaid {rovenug|

Inpatient

Qutpatient

Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-43, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIA
APPLICATION FORM, _ e

XIL. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If ihe applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility focated in llingis. If
charity care costs are reporied on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide decurmentiation as to the cost of charity
care; lhe ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under raview.

3 If the applicant is not an existing facility, i shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its secend year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table [n the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care {charges}
Cast of Charity Care

a&

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-44, (N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER 'THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the

attachments included as part of the project’s application for permit:

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant’/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good 24-97
Standing
2 | Site Ownership 28-44
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 45-47
identified with the % of ownership.
4 | Organizational Relationships (Crganizational Chart) Certificate of 48
Good Standing Etc.
5 | Flogd Plain Requirements 49-50
6 | Historic Preservation Act Reguirements 51-52
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization 53
8 | Obligation Document if required 54
9 | Cost Space Requirements 55
10 | Discentinuation N/A
11 | Background of the Applicant 56-66
12 | Purpose of the Project 67
13 | Alternatives to the Project 68-70
14 | Size of the Project 71
15 | Project Service Utilization 72
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space N/A
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space N/A
18 | Master Design Project N/A
19 | Mergers, Consclidations and Acquisitions N/A
Service Specific:
20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU N/A
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation N/A
22 | Acute Mental Hiness N/A
23 | Neonatal Intensive Care N/A
24 | Open Heart Surgery NIA
25 | Cardiac Catheterization N/A
26 | In-Center Hemodalysis 73-146
27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery N/A
28 | General Long Term Care N/A
29 | Specialized Long Term Care NIA
30 | Selected Organ Transplantation N/A
31 | Kidney Transplantation NfA
32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model N/A
33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center N/A
34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center N/A
35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center NiA
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital N/A
37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service N/A
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services N/A
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
39 | Availability of Funds 147-222
40 | Financial Waiver 223
41 | Financial Viability 224
42 | Economic Feasibility 225-231
43 | Safsty Net Impact Statement 232-233
44 | Charity Care information 234

Page 55

23




ATTACHMENT 1

TYPE OF OWNERSHIP — CERTIFICATE OF GOOD
STANDING
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File Number 0375770-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC VILLA PARK, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON
JANUARY 05, 2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH

i N dayof ~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012
Authentication : 102133 Q-DW’& m@

Authenticate at: hitp:tfwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0345096-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Ureeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC ALLIANCE, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 28, 2011,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A
FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH
day of FEBRUARY A.D. 2012

Authentication # 1205402166 _,W»e/

Authenticale al: htip:/iwww cyberdriveillinois.com

SECAETAAY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1 26




File Number 6788-501-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC,, INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THIS STATE ON MAY 17, 2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE
RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A
FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH

L\ dayof ~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012
Authentication : 002195 Q?er/ W

Authenticate at: hitp:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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SITE OWNERSHIP — PROOF OF OWNERSHIP
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ROYAL PLAZA COMMERCIAL LEASE

FEBRUARY 21, 2012
TERM OF LEASE: Ten (10) Years from date of Rent Commencement.

OPTION TO RENEW LEASE: Two (2) consecutive five (5) year renewals with 3% increase
in base rent for each year of renewal.

ESTIMATED POSSESSION DATE: Date of approval of Certificate of Need or earlier if
requested in writing by Lessee after execution of this Lease.

BEGINNING DATE: Date of Rent Commencement.

RENT COMMENCEMENT: One¢ hundred and twenty days after approval of Certificate of
Need on 6,612 square feet and approval of Lessee’s architectural drawings by Lessor including
loading dock and its access area. Lessee to begin payment of CAM commencing on date of
approval of Certificate of Need, or earlier possession.

MINIMUM MONTHLY BASE RENT: $19.00 per squarc foot as shown below, with three
percent (3%) annual increase on the anniversary of the rent commencement.

Year Rent per Square Foot Rent per Annum
l $19.00 $125,628.00
2 $19.57 $129,396.84
3 $20.16 $133,297.92
4 $20.76 $137,265.12
5 $21.38 $141,364.50
6 $22.03 $145,662.36
7 $22.69 $150,026.28
8 $23.37 $154,522.44
9 $24.07 $159,150.84
i0 $24.79 $163,911.48

MINIMUM MONTHLY ESTIMATED CAM: $2,093.51

PREPAID RENT:  $60,000.00

LOCATION OF PREMISES: 200 E. North Avenue, Villa Park, llinois, Unit 100
SQ/FT OF PREMISES: 6612 square foot

PRO RATA SHARE OF BUILDING FOR CAM PURPOSES: 17.2%

15168641 1
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LESSEE’S USE OF PREMISES: Medical Clinic
LESSEE’S TRADE NAME: US Renal Care
LESSOR:  Royal Plaza Management, LLC, an llinois Limited Liability Company

LESSEE: USRC Villa Park, LLC

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein stated, Lessor hereby leases to
Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor solely for the above purpose the premises
designated above (the “Premises”), together with the appurtenances thereto for the above Term.

LEASE COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

1. RENT. Lessee shall pay Lessor or Lessor’s agent as rent for the Premises the sum stated
on Page | hereof, without deduction or offset, monthly in advance on the monthly date so
specified by Lessor, until termination of the Lease, at Lessor’s address stated above or such other
address as Lessor may designate in writing. The base rent of $19.00 per square foot shall
increase annually on the anniversary of the Rent Commencement on the initial square footage by
three percent {(3%) over the rent for the prior year.

2. UTILITY AND OTHER CHARGES. Lessee will pay, in addition to the rent above
specified, all telephone, water, sewer, cable television, fire and burglar alarms, intcrnet, gas and
electric light and power bills taxed, levied or charged on the Premises, for and during the time
for which this lease is granted and in case said rents and bills for said services shall not be paid
when due, Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to pay the same, which amounts so
paid, together with any sums paid by Lessor, as herein specificd, are declared to be so much
additional rent and payable with the installment of rent next due thercafter. The Premises shall
be separately metered and Lessee shall commence payment of all such charges upon possession.

3 SUBLETTING; ASSIGNMENT. The Premises shall not be sublet in whole or in part to
any person other than Lessee, and Lessee shall not assign this Lease without, in each case, the
consent in writing of Lessor first had and obtained, or which consent by Landlord shall not be
unrcasonably withheld; nor permit to take place by any act or default of himself or any person
within his control any transfer by operation of law of Lessee’s interest created hereby; nor offer
for lease or sublease the Premises, nor any portion thereof, by placing notices or signs or notice
in any place nor by advertising the same in any newspaper or place or manner whatsoever
without, in each case the consent in writing of Lessor first had and obtained. Approval of a
sublcase by Landlord shall not relieve Lessee of any obligations under this Lease. If Lessee, or
any onc¢ or more of the Lessees, if there by more than one, shall make an assignment for the
benefit of creditors, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt, Lessor may terminate this Lease.

4. LESSEE NOT TO MISUSE. Lessee will not permit any unlawful or immoral practice,
with or without his knowledge or consent, to be committee or carried on in the Premises by

151686f1 2
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himself or by any other person. Lessee will not allow the Premises 10 be vused for any purpose
that will increase the rate of insurance thercon, nor for any purpose other than that hereinbefore
speeified. Lessee will not keep or use or permit to be kept or used in or on the Premises or any
place contiguous thereto any flammable fluids or explosives, without the written permission of
Lessor first had and obtained. Lessee will not load floors beyond the floor load rating prescribed
by applicable municipal ordinances. Lessec will not use or allow the use of the Premises for any
purpose whatsoever that will injure the reputation of the Premises or of the building of which
they are a part, with “Lessee’s Use of Premises™ above as the sole permitted use.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES UPON POSSESSION. Lessee has examined and knows
the condition of the premises and has received the same in good repair, and acknowledges that
no representations as to the condition and repair thereof, and no agreements or promises to
decorate, alter, repair or improve the Premises, have been made by Lessor or his agent prior to or
at the execution of this Lease that are not herein expressed. Lessee agrees to accept possession in
“as is” condition.

After possession, Lessee shall complete all necessary tenant improvements at Lessee’s
sole cost. All such improvements shall be at Lessee’s sole expense and shall be installed only in
compliance with ordinances and permits approved by the Village of Villa Park.

Lessor shall construct a demising wall in accordance with the plan attached hereto as
Exhibit X at Lessor’s expensc.

Lessee agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend Lessor from any mechanic lien
claim arising out of the construction of the tenant improvements by Lessee. Lessee shall provide
Lessor with a contractor’s sworn statement and final lien waivers upon completion of the tenant
improvements. No construction management or supervisory fee shall be due to Lessor for the
tenant improvements.

6. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. Lessee shall keep the Premises and appurtenances
thereto in a clean, sightly and healthy condition, and in good repair, all according to the statutes
and ordinances in such cases made and provided, and the directions of public officers thereunto
duly authorized, all at his own expense, and shall yield the same back to Lessor upon the
termination of this Lease, whether such termination shall occur by expiration of the term, or in
any other manner whatsoever, in the same condition of cleanliness, repair and sightliness as at
the date of the execution hercof, loss by fire and reasonable wear and tcar excepted. Lessee shall
make all necessary repairs and renewals upon Premises and replace broken globes, glass and
fixtures with material of the same size and quality as that broken and shall insure all glass in
windows and doors of the Premises at his own expense. If, however, the premises shall not thus
be kept in good repair and in a clean, sightly and healthy condition by Lessee as aforesaid,
Lessor may enter the same, himself or by his agents, servants or employees, without such
entering, causing or constituting a termination of this Lease or an interference with the
possession of the Premises by Lessee, and Lessor may replace the same in the same condition of
repair, sightliness, healthiness and cleanliness as existed at the date of execution hereof, and
Lessce agrees to pay Lessor, in addition 1o the rent hereby reserved, the expenses of Lessor in
thus replacing the Premises in that condition. Lessee shall not cause or permit any waste, misuse
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or neglect of the water, gas or electric fixtures. Lessor shall maintain and repair the structure,
including the slab, floor, exterior walls and the roof. Lessee shall maintain and repair the HVAC

System.

7. ACCESS TO PREMISES. With prior verbal notice to the Lessee from Lessor, Lessee
shall allow Lessor or any person authorized by Lessor free access to the Premises for the purpose
of examination or exhibiting the same, or to make any repairs or alterations thereof which Lessor
may see fit 10 make, and Lessee will allow Lessor to have placed upon the Premises at all times
notices of “For Sale™ and “For Rent”, and Lessee will not interfere with the same.

8. NON-LIABILITY OF LESSOR. Except as provided by Illinois statute and Hlinois Law,
L.essor shall not be liable to Lessee for any damages or injury to him or his property occasioned
by the failure of Lessor to keep the Premises in repair, and shall not be liable for any injury done
or occasioned by wind or by or from any defect of plumbing, electric wiring or of insulation
thereof, gas pipes, water pipes or steam pipes, or from broken stairs, porches, railings or walks,
or from the backing upon of any sewer pipe or down-spout or from the bursting, leaking or
running of any tank, tub, washstand, water closer or waste pipe, drain or any other pipe or tank
in, upen or about the Premises or the building of which they are a part nor the escape of steam or
hot water {rom any radiator, nor for any damage or injury occasioned by water, snow or ice
being upon or coming through the roof, skylight, trap-doors, stairs, walks to any other place upon
or near Premises, or otherwise, nor for any damage or injury done or occasioned by the falling of
any fixture, plaster or stucco, nor for any damage or injury arising from any act, omission or
negligence of co-tenants or of other persons, occupants of the same building or of adjoining or
contiguous buildings or of owners of adjacent or contiguous property, unless caused by the act,
inaction, omission, or negligence of the Landlord.

9. RESTRICTIONS (SIGNS, ALTERATION, FIXTURES). Lessee shall not attach, affix
or exhibit or permit to be attached, affixed or exhibited, cxcept by Lessor or his agent, any
articles of permanent character or any sign, attached or detached, with any writing or printing
thereon, to any window, floor, ceiling, door or wall in any place in or about the Premises, or
upon any of the appurtenances thereto, without in cach case the written consent of Lessor first
had and obtained; and shall not commit or suffer any waste in or about said premises; and shall
make no changes or alteration in the Premises by the erection of partitions or the papering of
walls, or otherwise, without the consent in writing of Lessor; and in case Lessee shall affix
additional locks or bolts on doors or windows, or shal} place in the Premises lighting fixtures or
any fixtures of any kind, without the consent of Lessor first had and obtained, such locks, bolts
and fixtures shall remain for the benefit of Lessor, and without expense of removal or
maintenance to Lessor. Lessor shall have the privilege of retaining the same if he desires. If
Lessor does not desire to retain the same, Lessor may remove and store the same, and Lessee
agrees to pay the expensc of removal and storage thereof. The provisions of this Paragraph shall
not however, apply to Lessee’s trade fixtures, equipment and movable furniture. Lessee may
install a sign panel upon the existing pylfon, and install channel lettering on building, all upon
written approval of Lessor. All such signs shall be at Lessee’s sole expense and shall be installed
only in compliance with ordinances and permits approved by the Viltage of Villa Park.

10.  FIRE_AND CASUALTY. In case the Premises shall be rendered untenantable by fire,
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explosion or other casualty, Lessor may, at his option, terminate this Lease or repair the Premises
within sixty days. Any and all financial obligations of Lessee are abated pending return of the
premises to the same condition prior 1o said fire. If Lesser does not repair the Premises within
said time, or the building containing the Premises shall have been wholly destroyed, the term
hercby created shall cease and terminate.

LA
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11. TERMINATION: HOLDING OVER. At the termination of the term of this Lease, by
lapse of time or otherwise, Lessee will yield up immediate possession of the Premises to Lessor,
in good condition and repair, loss by firc and ordinary wear excepted, and will rcturn keys
therefore to Lessor at the place of payment of rent. If Lessee retains possession of the Premises
or any part thereof after the termination of the term by lapse of time or otherwise, then Lessor
may at its option within thirty days after termination of the term serve written notice upon Lessee
that such hold over constitutes the creation of 2 month to month tenancy, upon the terms of this
Lease except at 150% the monthly rental for the last month of this Lease. Lessee shall also pay to
Lessor all damages sustained by Lessor because of retention of possession by Lessee. The
provisions of this paragraph shail not constitute a waiver by Lessor of any right of re-entry as
hereinafier sct forth; nor shall receipt of any rent or any other act in apparent affirmance of
tenancy operate as a waiver of the right to terminate this Lease for a breach of any of the
covenants herein,

12.  LESSOR’S REMEDIES. If Lessce shall vacate or abandon the Premises or permit the
same to remain vacant or unoccupied for a period of twenty (20) days, or in case of the non-
payment of the reni reserved hereby, or any part thereof, or of the breach of any covenant in this
Lease contained, Lessee’s right to the possession of the Premises thereupon shall temminate with
or (to the extent permitted by law) without any notice or demand whatsoever, and the mere
retention of posscssion thereafter by Lessee shall constitute a forcible detainer of the Premises;
and if the Lessor so elects, but not otherwise, and with or without notice of such election or any
notice or demand whatsoever, this lease shall thereupon terminate, and upon the termination of
Lessee’s right of possession, as aforesaid, whether this Lease be terminated or not, Lessee agrees
{0 surrender possession of the Premises immediately without the receipt of any demand for rent,
notice to quit or demand for possession of the Premises whatsoever, and hereby grants to Lessor
full and free license to enter into and upon the Premises or any part thereof, to lake possession
thercof with or (to the extent permitted by law) without process of law, and to expel and to
remove Lessee or any other person who may be occupying the Premises or any part thereof, and
Lessor may use such force in and about expelling and removing Lessec and other persons as may
be reasonably necessary, and Lessor may re-possess himself of the Premises as of his former
gstate, but such entry of the Premises shall not constitute a trespass of forcible entry or detainer,
nor shall it cause a forfeiture of rents due by virtue thereof, nor a waiver of any covenant,
agreement or promise in this Lease contained, to be performed by Lessec. Lessee hereby waives
all notice of any election made by Lessor hercunder, demand for rent, notice to quit, demand for
possession, and any and all notices and demand whatsocver, of any and every naturc, which may
or shall be required by any statute of this State relating to forcible entry and detainer, or to
landlord and tenant, or any other statute, or by the common law, during the term of this Lease or
any cxtension thereof. The acceptance of rent, whether in a single instance or repeatedly, after it
falls due, or after knowledge of any breach hereof by Lessee, or the giving or making of any
notice or demand, whether according to any statutory provision or not, or any act or series of acts
except an express written waiver, shall not be construed as a waiver of Lessor’s right to act
without notice or demand or any other right hereby given Lessor, or as an election nol to proceed
under the provision of the Lease. Any and all waivers of Lessee granting any rights to the
Landlord shall always be superceded by Illinois statute and law. Lessor has no rights greater
than as may be afforded to Lessor pursuant 10 statute.
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13, RIGHT TO RELET. If Lessce’s right to the possession of the Premises shall be
terminaled in any way, the Premises or any part thereof, may, but need not (except as provided
by Hlinois statute and Illinois law), be relet by Lessor, for the account and benefit of Lessee, for
such rent and upon such terms and to such person or persons and for such period or periods as
may scem fit to the Lessor, but Lessor shall not be required to accept or receive any tenant
offered by Lessee, not to do any act whatsoever or exercise any care or diligence whatsoever, in
or about the procuring of any tenant by Lessor in the reletting thereof. If a sufficient sum shall
not be received from such reletting to satisfy the rent hereby reserved, after paying the
reasonable expenses of reletting and collection, including commissions to agents, and including
the expenses of redecorating, Lessee agrees to pay and satisfy all deficiency; but the acceptance
of a tenant by Lessor, in place of Lessee, shall not operate as a cancellation hereof, nor to release
Lessee from the performance of any covenant, promise or agreement herein confained, and
performance by any substituted tenant by the payment of rent, or otherwise, shall constitute only
satisfaction pro tanto of the obligations of Lessee arising hereunder. At all times hercin, there
shall be a duty to mitigate.

14. COSTS AND FEES. Lessce shall pay upon demand all Lessor’s costs, charges and
expenses, including fees of attorneys, agents and others retained by Lessor, necessary and
incidental to incurred in enforcing any of the obligations of Lessee under this Lease or in any
litigation, negotiation or transaction in which Lessor shall, without Lessor’s fault, become
invelved through or on account of this LLease. Lessor shall pay upon demand all Lessce’s costs,
charges and expenses, including fees of attorneys, agents and others retained by Lessec, incurred
in enforcing any of the obligations of Lessor under this Lease or in any litigation, negotiation or
transaction in which Lessee shall, without Lessee’s fault, become involved through or on account
of this Lease duc to the action or inaction of Lessor. In the case of any disputc or litigation
between Lessor and Lessee, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to collect all costs, charges and
expenses from the non-prevailing Party incurred in enforcing this Lease.

15. SUBORDINATION. "Lessee’s rights under this Lease are all expressly subordinate,
junior and inferior to the lien of any mortgage or deed of trust currently or in the future in effect
against real estate and/or buildings of which the Premises are a part. The foregoing
subordination shall be self-operative and no additional documentation shall be needed to
effectuate the same. In the event of a foreclosure of the property of which the Premiscs are a
part or other acquisition of such property in lieu of such foreclosure, Lessee shall, upon request
of such foreclosing or acquiring party (the "New Qwner™), nonetheless attorn to and respect such
New Owner as the (hen owner of the property and thereby entitled to all rights of Lessor
pursnant 1o this Lease, including, without limitation, the right to all rental payments.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is further expressly agreed and understood that any such New
Owner shall not assume or be deemed to assume any liabilities of Lessor pursuant o this Lease
~or otherwise solely by virtue of such New Owner's acceptance of title to all or a portion of the
property, acceptance of rental or otherwise."

16.  LESSOR’S LIEN. Except for vendor financing, Lessor shall have a first lien upon the
intercst of Lessee, under this Lease, to secure the payments of all moneys due under this Lease,
which lien may be foreclosed in equity at any time when money is overdue under this Lease; and
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the Lessor shall be entitled to name a receiver of said leasehold interest, to be appointed in any
such foreclosure proceeding, who shall take possession of said premises and who may relet the
same under the orders of the court appointing him; however, any such lien right shall be
subordinate to any Vendor or Lender bascd financing obtained by the Lessce.

17. REMOVAL OF OTHER LIENS. In event any lien upon Lessor’s title results from any
act or neglect of Lessee, Lessee will indemnify, hold harmless and defend Lessor, and provide
adequate security for any mechanic’s liens resulting from Lessee’s renovation and improvement
of the Premises. If Lessee fails to remove said lien or provide adequate sccurity as aforesaid
within ten days after Lessor’s written notice to do so, Lessor may remove the lien by paying the
full amount thereof or otherwise and without any investigation or contest of the validity thereof,
and Lessce shall pay Lessor upon request the amount paid out by Lessor in such behalf,
including Lessor’s cost, expenses and counsel fees.

18. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE. The obligation of Lessee to pay the rent reserved
hereby during the balance of the term hereof, or during any extension hereof, shall not be
deemed to be waived, released or terminated, nor shall the right and power to confess judgment
be deemed to be waived or terminated by the service of any five-day notice other than notice to
collect, demand for possession, or notice that the tenant hereby created will be terminated on the
date therein named, the institution of any action or forcible detainer or ejectment or any
judgment for possession that may rendered in such action, or any other act or acts resulting in the
termination of Lessee’s right to possession of the Premises. The Lessor may collect and receive
any rent due from Lessee, and payment or receipt thereof shall not waive or affect any such
notice, demand, suit or judgment, or in any manner whatsoever waive, affect, change, modify or
alter any rights or remedies which Lessor may have by virtue hereof.

19.  NOTICES. Unless otherwise stated, notices may be served on cither party, at the
respective addresses, given at the beginning of this Lease, cither (a) by delivering or causing {o
be delivered a written copy thereof, or (b) by United States certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, addressed to Lessor or Lessee at said respective addresses in which
event the notice shall be deemed to have been served at the time the copy is mailed.

20.  MISCELLANEQUS. (A) Provisions typed on this Lease and all riders attached to this
Leasc and signed by Lessor and Lessee are hereby made a part of this lease. (b) Lessee shall
keep and observe such rcasonable rules and rcgulations now or hereafter required by Lessor,
which may be necessary for the proper and orderly care of the building of which the Premises are
a part. (c} All covenants, promises, representations and agreements herein contained shall be
binding upon, apply to and inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee and their respective heirs,
legal represeniatives, successors and assigns. (d) The rights and remedies hereby created are
cumulative and the usc of one remedy shall not be taken to exclude or waive the right to the use
of another. (e) The words “Lessor” and “Lessee” wherever used in this Lcase shall be construcd
to mean Lessors or Lessees in all cases where there is more than one Lessor or Lessee. and to
apply to individuals, malc or female, or to firms or corporations, as the same may be described as
Lessor or Lessee herein, and the necessary grammatical changes shall be assumed in each case as
though fully expressed. 1If there is more than one Lessee, the warrant of attorney in paragraph 135
is given jointly and severally and shall authorize the entry of, appearance of, and waiver of
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issuance of process and trial by jury by, and confession of judgment against any one or more of
such Lessees, and shall authorize the performance of cvery other act in the name of and on behalf
of any one or more such Lessees.

2. SEVERABILITY. If any clause, phrase, provision or portion of this Lease or the
application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be invalid, or unenforceablc under
applicable law, such cvent shall not affect, impair or render invalid or unenforceable the
remainder of this lease nor any other clause, phrase, provision or portion hereof, nor shall it
affect the application of any clause, phrase, provision or portion hereof to other persons or
circumstances.

22.  SET-OFFS. Lessec waives the right to make repairs at Lessor’s expense under any law,
statute or ordinance now or hereinafter in effect. Further, Lessee shall not deduct from the rent
or CAM due to Lessor any amounts claimed by Lessee for any alleged default by Lessor under
this Lease.

23, COMMON AREA MAINTENANCE (CAM). Lessee shall pay Lessor or Lessor’s agent
the pro-rata share of CAM charges for the Premiscs, being the sum stated on Page 1 hercof,
without deduction or offset, monthly in advance, until termination of the Lease, at Lessor’s
address stated above or such other address as Lessor may designate in writing. The monthly
payment of CAM is intended to compensate the Lessor for real estate taxes, all common arca
repairs and maintenance, advertising expenses related to the building, comprehensive general
liability insurance, snowplowing, landscape maintenance, water and sewer bills, management
fees, and other costs and expenses incurred by Lessor. The CAM, payable in equal monthly
installments, will also be subject to adjustment at any time upon notice from Lessor to Lessee
above the prior calendar ycar’s CAM actual expenses. CAM will be reconciled annually on a
calendar year basis, and said reconciliation will be completed by April of each calendar year. In
the event that the Lessee has paid in excess of its pro-rata share, then Lessor shall credit Lessee
same in the following year or rcfund same to Lessee. If Lessee has underpaid its pro-rata share,
Lessee shall pay the amount necessary to pay its full pro-rata share by May 15" of each year.

24. PREPAID RENT. Upon execution of the Lease, Lessee will deposit $60,000 with Lessor
that will be applied towards monthly rent, beginning in month six (6) of the lease term until the
Prepaid Rent is fully exhausted.

25.  CERTIFICATE OF NEED CONTINGENCY. The Lessee and Lessor acknowledge that
Lessee will require a Certificate of Need in order to operate the proposed Medical Clinic on the
Premises. Lessee shall be solely responsible to obtain said Certificate at its sole expense. Upon
approval of such Certificate, Lessce shall given wrilten notice to Lessor by certified mail, return
receipt requested, within threc (3) business days. In the event that Lessee does not give such
notice of approval of the Certificate of Need within one hundred fifty (150) days alter the
execution of this Lease, this Lcase shall terminate and Lessor shall retain the Earnest Money as
liquidated damages.

26. CHANGES TO TERM OF LEASE. Commencing with the fifth anniversary of the Rent
Commencement on the initial square footage, and continuing only for a period of 150 days
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thereafter, Lessee may terminate the initial ten (10) year term of this Lease by giving Lessee 120
days written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the termination of this Lease.
Prior to the date for the term to end, as specified in said notice, Lessee shall pay to Lessor a sum
specified by Lessor to be the unamortized (over the initial 10 year term) costs of Lessor incurred
for this Lease, including, but not limited to, broker commissions, cost of demising wall and other
construction, if any, by Lessor, attorney fecs, rent abatement for period to obtain Certificate of
Need, 120 day period prior to rent commencement. and other expenses, plus interest thereon at
gight percent (8%) per annum from the date of this Lease to the date of payment by Lessee.

Not less than 180 days prior to the end of the initial ten year terim of this Lease, Lessee
may give Lessor writlen notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, of Lesscc’s
commitment to extend the tcrm of this Leasc by either five (5) or ten (10} additional years. If
Lessee has extended this Lease for five (5) additional years, Lessee may give Lessor written
notice of Lessee’s written commitment to extend the term of this Lease for five (5) additional
years, such written notice to be given not less than 180 days prior to the end of the extended five
(5) year term of this Lease. On the first day of each year of any extension of term of this Lease,
the base rent shall increase by three percent (3%) over the rent for the prior year.

27. PREMISES. Lessor shall not require Lessee to relocate within the property. Lessec shall
have a right of first refusal on any adjacent space in the building in which the Premisecs is
located. Lessor shall give Lessee written notice of any offer to rent adjacent space in the
building, including the amount of space and the rent offercd. Lessee shall have 15 business days
from the date of such wrilten notice to cxercise its right to lease the additional space. If Lessee
exercises its right to lease additional space, the additional space shall be leased upon the terms of
this l.ease with rent at the higher base rent of this Lease, as increased annually, or the rent
offered by the prospective tenant as set forth in the Lessor’s notice to Lessee.

28.  RIDER. This Lease is subject to the Building Rules set forth in the Rider attached to and
madc a part of this Lease.

WITNESS the hands and seals of the parties hereto, as of the Date of Lcase stated above.
LESSOR: LESSEE:

ROYAL PLAZA MANAGEMENT, LLC, AN
ILLINOIS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

By: By:
Irs: ITs:
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State of lllinois }
} ss.

County of }

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that , personally known to me to be the
of ROYAL PLAZA MANAGEMENT, LLC and personally known
to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me
this day in person and acknowledged that as such , hefshe signed and
defivered the said instrument, pursuant to authority given by the Members of said limited liability
company, as his/her frec and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said limited
liability company, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and official seal, this day of , 2012,

Noftary Public
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State of )

) ss.

County of )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that ., personally known to me to be the
of and

personally known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument,
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that as such :
he/she signed and delivered the said instrument, pursuant to authority given by the

of said . as his/her free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act
and deed of said , for the uses and purposes therein set forth.
Given under my hand and official seal, this day of , 2012,

Notary Public
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COMMERCIAL LEASE RIDER

BUILDING RULES:

1. Usage: The premises may be used and occupied only for the purposes set forth in
the Lease, and for no other purposes without Lessor’s consent. Lessee shall comply with all laws
and ordinances affecting the premises and the cleanliness, safety, and occupation and use of
same. '

2. Condition. Lcssee shall keep the premises, always adjacent thereto, and any
loading platforms and service arcas utilized by Lessee free from rubbish and dirt at all times and
shall store all trash and garbage within the premises, and shall use the area designated by Lessor
for outside trash storage and pick up.

3. The Rent: The rent will always be paid on the first day of each month. Any rent
that is ten (10) or more days delinquent will result in a $100.00 service charge and shall accrue
interest at cighteen (18%) per annum. This will be strictly enforced.

4. Parking: The parking lot is to be considered shared parking for the entire
building, except, Lessee shall have 5 marked reserved handicapped spaces, 10 marked reserved
visitor spaces located near west entrance of Premises and 20 marked spaces in the building
parking area. All marked spaces, and the location thereof, are under the control of Lessor, and
are to marked by Lessee only upon written approval of Lessor.

5. Damages: The Lessee will be responsible to repair any and all damage that
occurs to their unit or, to the extent caused by Lessee, to the building around their unit that has
occurred. If repairs are not made, the Lessor may, subject to ten (10) days written notice and
opportunity to cure, make the repair and bill the Lessee, and or take the funds from the security
deposit.

6. Antennas: There will be no external wiring of any antenna, structure or anything
of the sort to the building without the prior written approval of Lessor.

7. Remodeling: After complction of Lessee’s initial build-out per plans and
specifications approved by Lessor, no further remodeling, wiring or alteration of the build out
Lessee space of the building will take place without the wrilten consent of the Lessor to do so.

8. Liability Insurance: Lessec agrees, at its expense, from and after possession of
the Premises, (0 maintain during the lease term, comprehensive liability insurance {(including
property damage) written by an insurance company licensed to do business in the state of
Hlinois, insuring Lessee, Lessor and the partners of Lessor (and other pcrsons, firms or
corporations designated by Lessor} against liability for injury to persons and or property and
death of any persons in or about the premises in the minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 per
occurrence/$2,000,000.00 aggregate/$1,000,000.00 product liability. Lessee shall keep and
maintain plate glass insurance coverage.
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9. Property Insurance: Lessce agrees at all times during the lease term to maintain
on all its fixtures, inventory and cquipment on the premises, fire and extended coverage
insurance in the minimum Jimits of one hundred percent of their insurable value. The proceeds
of which will be used for repair and replacement of inventory and equipment.

10.  Mechanic’s Lien: Lessce agrees to pay when due, all sums of money that may
become due for or purporting to be due for any labor, services, materials, supplics, or equipment
alleged to have been furnished or to be furnished for Lessce which may be secured by any
mechanics or material lien against the property. Lessee will indemnify, hold harmless and defend
Lessor, and provide adequate security for any mechanic’s liens resulting from Lessee’s
renovation and improvement of the Premises.

'1.  Signage: To be installed per the Landlord’s signage criteria. Lessce shall pay all
signage expense.

12.  Maintenance: Lessec is responsible to obtain a dumpster for the rcar of the
Premises, and provide for the garbage removal from dumpster. The Lessee will be responsible
for the care and maintenance of Lessee’s unit, i.e., cleaning, light bulbs, etc.

13.  Deliveries: Deliverics may be made only to the west entrances of Premises,
except that all deliveries by a tractor-trailer shall be made to the loading dock in the rear of the
Premises.

14.  Awning: Lessce at it solc expenses may install an awning on the West side of the
Premises for patient drop off and pick up.

15.  Condition of Premises: Upon termination of the Lease, Lessee shall surrender
the premises, broom clean and in good condition, together with all alterations and improvements
to the Premises, except movable furniturc and Lessee’s trade fixtures.

16.  Brokers: Lessor will pay commissions to brokers under separate agrecment, but
no fee shall be duc until required under such agreements and after approval of the Certificate of
Need.

17.  Additional Rules. Lessor shall have the right to promulgate additional rules for
the Premises from time to time.

18.  Guarantee: The guarantce attached hercto by
shall be executed by guarantor and shall be deemed a valid and binding obligation of guarantor.

LESSOR: LESSEE:

ROYAL PLAZA MANAGEMENT, LLC, AN
ILLINOIS LIMITEI LIABILITY COMPANY
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By: By:

Its: ITS:
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PERSONAL GUARANTEE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby unconditionally guarantees the full
performance and observance of all the covenants, conditions and agreements provided to be
performed and observed by Lessee in and by that certain Lease, dated ,
by and between Royal Plaza Management, LL.C, an Illinois limited liability company, as Lessor,
and , a(n) \
as Lessee, without requiring any notice of nonpayment, nonperformance, or nonobservance, or
proof, or notice, or demand, whercby to charge the undersigned therefore, alt of which the
undersigned hereby expressly waives and expressly agrees that the validity of this agreement and
the obligations of the guarantor hereunder shall in no wise be terminated, affected, or impaired
by reason of the assertion by Lessor against Lessee of any of the rights or remedies reserved to
Lessor, pursuant to the provisions of the Lease, or by reason of any assignment or subletting
under the Lease. The undersigned further covenants and agrees that this guaranty shall remain
and continue in full force and effect as to any renewal, modification or extension of the lease.

The undersigned hereby covenants and agrees that in any action or proceeding brought by
either the Lessor or the undersigned against the other on any matters whatsoever arising out of,
under, or by virtue of the terms of said Lease or of this Guarantee, the undersigned shall and does
hereby waive trial by jury,

By:

{ts:

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me
this day of , 2012,

Notary Public
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ATTACHMENT 3

OPERATING IDENTITY/LICENSEE CERTIFICATE OF
GOOD STANDING
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File Number 0375770-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC VILLA PARK, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON
JANUARY 05, 2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH
dayof ~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012

Authentication #: 1205402128

Authenticate at: hitp/Awww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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ATTACHMENT 3

PERSONS WITH 5% OR MORE OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN

OPERATING ENTITY
Member Direct/Indirect Ownership Ownership Percentage
Mohammed Ahmed Indirect 14.5%
Michael 1.. Cohan Direct 10%
Martin K. Kittaka Direct 10%
Anis Rauf Indirect 14.5%
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ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS —
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

F

USRC Alliance, LLC

k 4

USRC Villa Park, LLC

r

U.S. Renal Care Villa
Park Dialysis
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ATTACHMENT 5

FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS
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ATTACHMENT 6

TILLINOIS HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY LETTER
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Illinois Historic

=== Preservation Agency _
. FAX (217) 782-B161

1 Old State Capitol Plaza + Springfield, #linois 62701-1512 +« www.illinois-history.gov

)

DuPage County

Villa Park
CON - Rehabilitatlon to Establish a Dialysis Facility
-200 E. North Ave.
IHPA Log #007020112

February 16, 2012

Shawn Moon

Ungaretti and Harris

Three First National Plaza
70 W. Madison - Suite 3500
Chicago, IL 60602-4224

Dear Mr. Moon:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historiec, architectural or
.archaeoleogical sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery durlng construction, nor is it a clearance for
purpoges of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remaing Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincexely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A leletypewriter for the speechihearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. It is ol a voice or fax line.
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ATTACHMENT 7

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS

ITEMIZATION OF COSTS NOT OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED IN THE
PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS TABLE

Cost Line Item Amount
Architect Fees $42 000
Computers & Wiring $32.867
| Dialysis Chairs / Scales $13,000
Fair Market Value of Dialysis Machine Lease $187,500
Leasehold Improvement $991,800
Consulting and Other Fecs $30,000
Fair Market Value of Leased Space $1,440,225
Medical / Biomed Equipment 516,546
Misc $11.244
Office Furniture / Equipment $98.601
Water Treatment $80.000
2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 8

OBLIGATION

Obligation will occur after permit issuance

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 9

COST SPACE REQUIREMENTS
Gross Square | Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square
Feet Feet That Is:
- New . Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost  |Existing[Proposed Const. odernized)] Asls Space
REVIEWABLE
In-Center
2

Hemodialysis $2,943,783 0 6,612 6,612
Total Clinical $2,943,783 0 6,612 6,612
NON
REVIEWABLE
Total Non-
clinical
TOTAL $2,943,783 0 6,612 6,612
2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Please find the attached list of facilities considered "owned or operated” by the Applicant and
certification from the Applicant.

2114828-2

ATTACHMENT 11 56




DCA of Adel, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Adel Dialysis

203 Robinson St

Adel GA 31620

(220) 896-4529

EIN: 56-2335380

License No. ESRD001228

Medicare No, 112733

DCA of Ashland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Ashland Dialysis

i 13 N Washington St

Ashland VA 23005

(804) 752-3444

EIN: 27-0094841

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492622

DCA of Barnwell, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Barnwell Dialysis

10708 Marlboro Ave

Barnwell SC 29812

(803) 541-7225

EIN: 20-2131118

License No. ERD-0179

Medicare No. 422615

DCA of Cathoun, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Calhoun Dialysis

105 Professional Pl

Calhoun GA 30701

(706) 624-4497

EIN: 20-4119620

License No. ESRD0O1266

Medicare No. 112770

DCA of Camp Hill, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Camf Hill Dialysis

158 S 32™ St Suite 19

Camp Hill PA 17011

(717) 731-0506

EIN: 26-1554083

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392750

DCA of Carlisle, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Carlisle Dialysis

101 Noble Blvd Suite 103

Carlisle PA 17013

(717) 258-3099

EIN: 23-2869880

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392627

DCA of Central Valdosta, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Central Valdosta Dialysis

506 N, Patterson St

Valdosta GA 31601

(229) 219-0099

EIN: 58-2617394

License No. ESRD001193

Medicare No. 112699

DCA of Chambersburg, Inc. d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Chambersburg Dialysis
765 54" Ave, Park 5™ Ave Professional
Center Suite A

Chambersburg PA 17201

(717) 263-9300EIN: 25-1810333
License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392648

DCA of Chesapeake, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chesapeake Dialysis

305 College Parkway

Arnold MDD 21012

(410)431-5106

EIN: 20-4373428

License No. E2619

Medicare No. 112619

DCA of Chevy Chase, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chevy Chase Dialysis

3 Bethesda Metro Center Suite B-005
Bethesda, MDD 20814

(301) 652-3434

EIN: 75-2978031

License No. E2633

Medicare No, 21.2633
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DCA of Cincinnati, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Mt Healthy Dialysis

7600 Affinity Pl

Mt Heaithy OH 45231

{513) 931-7900

EIN: 31-1810465

License No. 0684DC

Medicare No. 362655

DCA of Columbus, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Columbus Dialysis

2360 Citygate Dr

Columbus OH 43219

(614) 428-4001

EIN: 2(-8388926

License No. 0880DC

Medicare No. 362662

DCA of Delaware County, LLC d/b/a U.S.

Renal Care Delaware County Dialysis
1788 Columbus Pike

Delaware OH 43015

(740) 369-4870

EIN: 20-5799636

License No. 0871DC

Medicare No. 362713

DCA of Eastgate, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Eastgate Dialysis

4600 Beechwood Rd Suite 900
Cincinnati OH 45244

(513) 528-3222

EIN: 26-4578574

License No. 0968DC

Medicare No. 362762

DCA of Edgefield, LI.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Edgefield Dialysis

306 Main St

Edgefield SC 29824

(803) 637-3225

EIN: 20-2131213

License No. ERD-0149

Medicare No. 422602

2114828-2

DCA of Fitzgerald, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Fitzgerald Dialysis

402 S Grant St

Fitzgerald GA 31750

(229) 409-2221

EIN: 58-2596232

License No. ESRDO001191

Medicare No. 112698

DCA of Hawkinsville, LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Hawkinsville Dialysis

292 Industrial BLvd Suite 100
Hawkinsville GA 31036

(478) 892-8008

EIN: 20-8548207

License No. ESRD0G1199

Medicare No. 112707

DCA of Hyattsville, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Hyattsville Dialysis

4920 LaSalle Road

Hyattsville, MD 20782

(301) 277-04%90

EIN: 26-3674421

License No. E2620

Medicare No. 212620

DCA of Kenwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Kenwood Dialysis

5150 E Galbraith Rd

Cincinnati OH 45236

{513) 791-2698

EIN: 26-4578451

License No. 0956DC

Medicare No. 362759

DCA of Mechanicsburg, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mechanicsburg Dialysis

120 South Filbert St

Mechanicsburg PA 17055

(7t7) 790-6080

EIN: 23-3078802

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392691
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DCA of North Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Carc North Baltimore Dialysis
2700 N Charles St Suite 102

Baltimore MD 21218

(410)243-4193

EIN: 20-4373297

License No. E2577

Medicare No. 212577

DCA of Norwood, LLL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Norwood Dialysis

1721 Tennessee Ave

Cincinnati OH 45229

(513) 242-6733

EIN: 86-1117490

License No. 0773DC

Medicare No. 362681

DCA of Pottstown, LLC d/b/a U_S. Renal
Care Pottstown Dialysis

5 S Sunnybrook Rod Suite 500
Pottstown PA 19464

(610) 718-1127

EIN: 47-0924656

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392707

DCA of Rockville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Rockville Dialysis

11800 Nebel St

Rockville MD 20852

(301) 468-3221

EIN: 06-1707727

License No. E2641

Medicare No. 212641

DCA of Royston, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Royston Dialysis

611 Cook St

Royston GA 30662

(706) 2345-0817

EIN: 20-0546217

License No. ESRID00O1105

Medicare No. 112719

2114828-2

DCA of SO GA, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
South Georgia Dialysis

3564 N Crossing Cir

Valdosta GA 31602

(229) 249-3222

EIN: 22-3715287

License No. ESRDO01 180

Medicare No. 112688

DCA of South Aiken, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care South Aiken Dialysis

169 Crepe Myrtle Dr

Aiken SC 29803

EIN: 20-2130991

License No. ERD-0156

Medicarc No. 422604

DCA of Toledo, LLC d/b/a 1J.S. Renal Care
Bowling Green Dialysis

1037 Conneaut Ave Suite 101

Bowling Green OH 43402

(419) 353-1080

EIN: 34-1933418

License No. 0631DC

Medicare No. 362630

DCA of Vineland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Vineland Dialysis

1450 East Chestnut Ave Bldg 2 Suite C
Vineland NJ 08361

(856) 692-9060

EIN: 52-2180919

License No. 22278

Medicare No. 312551

DCA of Warsaw, 1LLC d/b/a U.5. Renal
Care Warsaw Dialysis

4709 Richmond Rd

Warsaw VA 22572

(804) 333-4444

EIN: 13-4226110

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492627

ATTACHMENT 11

59




DCA of Wellsboro, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Wellsboro Dialysis

223 Tioga St

Wellshoro PA 16901

(570) 724-3188

EIN: 25-176260]

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392602

DCA of West Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care West Baltimore Dialysis

22 S Athol St

Baltimore MD 21229

(410) 947-3227

EIN: 75-3170570

License No. E2647

Medicare No. 112647

DCA of York, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
York Dialysis

1975 Kenneth Rd

York PA 174808

(717) 764-8322

EIN: 76-0792137

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392731

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Bedford Dialysis

141 Memorial Dr

Everett PA 15537

(814) 623-2977

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392612

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Huntingdon Dialysis

820 Bryan St Suite 4

Huntingdon PA 16652

(814) 643-3600

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392656

21 14828-2

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Kidney
Center of McGehee

610 Holly §t

Mc Gehee, AR 71654-2109

(870) 222-6700

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicate No. 04-2565

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Pinc Bluff -
U.S. Renal Care

2302 W 28th Ave, Suite C

Pine Bluff, AR 71603-508]

(870) 534-7400

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2564

U.S. Renal Care Boerne, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Boerne Dialysis

1595 South Main Suite 107

Boerne, TX 78006

(830) 816-3030

EIN: 43-2099925

License No. 008371

Medicare No. 67-2563

U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC
1313 La Concha Lin

Houston, TX 77054-1809

{(713) 668-2744

EIN: 32-0223510

License No. 008644

Medicare No. 45-2840

U.S. Renal Care of Northeast Arkansas LLC
d/b/a Paragould - U.S. Renal Care

901 W Kingshighway

Paragould, AR 72450

(870) 215-0187

EIN: 62-1826477

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2562

USRC Advanced Home Therapies, LLC
396 Remington Blvd Suite 140
Bolingbrook [I. 60440-4311

(630) 495-9356

EIN: 45-1627715

L.icense No. N/A
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Medicare No. Pending

USRC Altoona, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Altoona Dialysis

200 E Chestnut Ave Suite 3-A

Altoona PA 16601

(814) 942-2569

EIN: 27-3164836

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 39-2786

USRC Atascosa County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Atascosa County Dialysis
1320 W Qaklawn Rd

SUITE G&H

Pleasanton, TX 78064-4304

(830) 569-3052

EIN: 26-1394783

License No. 008674

Medicare No. 672631

USRC Azle, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Azle

605 Northwest Parkway Suite |

Azle TX 76020

(817)406-4331

EIN: 26-4113763

License No. 110026

Medicare No. 672652

USRC Bellaire Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bellaire Dialysis

7243 Bissonnet Dr Suite A

Houston TX 77074

(713) 988.7200

EIN: 26-1527679

License No. 110013

Medicare No. 67-2657

USRC Bolingbrook, LI.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Bolingbrook Dialysis

EIN: 45-2119207

Medicare No. under construction

USRC Canton, LLLC d/b/a 1U.S. Renal Care
Canton Dialysis

400 E TX 243 Suite 14

Canton TX 75103

(903) 567-2250

EiN: 26-2409182

2114828-2

License No. 008728
Medicare No. 672607

USRC Checktowaga, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Cheektowaga Dialysis

2875 Union Rd Suite 13 C/D

Cheetowaga NY 14225

(716) 684-0276

EIN: 27-0789503

Medicare No. 33-2686

USRC Cleburne, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Cleburne

{206 W Henderson Suite A

Cleburne TX 76033

(817) 641-5530

EIN: 26-3465019

License No. 110025

Medicare No. 672650

USRC College Partnership, LP d/b/a Baylor
College of Medicine - Scott Street Dialysis
6120 Scott Street Ste F

Houston TX 77021

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8317462

License No. 008624

Medicare No. 672605

USRC Dalton, LI.C d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Dalton Dialysis

1009 Professional Blvd

Dalton GA 30720-2506

(706) 278-1070

EIN: 27-3966564

License No. ESRD001109

Mecdicare No. 11-2524

USRC Delta, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Delta Dialysis

400 East Edinburg Blvd

Elsa, TX 78543

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 56-2584922

License No. 008419

Mcdicare No. 67-2557
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USRC Downtown San Antonio, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Downtown San Antonio
Dialysis

343 W Houston St Ste 209

San Antonio TX 78205

(210) 251-2824

EIN:26-3721871

License No. 110024

Medicare No. 67-2672

USRC Eagle Pass, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Maverick County Dialysis

3420 Amy Strect

Eagle Pass, TX 78852

(830) 773-3878

EIN: 56-2533704

License No. 008305

Medicare No. 67-2534

USRC East Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis East Fort Worth
6450 Brentwood Stair Rd

Fort Worth Texas 76112

(817) 888-3015

EIN: 27-3360902

License No. 110078

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Edinburg, L.P d/b/a U.S. Renal Carc
Edinburg Dialysis

206 Conquest

Edinburg, TX 78539

(956) 383-8488

EIN: 41-2166757

License No. 008539

Medicare No. 45-2890

USRC Friendswood Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Friendswood Dialysis
3324 E FM 528

Friendswood TX 77546

(281) 993-5067

EIN: 26-1527903

License No. 008692

Medicare No. 672624

2114828-2

USRC Gateway Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Gatcway Dialysis

7171 New Hwy 90 West Suite 101

San Antonio, TX 78227

(210) 673-9200

EIN: 26-2064040

License No. 008664

Medicare No. 45-2851

USRC Grove, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Grove Dialysis

1200 NEO Loop Suite B&C

Grove QK 74344

(918) 787-2900

EIN: 27-2194282

License No. N/A

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Harlingen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Harlingen Dialysis

4302 Sesame Drive

Harlingen, TX 78550

(956) 365-4103

EIN: 41-2166755

License No. 008196

Medicare No. 45-2817

USRC Kingwood, LI> d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Kingwood Dialysis

24006 Hwy 59 North

Kingwood TX 77339

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8996067

License No. 008603

Medicare No. 672604

USRC Laredo South LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Laredo South Dialysis

4602 Ben Cha Road

Laredo. TX 78041

{956) 668-8484

EIN: 20-5786850

License No. 008497

Medicare No. 67-2566
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USRC Laredo, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Laredo Dialysis

6801 McPherson Road Suite 107
Larcdo, TX 78041

(956) 725-1202

EIN: 41-216676|

License No. 008197

Medicare No. 45-2823

USRC McAllen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
McAllen Dialysis

1301 East Ridge Road Suiie C

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166763

License No. 008198

Medicare No. 45-2820

USRC Medina County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Mcdina County Dialysis
3202 Avenue G

Hondo, TX 78861

(830) 426-3843

EIN: 26-2175292

License No. 007311

Medicare No. 45-2765

USRC Mid Valley Weslaco LP d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mid Valley Weslaco Dialysis
1005 South Airport Drive

Weslaco, TX 78596

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166767

License No. 008429

Medicare No. 45-2870

USRC Mineral Wells, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Tarrant Dialysis Mineral Wells

2611 Highway 180 West

Mineral Wells TX 76067

(940) 468-2704

EIN: 26-4113811

License No. 110043

Medicare No. 67-2660

2114828-2

USRC Mission, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Mission Dialysis

1300 S Bryan Rd Suite 107

Mission, TX 78572-6626

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166764

License No. 110005

Medicare No. 67-2502

USRC Murray County, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Murray County Dialysis
108 Hospital Dr

Chatsworth GA 30705-2058

(706) 517-4818

EIN: 27-3989608

License No. ESRD001178

Medicare No. 1[-2685

USRC N Richland Hills LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis North Richland Hills
6455 Hilltop Drive Suite 112

North Richland Hills, TX 76180-6039

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774637

License No. 008430

Medicare No. 67-2554

USRC Oak Brook, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Oak Brook Dialysis

EIN: 45-2119444

Medicare No. under constriction

USRC Rio Grande LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Rio Grande Dialysis

2787 Pharmacy Road

Rio Grande City, TX 78582

EIN: 41-2166762

(956) 487-2929

EIN: 41-2166762

License No. 0086638

Medicare No. 45-2664
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USRC SA Bandera Road LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bandara Road Dialysis

7180 Bandera Road

San Antonio, TX 78238

(210) 403-9493

EIN: 90-0185327

License No. 008087

Medicare No. 45-2895

USRC SA Houston Street, LLC d/b/a U.S,
Renal Care Houston Street Dialysis

2011 East Houston Street Suite 102d

San Antonio, TX 78202

(210) 225-0004

EIN: 34-2011633

License No. 008134

Medicare No. 67-2506

USRC SA Pleasanton Road, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Pleasanton Road Dialysis

1515 Pleasanton Road

San Antonio, TX 78221

(210) 922-6255

EIN: 20-8968808

License No. 008588

Medicare No, 67-2510

USRC SA Tri County LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tri County Dialysis

14832 Main Strect

Lytle, TX 78052

(830) 772-5784

EIN: 42-1639878

License No. 008135

Medicare No. 67-2507

USRC San Benito Dialvsis Ltd d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care San Benito Dialysis

295 North Sam Houston

San Benito, TX 78586

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166758

License No. 008215

Medicare No. 67-2514

USRC Streamwood, L1.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Streamwood Dialysis

EIN: 45-2119831

Mecdicare No. under construction

2144828-2

USRC SW Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Southwest Fort Worth
5127 Old Granbury Road

Fort Worth, TX 76133-2017

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774638

License No. 008443

Medicare No. 67-2559

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Central Fort Worth
4201 East Berry Street Suite 8

Fort Worth, TX 76105

(817) 531-0326

EIN: 87-074662!

License No. 008457

Medicare No. 45-2799

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Carc
Tarrant Dialysis Fort Worth

1001 Pennsylvania Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-5907

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008467

Medicare No. 45-2579

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Grand Prairie

1006 North Carrier Parkway

Grand Prairie, TX 75050

(972) 263-7202

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008468

Medicare No. 45-2855

USRC Tarrant LP d/bfa U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Mansfield

1800 Hwy 157 North Suite 101
Mansfield, TX 76063-3930

(682) 518-0126

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008464

Medicare No. 45-2896

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis North Fort Worth

1978 Ephriham Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76106-6670

(817) 624-7811
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EIN: 87-0746621
License No. 008454
Medicare No. 45-2838

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis South Fort Worth
12201 Bear Plaza

Burleson, TX 76028

(817) 293-1978

EIN: §7-0746621

License No. 110071

Medicare No. 45-2637

USRC Tarrant, LP d/bfa U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Arlington

203 West Randol Mill Road

Arlington, TX 76011

(817) 275-7787

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008463

Medicare No. 45-2580

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Carc
Tarrant Dialysis Tarrant County

1009 Pennsylvania Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-1515

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008466

Medicare No. 45-2636

USRC Tonawanda, Inc. d/b/a 1J.S. Renal
Care Tonawanda Dialysis

3155 LEggert Rd

Tonawanda NVY 14150

(716) 832-0159

EIN: 27-0789780

Medicare No. 33-2685

2114828-2

USRC Valley McAllen LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Valley McAllen Dialysis

09 Toronto Suite 100

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 994-3374

EIN: 41-2166760

License No. 008199

Medicare No. 45-2872

USRC Weatherford LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Weatherford

504 Santa Fe Drive

Weatherford, TX 76086-6503

(817) 594-2832

License No. 008567

Medicare No. 67-2543

USRC West Fort Worth Dialysis L.P d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Tarrant Dialysis West Fort
Worth

1704 S Cherry Lane Suite 200

White Settlement, TX 76108-3629

(817) 367-0822

EIN: 26-1527980

License No. 008649

Medicare No. 672637

USRC Westover Hills, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Westover Hills Dialysis
11212 State Highway Building Two Suite
100

San Antonio TX 78216

(210) 521-5923

EIN: 27-3170218

License No, 110073

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Williamsville, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Williamsville Dialysis

7964 Transit Rd Suite 8-A

Williamsville NY 14221

(716) 634-1841

EIN: 27-0789979

Medicare No. Pending
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

USRC Villa Park, L1.C

As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.230; I certify that no adverse actions have been taken
against USRC Villa Park, LLC, or any facility owned or operated by the Applicant, by Medicare,

Medicaid, or any State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior to the filing of this
Certificate of Need application; and

As required by 77 11l Admin. Code § 1110.230; [ authorize the Illinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board and Illinois Department of Public Health to access information in order
to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of this

subsection or to obtain any documentation or information related to this Certificate of Need
application.

=z ~

Signature

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this & day of % 2012

Spedleoo

Signature of Notary _ YA

SeteWARY
N S\Teantis, %
Seal FIN . Z
F N 12
= 1 43§=E S
% s’ §
%, el SBPECIS
%, EVEARG
f.fm 2. \\\\\
Bty
21148281
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ATTACHMENT 12

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

The purpose of this project is to keep dialysis services accessible to a growing ESRD population
in DuPage County (HSA 7) and to alleviate the current need for the provision of dialysis services
within HSA 7. As identified in the Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated
February 21, 2012, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for 108 additional stations. U.S. Renal
Care Villa Park Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13 additional stations available
to ESRD patients. The market area that U.S. Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis will serve is
primarily a five mile radius around the facility including the Villa Park, Addison, Lombard, and
Elmhurst areas. This facility is needed to accommodate the 80 ESRD patients that Applicant has
identified from this area who will require dialysis services in the 24 months following project
completion (40 patients annually).

In addition, this increase in ESRD-patients is based upon current patient populations and does not
include future patients that present with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKDS5. As such, additional
dialysis stations are required to meet the needs of these patients. The goal of U.S. Renal Care
Villa Park Dialysis is to keep dialysis access available to this patient population as we continue
to monitor the growth and provide responsible health care planning for this area.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 13

ALTERNATIVES

The alternatives to the Project are limited. The State’s Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated February 21, 2012, shows a nced for 108 ESRD stations in HSA 7. This Project
wilt establish 13 ESRD stations to meet the ESRID needs projected for HSA 7.

Alternative Options
1. A project of greater or lesser scope and cost

Projects of greater and lesser scape were considered in the planning stages of this project. The
alternative of a project of lesser scope would not sufficiently meet the ESRD station needs of
HSA 7. As indicated in the Purpose of the Project section, Applicant has identified 80 pre-ESRD
patients that are anticipated to require dialysis services in the 24 months following project
completion (40 patients annually). This increase in ESRD patients is based upon current patient
populations and does not include future patients that may present with diagnoses of CKD4 or
CKDS. As such, additional dialysis stations are required to meet the nceds of these patients.

2. Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative settings
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes

The operating modcl for this project is consistent with the standard that U.S. Renal Care has
implemented in various states. This model allows U.S. Renal Care to provide the quality patient
care services required by its patients while controlling costs, Pursuing an alternaic arrangement
for the provision of these services may negate this proven operating model or otherwise dilute
the benefits realized by patients of U.S. Renal Care,

3. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the
population the Project proposes to serve

Patients who require dialysis treatment are limited in their options 10 utilize other health care
resources. Duc to the high frequency of required treatment (3 treatments per week) and length of
treatmient, patients must be able to access conveniently located and effective facilities. For
cxample, an incremental increase in drive time of 10 minutes would result an annual drive time
increase of 52 hours.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of cost, paticnt access, quality and financial bencfits in

both the short term (within one to three yecars after project completion) and long term.
This may vary by project or situation. (See Attached Comparison Chart)

2114828.2
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Comparison of Project to Alternative Options

Proposed Project Alternative Cost Patient Access Quality Financial Benefits
Cost: $0
Alternative Option
presents less cost to Alternative Option . .
Applicant but may | resulis in reduction in Altﬁrqalwz O[tj.tmn. Alternative Option does
Establish U.S. Proi result in additional patient access as resuris in requetion in not result in greater
Renal Care Villa roject of Les§er Seope / costs to patients in ESRD patient qu_ahty as ESR_D financial benefit to an
c No Project P o P atient population O any
Park Dialysis ) the form of travel population growth P " pop . stakeholders (patients.
time and lack of exceeds Station growt excee(}i]s Station the state, Applicant).
access to the desired growth. growth.
provider of dialysis
services.
Alternative Option
Cost: = $2.943.783 would likely res‘ult in
Alternative Oﬁtion . . dccreasgd'quahty as . .
‘ would result in the Alternative thlon the provision of care | Alternative C_)ptlcm does
Establish U.S. . . would result in the through such an not result in greater
. Joint Venture or other same or similar total . . .
Renal Care Villa Arrangement cost as the proposed same increased patient | arrangement would financial benefit to any
Park Dialysis roject but distribute access as the proposed | represent a deviation stakeholders (paticnts,
P such costs among project. from the proven model | the state, Applicant).
different partics for the delivery of care
' established by
Applicant.
Cost: $0
Alternative Option
presents less cost to Alternative Option Alternative Obtion
Applicant but may | results in reduction in Its in red ltj . Alternative Option does
Establish U.S. result in additional patient access as resu sl‘ln reduc ;{on " not result in greater
Renal Care Villa Use Existing Resources costs to patients in ESRD patient qua ity as ES .D financial benefit to any
Park Dialysis the form of travel population growth patient populatlon_ stakeholders (patients,
time and lack of exceeds Station growth cxcc?is Station the state, Applicant).
access to the desired growth, growth.
provider of dialysis
services.
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The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data, that
verifics improved quality of care, as available.

Applicant maintains high levels of clinical quality for dialysis patients, on a corporate level U.S.
Renal Care has accomplished a three month average patient outcomes of 92% of patients with a
URR >65% and 92% of paticnts with Kv/V > 1.2 for the period ending March 31, 2011.
Applicant anticipates similar patient outcomes for the proposed project.
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ATTACHMENT 14

SIZE OF THE PROJECT
Size of Project
Department/Service Proposed State Difterence Met
BGSF/DGSF Standard Standard?
In-Center Hemodialysis 508 360-520 -18 Yes
dgsf/Station dgsf/Station | dgsf/Station

The amount of physical space for the proposed project is necessary, and not excessive, for the

provision of hemodialysis services.

within the state standard.

2114828-2

The 508 dgsf/station of the proposed project falls well
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ATTACHMENT 15

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Utilization
Histoerical Proiccted
Dept/Service Utilization/Patient ekl State Standard Met Standard?
Utilization
Days etc.
In Center 30 patients / 0
Year | Hemodialysis N/A 189% 80% NO
In Center 63 patients / R
Year 2 Hemodialysis N/A 81% 80% YES

Applicant has identified 509 current patients in the area with diagnoses of CKD3, CKD4 or
CKDS. Of these patients, Applicant estimates that approximately 80 patients will require
dialysis services in the 24 months following project completion (40 patients annually). Based on
Applicant's experience 10% of CKD 3, 50% of CKD 4 and 80% of CKD 3 will require dialysis
services within 3 years. When this project is completed, most all of the patients Applicant has
identified will require dialysis services within 2 years following project completion.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED

As identified in the most-recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated February 21, 2012, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for 108 ESRD stations.
U.S. Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis will help atleviate this need by making 13 additiona!
stations available 1o ESRD patients.

2164828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED — SERVICE TO PLANNING
AREA RESIDENTS

USRC Villa Park, LLC proposes to establish a thirteen (13) station in-center hemodialysis and
peritoneal dialysis facility at 200 East North Avenue, Villa Park, Illinois 60181. The facility will
utilize leased space to be built out by Applicant. The facility will provide both in-center
hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease to provide
necessary health care to the residents of DuPage County and HSA 7, where the proposed project
will be physically located. The market area that U.S. Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis will serve is
primarily a five mile radius around the facility including the Villa Park, Addison, Lombard, and
Elmhurst arcas.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED —~ SERVICE DEMAND -
ESTABLISHMENT OF CATEGORY OF SERVICE

Projected Referrals — Attached in Appendix | is a physician referral letter attesting to the
physician's total number of patients who have received care at existing facilities located in the
arca; the number of new patients located in the area that the physician referred for in-center
hemodialysis for the most recent year; and an estimated number of patients that the physician
will refer annually to the applicant's facility within & 24-month period after project completion.
bascd upon the physician's praciice experience.

2114828-2

ATTACHMENT 26 75




ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE ACCESSIBILITY

The planning arca for the proposed facility possesses several factors which contribute to service
restrictions for patients in the area.

Planning Area Need

As identified in the most-recently available IDPH Revised Nceds Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated February 21, 2012, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for 108 ESRD stations.
U.S. Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis will help alleviatc this need by making 13 additionai
stations available to ESRD patients.

Observed ESRD Prevalence Rates in Certain Populations

ESRD differentiatly affects certain populations at rates higher than other populations. For
example, ESRD prevalence rates are considerably higher among African-American and
Hispanic demographic segments than among non-Hispanic white demographic segments. The
African-American ESRD rate has been reported to be 3.6 times that among whites in the
United States' at 5,205 per million population.” Similarly, peer reviewed academic articles
demonstrate that ESRD prevalence among the Hispanic population, documented at a rate of
2,458 per million population, is materiatly higher than that of non-Hispanics.> The clinical
literature has noted:

a particularly rapid concomitant increase in the incidence and prevalence of end-
stage renal discase (ESRD) in Hispanics observed in the United States during the
last 2 decades. Compared with non-Hispanic whites, the incidence of ESRD in
Hispanics is nearly 2-fold higher. Because of the high frequency of risk factors
for ESRD in US Hispanics (eg, diabetes mellitus), it is anticipated that the
Hispanic ESRD population will continue to undergo substantial growth.

Michael J. Fischer et al., CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC (Chronic
Renal Insuffictency Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies, 58(2) Am. J. Kidney Dis. 214, at 214
2011).

Obviously, if the 2-fold factor for incidence in this study is accurate, it contributes to the need
determination issue, described below, in not taking into account any increased prevalence for
Hispanics when the Hispanic population percentage grows. As a result, communities that
demonstrate a growth in both the absolute number and percentage make-up of populations at

1 U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease. at 255,

* id. a1 259.

* U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, at 255-259; Claudia M. Lora
et al., Chronie Kidney Diseasc in United States Hispanics: A Growing Public Health Problem, 19 Ethnicity & Disease 466, at 466
(2009), Michael I. Fischer et ai., CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC (Chronic Renal Insufficiency
Cohort) and Nispanic-CRIC Studies. 58(2) Am. J. Kidney Dis. 214, at 214 (2011).
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higher risk for ESRD will experience a greater need for ESRD services.

In addition to ethnic prevalence rates, aging populations have also been associated with higher
prevalence of ESRD. In 2008, populations aged 65 years and over expericnced ESRD
prevalence rates that were greater than 3.0 times the overall population.4 Specifically, the
ESRD prevalence rate for populations aged 65 to 74 years was 5,940.9 per million population
as compared to an overall ESRD prevalence rate of 1,698.6 per million population. Similarly,
the ESRD prevalence rate for populations aged 75 years and greater was 5,266.4 per million
population.’

These differential rates of ESRD prevalence related to both ethnicity and age result in greater
neced for ESRD services when populations are composed of greater numbers of individuals who
experience higher rates of ESRD prevalence, as is demonstrated below for HSA 7.

Demographic Profile of HSA 7

The change in the demographic profile of HSA 7 requires additional stations to ensure that
dialysis services are available to area residents. The Need Determination does not sufficiently
take into account the demographic mix of the HSA population and may understate the need for
ESRD stations in the relevant HSA,

Ethnic Profile

The changing ethnic profile of HSA 7 increases the need for ESRD scrvices in this area. As
described above, the prevalence of ESRD differs between various ethnic groups which will affect
a population's overall ESRD rate as the ethnic mix of the population changes. The communities
comprising HSA 7 have undergone significant changes in the ethnic mix between the years 2000
and 2010. As demonstrated in Table 1 below, HSA 7 has seen a dramatic increase in both the
"Hispanic or Latino" and "Black or African American alone" populations as tabulated using
Census 2000 and 2010 data. Between 2000 and 2010, the "Hispanic or Latino" and "Black or
African American alone” populations grew by over 187,000 individuals and 70,000 individuals,
or by 47.0% and 20.3%, respectively. As a result of this explosive diversification of HSA 7, the
ethnic profile of this HSA has changed dramatically. In particular, the "Hispanic and Latino”
segment of the total population has been significant, expanding from 11.8% to 17.2% in HSA 7.
As the populations above suffer from a higher prevalence of ESRD, the incrcase in such
populations and resulting changing ethnic profile of HSA 7 increases the need for ESRD services
in this area.

Table 1
HSA 7 Population hy Race (2000 Census Thata)

Cook County | City ot Chicago | Suburban Cook | DuPsge County | Total Population
County*
Hispanic or Latino 1.071.740 753.644 318,096 81.366 399,462
Black or African American alone 1,405,361 1,065,009 340,352 27,600 367,932
Total Population 5,376,741 2.896,014 2,480,727 904.161 3.384.888

* See U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, a1 258.
51).5. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, Figure 2,12 available at

www usrds.org/2010/exciv2_02 zip.
2114828-2
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HSA 7 Population by Race (2010 Census Data)

Caok County | City of Chicago | Suburban Cock | DuPage County | Total Population
County™*

Hispanic or Latino 1,244,762 778.862 465,900 121,506 587,406
Black or African American alone 1,287,767 887,608 400,159 42346 442,505
Total Population 5,194,673 2,695,598 2,499,077 916.924 3.416.001
HSA 7 Population by Race (2000-2010 Change)

2000 Total 2010 Total

Poputation % Total Population % Total % Change
Hispanic or Latino 399,462 11.8% 587,406 17.2% 54%
Black or African Amenican atone 367,952 10.9% 442.505 13.0% 2.1%
Total Population 3.384.888 3,416,001

*Cock County excluding City of Chicago

The location of the proposed project, Villa Park, currently maintains a "Hispanic or Latino”
population of 17.8% of the total population, which ¢xceeds the same demographic population for
the state of [llinois at 15.8%. Furthermore, the neighboring village of Addison currently
maintains a Hispanic population of 40.1% of the total population. In terms of the demographic
make-up of these areas, the Addison area has seen a dramatic increase in the population of
Hispanic or Latino origin, increasing 45% from 10,198 individuals in 2000 to 14,212 individuals
in 2010. This increase represents a change from 28.4% of the total Addison population in 2000
to 40.1% of the population in 2010. Similarly, the Villa Park area has also seen an increase in
the population of Hispanic or Latino origin, increasing 40% from 2,770 individuals in 2000 to
3,894 individuals in 2010. This increase represents a change from 12.5% of the tota! Villa Park
population tn 2000 to 17.8% of the population in 2010.

Age Profile

The changing age profile of HSA 7 also increases the need for ESRD services in this area. As
discussed above, individuals 65 years of age and over experience prevalence of ESRD at a
greater rate than those under 65 years of'age. In HSA 7, this population has grown between 2000
and 2010 and now comprises a greater proportion of the overall population, as demonstrated in
the Table 2 below. In HSA 7, the population 65 years of age and over has grown by 28,539
individuals, representing a growth of 6.8%. The growth in these populations represents a
significant aging of these communities and will result in greater nced for ESRD services.

2114828-2

ATTACHMENT 26

78




Table 2
HSA 7 Population by Age Group (2000 Census Data)

. Suburban .
Age Group Cook County (,:'.ty of Cook DuPage 1 otal' % Total
Chicago C " County Population
ounty
64 and under 4,746,476 2,597,211 2,149,265 815,367 2.964.632 87.6%
Between 65 and 74 328628 159915 168.713 45,558 214,271 6.3%
75 and over 301,637 138,888 162,749 43,236 205,985 6.1%
Total Population 5,376,741 2.896,014 2,480,727 904.161 3.384.888 100.0%
HSA 7 Population by Age Group (2010 Census Data)
. Suburban -
Age Group Cook County C'.ly of Cook DuPage ]mal_ % Total
Chicago " County Population
County
64 and under 4,574,340 2,417,666 2,156,680 810,526 2.967.2006 86.9%
Between 65 and 74 324,521 151,095 173.426 37.640 231,066 6.8%
75 and over 295,808 126,837 168,971 48,758 217,729 6.4%
Total Population 5,194,675 2,695,598 2.499.077 916.924 3.416,001 100.0%

*Cook County excluding City of Chicago

Need Determination for the In-Center Hemodialysis Category of Service

The increased ESRD prevalence rate for certain populations and the demographic shift that has
occurred within HSA 7 results in an increased demand for ESRD stations above and beyond the
number of stations calculated by the Need Determination for the In-Center Hemodialysis
Category of Service (the "Need Determination”). The Need Determination, as currently
formulated in 77 I1l. Admin. Code §1100.630, is based on the assumption that at the baseline
time the existing rate of patients experiencing dialysis should determine future need. As such, if
the population of the HSA increases, the need for stations increases proportionately (increased by
a factor of 1.33 in the five year Need Determination). This approach may be reasonable if the
demographic mix at the basclinc time and predicted time are identical. But if the demographic
mix changes and prevalence is not identical across population subgroups, it will not account for
the chiange in mix., As such, variations in the demographic mix may result in increased station
need.

An illustrative example of the effect of demographic mix changes can be provided through an
examination of ESRD station need for incremental populations. As indicated in the following
graphics, if a population increases by 100,000 individuals and the ESRD prevalence rate is
assumed to be 1,699 per million population (representing the Overall Prevalence of ESRD as
reported by the U.S. Renal Data Service), then the resulting station need 1o accommodate this
population is 28 stations. If, however, the ESRD prevalence rate is adjusted to 4,718 per million
population to account for populations with higher prevalence of ESRD (representing a mixed
average of ESRD prevalence in high risk populations as reported by the U.S. Renal Data
Service) then the resulting station need required to accommodate this incremental 100,600
individuals is 79 stations,

As a result, the failure of the Need Determination to take into account future variations in the
demographic mix and the increased ESRD prevalence rate for certain populations renders the
Need Determination insufficient to determine future need of ESRD stations.

2114828-2
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NEED DETERMINATION—PREVALENCE RATES

OVERALL PREVALENCE OF ESXQD

1,699 per million population

Prevalence for Patients 65-74 years

5,941 per million population

Prevalence for Patients 75 years and over

5,266 per million population

Prevalence for African American Popuiation

5,205 per million population

Prevalence for Hispanic Population

2,458 per miliion population

Average High Risk Prevalence (foed ;\veréée)

4,718 per million population

(Source: U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, at 259)

APPLICATION OF ADJUSTED PREVALENCE

*le + L) B () B
Overall Prevalence 100,000 0.1699% 170 28
Average High Risk Prevalence 100,000 0.4718% 472 79
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APPLICATION OF ADJUSTED PREVALENCE
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CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE IN UNITED STATES HisPANICS: A GROWING PUBLIC

HEALTH PROBLEM

Hispanics are the fastest growing minority
group in the United States. The incidence of
end-stage renal disease {ESRD) in Hispanics is
higher than non-Hispanic Whites and Hispan-
ics with chronic kidney disease (CKD) are at
increased risk for kidney failure. Likely con-
tnbuting factors to this burden of disease
include diabetes and metabolic syndrome,
both are cormmon among Hispanics. Access
to heatth care, quality of care, and barriers due
to language, health literacy and acculturation
may also play a role. Despite the importance of
this public henlth problem, anly limited data
exist about Hispanics with CKID. We roview
the epidemiology of CKD in US Hispanics,
identify the factors that may be responsible for
this growing health problem, and sugpest gaps
in our understanding which are suitable for
future investigation. (Ethn Dis. 2009;19:466—
472)

Key Words: Chronic Kidney Disease, His-
panics, Health Care Disparities

From University of lllincis at Chicago,
Department of Medicine, Section of Ne-
phrology (CML, AP, ACR, JPL); Division of
Research, Kaiser Permanente of Northern
California and University of California, San
Francisco (ASG), Department of Preventive
Medicine, Morthwestern Univorsity Fein-
berg School of Medicine (MLD); National
Institutes of Health, Mational Institute of
Diabetes and Digestive and Kidney Diseas-
es, National Institutes of Health JWK).

Address correspondence  ane reprint
requests to Claudia M. Lora, MD; Section
of Nephralogy; Department of Medicine;
University of illincis at Chicago; 820 South
Wood Street {M/C 793); Chicago, Nllincis
60612-7315; 312-996-6736; 312-996-
7378 ifax); Cloral@uic.edu
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Claudia M. Lo, MD; Martha L. Daviglus, MD, PhD; John W. Kusek, PhD;
Anna Porter, MD; Ana C. Ricarde, MD, MPH; Alan S. Go, MD;

INTRODUCTION

Berween 2004 and 2005, the num-
ber of Hispanic in the United States
grew by 3.6 percent to reach a total of
42.7 million {representing nearly 15%
of the toral US pepulation), making this
the fastest growing segment of the
population in the county.! A large
increase has also occurred in the
Hispanic end stage renal disease
{ESRD) population. According to Unit-
ed States Renal Data System (USRDS),
in 2005, there were 12,000 new cases of
ESRD treated with dialysis or transplant
in Hispanics, representing an increase of
63% since 1996. Hispanics have an
incidence rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-Hispanics
Whites.” This increase in ESRD cases
not only transhates into an increased
burden to our health care system, but
also emphasizes the importance of beteer
understanding risk factors for chronic
kidney disease (CKD} in Hispanics. {n
this review, we examine the epidemiol-
ogy of CKD in US Hispanics, explore
potential reasons for this growing public
health problem, and highlight patential
arcas for future rescarch.

METHODS

We performed a qualitative review
of the literature utilizing a PubMed
search for the following keywords:
chronic kidney disease, Hispanics, Lati-
nos, end stage renal disease, diabetes,
dialysis, transplantatian, and health care
disparities. In addition, we reviewed
dara fram the USRDS?? and the Organ
Procurement and Transplantation Net-
work.* For the purpose of this review,
the term Hispanic cthniciry refers to all

Ethnicity & Diseare, Volume 19, Autumn 2009

James P Lash, MD

Hispanics have an incidence
rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-

Hispanics Whites.”

persons of Latin American origin living
in the United Srares, unless indicated
otherwise. Hispanics are culrurally,
sociocconomically, and genetically het-
erogencous and represent a wide variery
of national origins and social classes.” In
terms of ancestry, US Hispanics origi-
nate fram three populations: European
setclers, Native Americans, and West
Africans. The breakdown for the US
Hispanic population is as follows: 64%
Mexican, 9% Puerto Rican, 3.5%
Salvadoran and 2.7% Dominican.'
The remainder is of Central American,
South American or other Hispanic or
Lzuno origin.

EPIDEMIOLOGY OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Glomerufar filtration rate {(GFR)
estimating cquations have been used to
determine the prevalence of CKD in the
United States. The abbreviared Modifi-
cation of Det in Renal Disease
(MDRD) equarion has been considered
10 be the most accurate available
estimating cquation for GFR and has
been used widely in the literature and by
a growing number of clinical Jaborato-
ries.® Though the equation has been
demonstrated to have validity across a
spectrum of different subgroups,” there
are no data regarding its validity in
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Hispanics. This is a relevant concern
because the serum crearinine concentra-
tion, which is used in the MDRD
equation ro calculare escimated GFR
(eGFR), has been demonstrated o differ
by racialfethnic groups. In an analysis of
serum creatinine levels in the National
HMealth and Nutrition Examination Sur-
vey (NHANES} [II, Mexican Americans
had lower mean serum creatinine levels
than non-Hispanic Whites or non-His-
panic Blacks® The reasons for chese
differences are unknown. Similatly, a
recent NHANES analysis of serum
cystatin C, a potentially more sensitive
marker of early kidney dysfunction than
serum creatinine, reported lower levels of
cystatin C in Mexican Americans com-
pared with other racial/echnic groups
studied.? These differences in the distri-
bution of serum creatinine and cystatin
C levels in Hispanics reinforce the
importance of rigorously evaluating the
accuracy of GFR esrimating equations in

o e 10
Hispanics.

INCIDENCE AND
PREVALENCE OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Mild to Moderate CKD)
[nformartion regarding carlier stages
of CKD in Hispanics is limited. Several
investigators have reporred a higher
prevalence of microalbuminuria in His-
panics compared with non-Hispanic
Whites.""™"® In contrast to these find-
ings, a recent analysis of NHANES 111
data suggests that the prevalence of
CKD may be lower in Mexican Amer-
icans than in non-Hispanic Whites or
non-Hispanic Blacks. In an analysis of
NHANES III, modcrately decrcased
kidney function (eGFR 30-59 mL/min-
ute/1.73 m?) was most prevalent among
non-Hispanic Whires (4.8%) and non-
Hispanic Blacks (3.1%) and least prev-
alent in Mexican Americans (1.0%).”
Berween NHANES 1988 to 1994 and
1994 to 2004, the prevalence of CKD
rose ameong Mexican Americans but
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conzinued 1o be lower than that ob-
served in non-Hispanic Whites and
Blacks,'®

These data are not consistent with
the higher prevalence rates of ESRD in
Hispanics. One potential explanation is
that Mispanics have a higher risk of
ESRD because of more rapid progres-
sion of CKD after its onset, rather than
simply a lasger pool of individuals with
CKD. The findings could also be
related to methodological issues related
to the sample size or sampling bias.
Furthermore, as discussed carlier, the
validity of the MDRD equation has not
been established in Hispanies and
utilizing the ecquation in Hispanics
could be an important potential source
of error. Lastly, NHANES includes only
Mexican Americans and these findings
may not be generalizable 10 other
Hispanic subgroups.

End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD)

It is well esrablished thac Hispanics
have a higher prevalence of ESRD than
non-Hispanic Whites. The increased
prevalence of treated ESRD in Hispan-
ics was first recognized in the 1980s
Using data from the state of Texas,
Mexican Americans were found o have
an excess of ESRD compared with non-
Hispanic Whites with an incidence ratio
of 3.'¢ For diaberic ESRD, Mexican
Americans had an incidence rario of 6
compared with non-Hispanic Whires.
The first study at a national level
analyzed male Hispanics idensificd in
Medicare ESRD program dara files.
Using common Spanish surnames to
identify cases, it was found that His-
panics developed ESRD at a younger
age than non-Hispanic Whites; and
berween 1980 and 1990, ESRD inci-
dence rates increased more for Hispan-
ics.'” In 1995, the USRDS began to
acquire dara regarding Hispanic ethnie-
ity. In 20006, the adjusted incidence rare
for ESRD in Hispanics was 1.5 times
higher than for non-Hispanic Whites.”
Furthermore, between 1996 and 2003,
the incidenee rate for Hispanics in-
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Table 1. leading causes of ESRD
requiring dialysis in Hispanics and
non-Hispanic Whites in 2000°

Non-
Primary Hispanic
disease Hispanics  Whites
Diabetes 58.8% 38.8%
Hypertenstondarg:
vessel disease 16.2% 23.7%
Glomerulonephritis 9.1% 9.9%
Etiology uncertain 3.5% 1.0%
Other 12.4% 23.6%

creased by 63%.% In contrast, Burrows
et al examined trends in age-adjusted
ESRD rates and reported that the age-
adjusted ESRD rate in Hispanics de-
creased by approximately 15%, from
2000 ro 2005 (530.2 vs 448.9)."°
However, there was an overall increase
in the ape-adjusted incidence rares in
Hispanics in 2005 as compared with
1995 (448.9 vs 395.0). It is apparent
that a longer period of follow-up time is
needed ro better characrerize trends.
The leading causes of ESRD} requiring
dialysis in Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whirtes are described in Table 1. Dia-
betes accounts for 59% of prevalent
cases of ESRD in Hispanic compared
with 39% of cases in non-Hispanic
Whites.> Unfortunately, dara regarding
causes of ESRD by Hispanic subgroup
are not available.

The incidence and severity of diabe-
tes are important factors in the excessive
incidence of diaberic ESRD observed in
Hispanics. The prevalence of diabetes in
Hispanics has heen estimared 1o be
approximately 1.3 to 3 cimes that scen
in the non-Hispanic Whire population
and its incidence is rising.'9 Morcover,
Hispanics have been found two have
lower rates of glucose self-monitering
and poorer glycemic control compared
with non-Hispanic Whites.2® Hispanics
with diabetes may be ar increased risk to
develop diabetic nephropathy. Mexican
American diabeties in San Antonio,
Texas had a higher prevalence of
proteinuria than non-Hispanie White
diabetics from Wisconsin.?' However,
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no such difference was abserved in the
San Luis Valley.”? The importance of
non-diabetic CKD in Hispanics is not
completely understood. Though hyper-
tension is less prevalent in Hispanics,
Mexican Americans had the highest rate
of uncenrrolled hypertension in
NHANES 111.7 Dac from Texas and
the USRDS demonstrate a higher
incidence of ESRD due to hypertension
in Hispanics than in non-Hispanic
Whites,'*2*

Progression of CKD
in Hispanics

Only limited information is avail-
able regarding progression rates and risk
factors for CKD in Hispanics. In a
mulivarizble rewrospective analysis of a
cohort of 263 rype 2 diabetic ESRD
patients, Mexican ethnicity and female
sex were found o hasten the decline of
renal function.”> A post hoc analysis of
the Reduction of Endpoints in
NIDDM with the Angiotensin Il An-
tagonist Losaran Study (RENAAL)
found char Hispanics had the highest
tisk for ESRD comparcd with Blacks
and Whites.”® However, the majoriry of
Hispanics in chis study were from Latin
American countries and thercfore, the
findings may not be applicable o US
Hispanics. A recent analysis of patients
enrolled in Kaiser Permanente of
Northern California, a large integrated
healthcare delivery system, has clarified
the risk of ESRD in US Hispanics with
CKD.* In 39,550 patients with srage 3
to 4 CKD, Hispanic ethnicity was
associated with almost a two-fold in-
creased risk for ESRD when compared
with non-Hispanic Whites. This in-
creased risk was attenuared to 33% after
adjustment for diabetcs, medication use,
and osher characretistics. Thus, the risk
for progression 1o ESRD ins Hispanics is
only partially explained by diabetes.

Even less is known about progres-
sion rates and risk factors for non-
diaberic CKD in Hispanics. Some
reports suggest thar certain glomerular
diseases may be morc severe and
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progress more often in Hispanics than
in non-Hispanic Whites.”*™® In a
recent examination of rates of progres-
sion in 128 patients with proliferacive
lupus nephritis, Barr et al. found that
Hispanic ethnicity was independenty
associated with progression of CKD.”
Anocher study examining patients wich
lupus found that Texan-Hispanic eth-
nicity was more likely to be associated
with nephritis than Puerto Rican eth-
nicity.? This suggests that outcomes
can vary by Hispanic subgroup.

US Hispanics have been poorly
represented in large prospective CKD
studies. The ongeing NIDDK-spon-
sored Hispanic Chronic Renal Insuffi-
ciency Cohort Study (HCRIC) is inves-
tigating risk factors for CKD and
cardiovascular disease (CVD)Y) progres-
sion in a cohort of 326 Hispanics with
CKD. This study is hased ac the
University of lllinois at Chicago and is
an ancillary study to the NIDDK-
sponsored CRIC Srudy.?

Metabolic Syndrome and CKD
Recent analyses of NHANES I
data found that meuwbolic syndrome
affects over 47 million Americans and
that the problem is more pronounced in
I-[isp:mim.ﬁ'a‘1 Mexican Americans have
the highest age-adjusted prevalence of
metabelic syndrome (31.9%) compared
with non-Hispanic Whites (23.8%) and
Blacks {21.6%).%> There is now emerg-
ing evidence supporting a relarionship
berween metabolic syndrame and
CKD.** In a prospective cohort
study of Narive Americans without
diaberes, metabolic syndrome was asso-
ciated with an increased risk for devel-
oping CKD.?? In non-diabetic subjects
with normal kidrey function enrolled in
the Atherosclerasis Risk in Communi-
ries Study (ARIC), investigators found
an adjusted odds ratio of developing
CKD in participants with metabolic
syndrome of 1.43 compared with par-
ticipants who did not have the syn-
drome.”® These daca suggest that mer-
abolic syndrome could be an imporrant
factor in the Hispanic CKD population.

Eibnirity & Disease, Volume 19, Antuma 2009

DISPARITIES IN HEALTH
CARE AND PREVALENCE AND
PROGRESSION OF CKD

The importance of healtheare dis-
parities in CKID has received increased
rccngnition.m buc litdle is known re-
garding the impact of healthcare dispar-
ities on health outcomes in Hispanics
with CKD. Tt is well substantiated that
there are considerable dispariries in
health care for Hispanics.” According
to a report by the Commonwealth
Fund, nearly owo-thirds (65%) of
working-age Hispanics with low in-
comes were uninsured for all or part of
the year in 2000.%" Using NHANES 111
dara, Harris evaluated healthcare access
and urilization, and health status and
outcomes for patients with type 2
diabetes.?® Mexican Americans below
age 65 years had lower rates of health
insurance coverage than non-Hispanic
Whites and Blacks {66% vs 919% and
83%, respectively). Furthermore, Mex-
ican Americans with private insurance
or 2 high school education or more were
more likely 1o have normoalbumi-
nuria.?® The quality of care received
by Hispanics may abso play a rolc in the
progression of kidney disease. Hispanics
with diabetes are less likely to report
having had a feor exam or glycosylated
hemoglebin n-.'sting,.42 As noted eaclier,
Mexican American in NHANES HI had
the highest rate of uncontrolled hyper-
tension.? Lastly, Ifudu et al reporred
that non-Whites, including Hispanics,
are more likely 1o receive a late referral
to a nephrologist for CKD manage-
ment.*? This study was limited by the
low number of Hispanics in the analy-
sis. These findings suggese that qualiry
of care may play a role in the high
prevalence of ESRD in this popularion.

Patient-centered factors may play a
particularly important role for Hispan-
ics include language, health care lireracy,
acculeuration, social support, and trust
in healthcare providers. Hispanics whe
are recent immigrants face a number of
potential barriers to health care, includ-
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ing lack of familiarity with the healh-
care system and fanguapge barriers.
Spanish-speaking Hispanics are less
likely to be insured, have access to care
and use preventive health services.!'4*
Trust in the healthcare system is another
important factor because it has been
found to be significanty related to
adherence.® Doescher er al found that
Hispanies reported significantly less
trust in their physician than non-
Hispanic Whites.*® Finally, social sup-
port, defined as resources provided by a
nerwork of individuals or social groups,
has been found to have direct effects on
health status and health service utdiliza-
tion,” There have been no published
studies to date focusing on patient-
centered facters in Hispanics wich
CKD. However, it scems reasonable to
speculate that these factors amplify
CKD and associated CVD risk.

CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE
IN Hispanics wiTH ESRD
AND EARLIER STAGES

OF CKD

Several studies have found that
Hispanics may have lower all-cause
and CV morrality rates than nen-
Hispanic Whires, 5 The rerm, His-
panic paradox, has been used o describe
the lower than expected moreality rates
despite the increased incidence of dia-
betes and obesity, lower sacioeconomic
status, and barriers to health care.”! A
number of explanations have been
proposed, including socio-cultural fac-
tors, ethnic misclassification, incom-
plete ascertainment of deaths, and the
healthy migrant effect. 3% In che
ESRD population, Hispanics, Blacks,
and Asians have a lower risk of death
than non-Hispanic Whites, regardless of
diabetes status.?*33-%% In 4 recent
analysis of a national, random sample
of hemodialysis patients, Hispanies had
an adjusted 12-month mortality risk
that was 25% lower than non-Hispanic
Whites.®® The reasons for the lower
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ESRD mortality rates are not complere-
ly understood, buc differences in surviv-
al have been noted among Hispanic
subgroups with Mexican-Americans,
Cuban Americans and Hispanic-other
having an increased survival advantage
compared with Puerto Rican Ameri-
cans.’® These findings suggest that
sociocultural or generic differences may
play a role in these lower ESRD
mortality rates and demonstrating the
importance of examining health out-
comies in subgroups of Hispanics.

Less is known regarding CVD risk
and discase in Hispanics with carlier
stages of CKD. An analysis of mortalicy
rates of adults with CKD in NHANES
found no difference in CVD or all-cause
mortalicy in Mexican Americans com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites.’” In
contrast, Hispanic vererans with diabetic
CKD experienced a lower 18-manth
mortality rate than non-Hispanic
Whites.”® Though Hispanics in Kaiser
Permanente of Northern California had
an increased rate of ESRD, Hispanic
ethnicity was associated with 29% lower
adjusted mortality rate and 19% lower
adjusted rate of CVI) events as compared
with non-Hispanic Whites, even afier
accounting for major cardiovascular risk
facters, comorbidities and use of preven-
tative therapies.”” Again, the reasons for
these differences are not known.

END-STATE RENAL DISEASE
CARE IN US HISPANICS

Dialysis

Analysis of USRDS daca reveals thar
Hispanics are 1.47 times more likely
than non-Hispanic Whites to have Jate
initiation of dialysis.”® At the start of
dialysis, Hispanics tend to have slightdy
‘ower hemarocrit levels and are 13% less
likely to be on erythopocisis stimulating
agents compared with non-Hispanic
Whites.% An analysis of a random
sample of Medicare cligible adults on
hemedialysis in 1997 revealed char,
compared with non-Hispanic Whites,
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Hispanics on hemodialysis are more
likely to be female, younger, and have
diabetes.®! Hispanics tend to have
higher albumin levels and similar he-
matocrit levels compared to non-His-
panic Whites.”51-62

Litde is known about ESRD care in
the United Stare for unauthorized
immigrants, OF the 11.8 millien unau-
thorized immigrants in the Unired
States, more than 8.46 millien are
Hispanic.®® The incidence rate for
ESRD for this population is unknown,
Many of these undocumented aliens do
not receive systematic care before iniri-
ation of dialysis. The quality and
availability of pre-ESRD care for unau-
tharized immigrants has not been
systemnatically studied. A small study of
undocumented ESRD patients initiar-
ing dialysis in New York City found
that these patients had higher serum
creatinine concentration and lower
eGFR, higher systolic blood pressure,
and greater costs for the hospitlization
associated wirth the initiation of dialy-
sis.® However, a limitation of this study
was that it only included 33 Hispanics.
An impormant issue regarding the dial-
ysis of unauthorized immigrants is the
compensation for dialysis, which varies
by individual state and may limir the
availability of leng-term dinlysis for
undocumented aliens who are then
forced ro receive dialysis on an emergent
basis only.®® The cost of care for
undocumented ESRD patients receiving
dialysis on an emergent basis is 3.7
times higher than far those unaucho-
rized immigrants receiving long-rerm
maintenance dialysis.®® End-stage renal
disease in unauthorized immigrants is of
great public health and economic con-
cern and warrants future research and
re-evaluation of current policies.

Transplantation

Limited data exist that suggest that
Hispanics arc equally likely to be
referred for renal transplantation bur
are less likely 1o progress beyond the
early stages of the rransplant evaluarion
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with some aof the reasons including
financial concerns, fear of the surgery,
and preference for dialysis.®” Perhaps
for this reason, Hispanics are underrep-
resented on kidney walting lists relative
to the prevalence of CKD in chis
population.®® Once placed on the
eransplant wait list, Hispanics have a
longer unadjusted median time 1o
transplant than non-Hispanic Whites. !
Factors that potentially contribute o
the longer time on the wait list include
lower rates of organ denations in
Hispanics relative to Whites,5%7 Jess
knowledge and more fear-relared barri-
ers to living organ donation,”’ and
ethnic differences in the frequency of
HLA alleles coupled with current allo-
cation pc»]il:iu':s‘}'2 Data regarding graft
survival in Hispanics have not been
uniform, with some studies suggesting
that Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whites have similar rates of graft
survi\.':d,”'?‘i while ather swdies have
demonstrated poorer rates of graft
survival in Hispanics.”> More secently,
Gordon et al found better patient and
graft survival in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanics.”® Further studies
are needed ro clarify whether Hispanic
ethnicity influences post-transplant out-
cemes. In addidian, policies are needed
to address specific barriers within che
transplant evaluation process for His-
panics to ensure appropriate access to
this important therapy.

Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics
have an increased incidence of
ESRD that appears
independent of known clinical

risk factors.
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CONCLUSION

Chronic kidney disease is a growing
and under-recognized health problem
for US Hispanics. Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics have an
incecased incidence of ESRD char
appears independent of known clinical
risk fzctors. Furthermore, among pa-
tients starting ar the same level of CKD,
Hispanics are at increased risk for
progression to ESRD. Interestingly,
data from NHANES suggest that the
prevalence of CKD with decreased
eGIR, at least in Mexican Americans,
is lower than in non-Hispanic Whites,
The reason for this discrepancy is
unclear but could be related o maore
rapid progression of CKD. Many
questions remain unanswered including:
factors influencing CKID} progression
and CVD outcomes; the validity of
current GFR estimating equations; in-
sights into differences in outcomes
among Hispanic subgroups; and the
impact of health care disparities on
CKD. For these reasons, future rescarch
is reeded t better understand the
epidemiology and complications of
CKD in US Hispanics. Furthermore,
it is essential that adequate numbers of
US Hispanics are included in future
interventional trials to provide the
necessary evidence base to goide pre-
vention and therapeutic strategies for

CKD and ESRD.
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CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC
{Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies

Michael J. Fischer, MD, MSPH,"Z Alan S. Go, MD,** Claudia M. Lora, MD,"

Lynn Ackerson, PhD,? Janet Cohan, MS,” John W. Kusek, PhD,® Alejandro Mercado, MS,’
Akinlolu Ojo, MD.? Ana C. Ricardo, MD, MPH,” Leigh K. Rosen, MUEP,”
Kaixiang Tao, PhD,” Dawei Xie, PhD,” Harold I. Feidman, MD,”® and James P. Lash, MD,’
on behalf of the CRIC and H-CRIC Siudy Groups™

Background: Little is known regarding chronic kidney disease (CKD) in Hispanics. We compared baseling
characteristics of Hispanic participants in the Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort {CRIC) and Hispanic-CRIC
(H-CRIC} Studies with non-Hispanic CRIC participants.

Study Design: Cross-sectional analysis.

Setting & Particlpants: Paricipants were aged 21-74 years with CKD using age-based estimated
glomerular filtration rate {eGFR) at enrollment into the CRIC/H-CRIC Studies. H-CRIC included Hispanics
recruited at the University of illinois in 2005-2008, whereas CRIC ingluded Hispanics and non-Hispanics
recruited at 7 clinical centers in 2003-2007.

Factor: Race/ethnicity.

Outcomes: Blood pressure, angiotensin-convering enzyma (ACE)-inhibiter/angiotensin receptor blocker
{ARB} use, and CKD-associated complications.

Measurements: Demaographic characteristics, laboratory data, blood pressure, and medications were
assessed using standard techniques and protocols.

Results: Of H-CRIC/CRIC participarts, 497 were Hispanic, 1,650 were non-Hispanic black, and 1,638 were
non-Hispanic white. Low income and educational attainment were nearly twice as prevalent in Hispanics compared with
non-Hispanics (P < 0.01), Hispanics had seti-reported diabetes {57%) more fmquently than non-Hispanic blacks (51%)
and whites (40%; P < 0.01). Blood pressure > 13080 mm Hyg was more common in Hispanics (62%) than blacks (57%)
and whites {35%,; P < 0.05), and abnommafities in hematologic, metabolic, and bone metabolsm parameters were more
prevalent in Hispanics (P < 0.05), even after stratifying by entry eGFR, Hispanics had the lowest use of ACE
inhbitors/ARBs among the high-risk subgroups, inchrding participants with diabetes, proteinunia, and blood pressure
>130/80 mm Hg. Mean eGFR was lower in Hispanics (38.6 mL/min/1,73 m?} than in blacks (43.7 mL/min/1.73 m?} and
whites (46,2 mU/min/1.73 m?), whereas median proteinuria was higher in Hispariics {protein excretion, 0.72 g/d) than in
blacks (0.24 g/d) and whites (0.12 g/d; P< 0.01).

Limitations: Generalizability; observed associations limited by residual bias and confounding.

Conclusions: Hispanics with CKD in the CRIC/H-CRIC Studies are disproportionately burdened with lower
socfoeconomic status, more frequent diabetes mellitus, tess ACE-inhibitor/ARB use, worse blood pressure
control, and more severe CKD and associated complications than their nen-Hispanic counterparis.

Am J Kidney Dis. 58(2):214-227. Published by Elsevier inc. on behall of the National Kidney Foundation, Inc.

This is a US Government Work. There are no restrictions on its use.

INDEX WORDS: Chronic kidney disease; Hispanics; epidemiology.

Hispanics arc now the largest minority group in
the United States.! Of interest, there also has
been a particularly rapid concomitant increase in the
incidence and prevalence of end-stage renal disease
(ESRD) in Hispanics observed in the United Stales
during the last 2 decades.”> Compared with non-

Hispanic whites, the incidence of ESRD in Hispanics
is ncarly 2-fold higher® Because of the high fre-
quency of risk factors for ESRD in US Hispanics (eg,
diabetes meilitus), it is anticipated that the Hispanic
ESRD population will continue 1o undergo subsiantial
growth.**
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Despite the magnitude of this public health prob-
lem, little is known regarding earlier stages of chrenic
kidney disease (CKD) in Hispanics.®> A few prior
reports have noted that although the prevalence of
estimated glomerular filtration rate (eGFR) <60 ml./
min/).73 m? is similar in Hispanics and non-Hispan-
ics, Hispanic ¢ihnicily is associated with higher levels
of microatbuminuria and proteinuria and an almost
2-fold higher risk of ESRD in comparison with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks.®'? Hispanics have not
been well represented in most Jarge prospective
studies and clinical trials of CKD; therefore, our
understanding of the risk factors, complications,
and outcoes associated with CKD in Hispanics is
limited."'"'* One exception was a post hoc analysis of
the RENAAL (Reduciion in End Points in Non-Insulin-
Dependent Diabetes With the Angiotensin 11 Antago-
nist Losarian) trial, which focused on the role of ethnic-
ity and found that although baseline proteinuria and risk
of ESRD werc higher in Hispanics compared with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks, all ethaic groups achicved
renoprotection from losartan therapy after bascline differ-
ences in albuninuria were taken into account.'®

The Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort
{H-CRIC} Study, an ancillary study to the multicenter
National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kid-
ney Discascs—speonsored Chronic Renal Insufficiency
Cohort (CRIC) Study, is the first prospective longitu-
dinal study examining risk factors for the progression
of CKD and cardiavascular disease in a sizable cohort
of US Hispanics with a broad range of kidney dysfunc-
tion.'™!® The H-CRIC Study was initiated because of
less-than-anticipated recruitment of Hispanics in the
CRIC Study and was conducied at the University of
llinois at Chicago because of disproportionately suc-
cessful Hispanic recruitment into the CRIC Study at
this clinical site.'® In this article, we compare bascling
characteristics belween Hispanic and non-Hispanic
participants in the CRIC and H-CRIC Studics, espe-
cially as they pertain io risk factors, compfications.
and management of CKD.

METHODS

Study Sample and Design

We conducted o cross-seclional comparative analysis of His-
panic and non-Hispanic participants at enrollment into the CRIC
and H-CRIC Siudies. CRIC is a prospective multicenter cohort
study of adults with CKI}. Details of the design and methods of the
CRIC Study have been published previously.!™'® Major eligibility
criteria for the CRIC Siudy included adulis aged 21-74 years with
mild to moderate CKD using age-based eGFR. Exclusion criteria
included inability to consent, New York Hean Associalion class TH
or IV heant failure, cirrhosis, human immunodeficiency virus
(HIV)YAIDS, polycystic kidney disease, prior dialysis therapy or
transplant, immunosuppressive therapy within 6 months, ar chemo-
therapy for cancer within 2 years. The H-CRIC Swdy adopted
eligibility and exclusion crileria identical 1o the parent CRIC

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

Study. However, whereas CRIC included 169 Hispanics and 3,289
non-Hispanics recruited al 7 clinical centers from May 2003
through Muarch 2007, H-CRIC included 327 Hispanics recruited at
the University of linois at Chicage and Chicago metropolitan
area from Gelober 2005 through June 2008. Recruitment sites
included university-based, community-based, and private health
clinics. Both studics were approved by the institutional review
boards of the participaling centers, and the research was conducted
in accordance with the principles of the Dectaration of Helsinki.
Al study panicipants provided writlen informed consent.

Variables and Data Sources

H-CRIC Study participants underwent the same evaluation and
test stralegy as CRIC Study participants, which have been fully
described previously,'™'® as well as additional evaluations (for
only H-CRIC participants) focusing or primary language.'® So-
cicdemographic characteristics {eg. age, sex, race/ethnicity, educa-
tion, annuzl houschold income, smoking. and health insurance)
were self-reporied and recorded at the baseline visit. Medical
conditions {eg, hypenensian, high cholesterol level, chronic heart
failure, peripheral arterial disease, diabetes, myocardial infarction,
or coronary revascularization) also were self-reported at baseline.
Anthropomelric measures {height, weight, body mass index, and
waist circumference) were measured by trained study personnel
and recorded. Current medications were reviewed and docu-
mented. As noted, blood pressure measurements and ankle-
brachial indexes were obtained using standard and validated proto-
cols.'™"® For each participant a1 baseline, urine creatinine and
protein excretion were determined from a 24-hour urine collection,
and eGIR was calculated using the CKD-EP1 (CKD Epidemiol-
ogy Collaboration} estimating equation, using a locally measured
serum creatinine level calibrated to the Roche enzymatic method
{Rache Diagnostics, Ine, www.rocheldingnoslics.usi).m GFR was
assessed using renal clearance of 125-isdine iothalamate {mea-
sured GFR) in a sclect subcohort,'™ '8

Statistical Analysis

Baseline participant characteristics were summarized using
mean * standard deviation or median and 25th-75th percentile for
continueus variables and frequency distribution with percentage
for categorival variables. Missing values occurred very infre-
quently and generally under the following circumsiances: (1) a
participant failed to answer a Guestion on a reporting form, (2) a
physical measure was not obtained, and (3} a laboratory test was
not performed. The only variables with >3% missing values were
primary language spoken (17% [percentage missing in Hispanics
because language was assessed in only this group]), health insur-
ance (12%), and urine studies (6%). Analyses for gach variable
included only observed values. Baseline parlicipant characteris-
tics were compared between groups using s tests, y? lests, or
analysis of variance, as appropriate. A 2-sided P < 0.05 was
considered sialistically significant. All statistical analyses were
conducted using SAS, version 9.1 {SAS, www.sas.com).

RESULTS
Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics
H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

Of 497 H-CRIC and CRIC Hispanic participants,
69% were Mexican American, 10% werc Puerto
Rican, and 25% had other Latin American ancestry
(Table 1). Proportions of participants with low
annual houschold income {(<<$20,000/y), low educa-
tional attainment (less than high school diploma),
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Table 1. Baseline Demographic and Clinical Charactenstics of the H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

P
| 1
Mexican Puerto Rican Mexican
Overall American American Other vs Puerte Maoxican
Variable (N = 497) {n=341) {n =81} {n =75) Rican  vs Other Overall
Aga {y) 56.3 % 11.7 56.0+ 115 55.8 = 13.4 58.1 + 10.9 0.9 0.2 0.4
Men 284 (58) 194 (57) 50 {63) 44 (59} 04 0.8 07
Annual income <0.01 <0001 <0.00
=$20,000 31363} 234 (69) 42 {52) a7 (49}
$20,001-550,000 92 (19) 55 (16) 20 (25) 17 (23}
$50,001-$100,000 24 (5) 8{2) 5 {6} 11 (15)
>$100,000 12(2) 4(1) 4{5) 4(5)
Mo response 56 (11) 40 {12} 10{12) 6 (B)
Education <0001 <0001 <0001
<7th grade 183 (37 160 {47) 10{13) 13{17)
7th-12th grade 110 {22) 75 (23) 26 (32) 912
High school diploma 7114} 45 (13) 13(16) 13017}
Vocatlonal degree 11 (2) 93 1{1) 1{(1)
Soms college 67 (13) 25 (9) 20 (25) 18 (24)
College graduate 35(7) 17 (5) 51(6) 13{17)
Graduate degree 20{4) 8(2) &(7) 8(11)
Health insurance <(.001 001 <0.0M
None 113(23) 92 (27) 7(9) 14 (19)
Medicaid/public aid 80 {16} 61 (18) 1012} 9{12)
Any Medicare 119 {24) 80 (23) 24 (30} 15 {20)
VA/miktary/Champus 9{2} () -3 )] 2(3)
Privatefcommercial 67 {13) 40 (12) 810} 18 (25)
Unknownfincomplete 47 (8} 28 (8} 12 {15} 7{9)
Missing 62 {13) 3/(11) 14 (17} 3{12)
Primary language spoken <0001 <0001 <D.0OM
English 85{17) 56 (16} 21 (26} 9{12)
Spanish 327 (86) 260 {76) 33 (41 34 (45)
Missing a4 {17 25 (7} 27 (33) 32 (43)
Taobacco use
Current smaker 28 (6) 19 (6) 91 1(1) 0.07 0.1 0.03
>100 cigarettes 218 (44) 147 {43) 38{47) 33 (44} 0.9 ¢9 0.8
Medical history
Hypentension 443 (89) 309 {91) 72 (89) 62 (83) 06 004 a1
Diabetes 333 (67) 240 {70) 52 {B4) 42 (56) 0.3 002 0.04
Mifprior revasculanization o0 (18) 55 (16) 17 {21) 18 (24) 03 ¢8| G2
Heart tailure M 21 {6) 10{12) 6(8) 0.06 06 0.1
PVD 35(7) 30(9) 2(2) 34 0.05 02 0.07
SBP (mm Hg} 136.0 £ 23.7 1386244 1305 = 187 1304 = 23.6 0.0 om om
DEP {rm Hg} v2E=x124a 732128 7232126 702 2126 0.6 Q.07 0z
MAP (mm Hg) 83.7 £ 14.3 950+ 146 9.7 2129 903 * 138 0.07 o0 0.02
BF >130/80 mm Hy 307 {B2) 223 (66) 47 (59) 37 (49) 03 0.01 0.02
Woight (kg) B4.7 + 201 84.56 £ 19.9 86.6 > 238 8291686 0.4 05 05
BMI {kg/m?) 666 31.8*65 3A274 306 * 5.8 05 0.1 0.3
BMI categury 0.5 0.2 0.8
<25 kgy/m? 58(12) 37 (11) 12 (15) 9{12)
25-29.9 kg/m? 170 {34) 116 (34) 29 (36) 25 (33)
=30 kg/m? 268 (54) 187 (55) 40 (49) 41 (558)
Wais! cirgumlerance [cm} 1027 * 146 1033 > 145 102.1 £ 185 1008 £ 12.6 0s 14 0.4
Low ankle-brachial index® 72{15) 46 (14} 15 {19} 11 {15) 0.3 0.9 0.5
Kidney function measures
SCr {mg/dL) 1.88 = 0.63 1.95 * 0.65 1.78 =058 1.66 = 0.54 003  <0.001 <0.001
aGFR (mLfmin/1.73 m?) ME2 149 37.4 + 13.2 433175 456+ 169 =<0.001 <0001 <000
6GFR category 0.03 =«0,001 <0001
<306 mUfmin/1.73 m? 135(27) 105 (31) 19(23) 11(15)
30-<45 mU/minf1.73 m? 205 {41) 149 (44) 29 (36) 27 (36)
45260 mL/min/1.73 m? 114 {23) 67 (20 222N 25 (33)
=60 mU/mind1 .73 m? 43(9) 20 (6) 114} 12 (186)
{Continued)
216 Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58({2):214-227
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Table 1 {Cont’d). Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

P
| i
Mexican Puerto Rican Mexican
Overall American Amerlcan Other vs Puesto Mexican
Varlable {N = 497} {n = 341) (n=81) {n =75) Rigan  ws Other Overall
SCysC (mad) 16(1.3 21} 1.7(14,2.1} 15{1.2, 1.9} 1.3(1.2,1.7} <000 <000 <0.001
Participants with mGFR 214 {43) 145 (43} 35 (43) 34 (45) 0.8 0.7 09
lothalamate GFR 410 188 37.1 2150 463> 22.0 522 + 24.1 0004 <0.001 <0.001
Urine studies
24-h urine creatinine (g/d) 1.1 (0.8, 14) 1.1(0.8,1.4) 1.1({0.9, 1.4) 1.1 {0.8,1.3) 0.8 0.5 048
24-h urine protein (gid) 072 {0.12,3.25) 0.98 (019, 3.78) 0.39{D.11,1.90) 019{D.07,2.13) 0.05 0.08 0.05
Dlabetics 1.101(0.22, 4.32) 1.67 (0.26, 4.62} 067 (D.18, 2.16) 0.70 (013, 3.86) 0.2 06 04
Nondiabelics 0.26(0.07, 1.17) 0.67 (0.10, 1.73) 0.12 {0.06,0.41) 0.11 (0,05, 0.17) 0.1 01 0.07
UACR {mg/oi® 413 5 (29.8, 2,503.4) 659.9(47.9, 2,835.8) 220.6({24.6, 1,519.1} 73.6(12.5 1,692.3) 01 0.1 [+B]
Diabetics 830.0(70.1,3,377.5) 1137.5(77.2,3,613.7) 363.7(62.1, 2,305.0) 498.6 (64 0, 2,825.3) o2 0.4 0.3
Nondiabellcs 85.7 {10.6, B26.8) 262.2(21.2,877.7) 43.1(5.5,423.7) 16.7 (8.8, 79.1) 07 0.4 07
Lipoproteins
Tola! cholesters! (mg/dL) 1895 = 53.7 190.6 = 53.9 186.8 + 50.0 187.2 * 47.0 06 0.6 08
LDL chotesterol {mg/dt) 1037 = 40.0 103.6 £ 409 103.6 = 401 104.1 + 36.2 0.9 09 09
HDL chotestarol {mg/dL) 431 £ 12.8 42,3128 449+ 15,1 445113 04 0.2 02
Triglycoridas {mg/dL) 158.0 {120.0, 220.0) 157.0{124.0,231.0) 136.0(108.0, 201.0) 154.0(115.0, 217.0} 0.05 0.1 0.05
Hemoglobin Ay, (%) 70217 7018 72220 6817 0.3 0.3 0.3
Hemoglobin {g/dL} 121218 1M9*19 124216 126+18 0.02 0.002 0002
Bane metabetism
parameters
Calclum {mgfdL) 9005 89 x05 9.1%06 91=+05 0.02 0001 0.001
Phosphate {mg/dL) 4.0+07 41207 AT £07 3807 <0.001 =0.001  <0.001
PTH (pg/mL) £2.0 {41.0, 102.0) £7.2 (46.0, 105.1) 54.3(35.0, 89.0) 54.4(35.0,91.0) [+R| 0.008 002

Note: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median {25th, 75th percentile); categorical variables
are given as frequency (percantage). Conversion factors for units: SCrin mg/dl. to mmol/L, x88.4; total/l.DLHDL cholestero! in mg/dL
to mmaolL, x0.02588; hemoglobin in g/dL to g/L, % 10; calcium in mg/dL to mmol/L, x0.2495; phosphata in mg/dL to mmol/L, x0.3228;
no conversion necessary for PTH in pg/mL and ngll..

Abbreviations: BM!, body mass index; BP, blood pressure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insutficiency Cohonl; DBP, diastolic blood pressure,
eGFR, estimated glomerular filtration rate; GFR, glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufiiciency Cohort; HDL,
high-dansity lipoprotein; LDL, low-density lipoprotein; MAP, mean arterial pressure; mGFR, measured glomerular filtration rate; MI,
myocardial infarction; PTH, parathyroid hormone; PVD, peripheral vascular disease; SBP, systolic blood pressure; SCr, serum
creatinine; SCysC, serum cystatin C; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio; VA, Veterans Administration.

“Ankle-brachial index <0.9.
“Eight percent of values are missing.

and lack of health insurance were significantly
higher for Mexican Americans than Puerto Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans (7 < 0.02).
Mexican Amecricans more often spoke primarily
Spanish (76%) relative to other Hispanic groups
(~43%; P < 0.001). Compared with other Hispanic
subgroups, prevalences of diabetes and blood pres-
sure > 130/80 mm Hg were more frequent in Mexi-
can Americans. Mean e¢GFR was significantly lower
in Mexican Americans (37.4 mL/min/1.73 m?) com-
pared with Puerto Rican Americans (43.3 mL/min/
1.73 m?) and other Latin Americans (45.6 mL/min/
1.73 m?; P < 0.001), and measured GFR results for
select participants were consistent with these find-
mgs. Median 24-hour urine protein and spot urine
albumin-creatinine ratios were substantially higher
in Mexican Americans compared with Puerto Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans, and thesc
trends persisted in both the diabetic and nondia-

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58({2):214-227

betic subgroups. Coinpared with other Hispanic
subgroups, Mexican Americans had significantly
lower scrum hemoglobin and calcium and higher
serum phosphorus and total parathyroid hormone
values (P < 0.05).

Comparison With Non-Hispanic White and

Black CRIC Participants

Mean age was ~2 years younger in the 497 His-
panic H-CRIC/CRIC participams than in the 1,638
non-Hispanic white and 1,650 non-Hispanic black
CRIC participants (Table 2). Compared with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks, Hispanics more often had
low annual household incormne, low educational anain-
ment, lack of health insurance, 2nd less current and
former 1obacco use (P << (0.05), The prevalence of
diabetes was highest for Hispanics (67%), whercas
setf-reported history of myocardial infarction/prior
revascularization was least prevalent for Hispanics
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Table 2. Baseline Oemographic and Clinical Charactenistics of the H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With
Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants?

{

[

Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Varlable (n = 497) {n = 1,638} {n = 1,650) ve White vs Black
Age {y) 56.3 =117 589 *=11.0 58.1 £ 10.6 <0.001 0.001
Men 288 (58) 982 (60 806 (49) 0.4 «<0.001
Annual income <{.001 <{.001
=$20,000 313(63) 254 (16} 646 (39)
$20,001-$50,000 92 (19) 416 (25) 417 (25)
$50,001-5100,000 24 (5) 455 (28) 215{(13)
>$100,000 12 (&) 295 {18) 62 (4)
No response 56 (11) 218(13) (19
Education <0.001 <{.001
< 7th grade 183 (37} 71{0) 20(1)
7th-12th grade 110 (22 a3(5) 417 (25)
High s¢hool diploma 71(14) 291 (18) 366 (22)
Vocational degree 11 {2) 73({4) 102 (6)
Somae college 67 (13) 394 {24) 465 (28)
College graduate 35(7} 429 {26) 180 (11)
Graduate degree 201(4) 361 {22) 100 {(6)
Healih insurance <0.001 <0.001
Nong 113(23) 48 (3} 85 (6}
Medicaid/public aid 30016} 95 (6) 317 (19)
Any Medicare 119 {24} 561 (34) 488 {30)
YaA/military/Champus g2 73({4) 1107
Private/commerciat 67 (13) 290 {18) 190 {12)
Unknownfincomplete 47 (9) 423 {26) 216 (13)
Missing 62{13) 148 (9) 234 (14)
Primary language spoken <{.001 <0.001
English 86(17)
Spanish 327 (66)
Missing 84 (17} 1,638 {100} 1,650 (100}
Tobacco use
Current smoker 29(6) 155 (9) 32001 0.01 <(.001
=100 cigarettes 218 (44) 920 (56) 955 (58) <(0.001 <0.001
Medical history
Hypenension 443 {89) 1,293 (79) 1,533 (93) <0.001 0.006
Diabetes 334 (67) 649 {a0) 848 (51} <D.001 <0.001
Mifpricr revasculanization 80(18) 376 (23} 361 (22) 0.02 0.07
Heart failure az(n 177 217 (13) 0.8 <0.001
PVD 35(7) 105 {6} 117 {7) 0.6 0.9
SBP {mm Hg) 136.0 £ 23.7 1218 = 186 132.9 + 231 <0.001 £.009
DBP {mm Hg) 726128 69.0+11.4 738 >138 <{0.001 0.08
MAP {mm Hg) 93,7 =143 866 =118 935 =147 <0.001 08
BPF >130/80 mm Hg 307 (62) 573 (35) 942 (57) «<0.01 0.05
Weight (kg) 84.7 = 201 805+ 227 95.8 x24.3 <0.001 =<{.001
BM{ (kg/m?) 31666 N2+76 334283 0.2 <G.001
BM? category <0.001 <{.001
<26 kg/m? 5812} 310 (19 217 (13)
25-28.9 kg/m? 170 {34} 517 {32} 3784{23)
=30 kg/m? 268 (54) 809 {49) 1048 (64)
Waist circumferance (cm) 1027 2 146 105.4 = 17.8 1080 = 18.2 0.003 <0.001
Low ankle-brachial index™ 72{15) 206 (13) 333 (20% 0.2 0.007
{Continued)
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Table 2 (Cont'd). Basseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRICHispanic CRIC Participants Comparad With
Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants®

L
Hispanic Mon-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n = 497) (n = 1,638} {n = 1,650} vs White vs Black
Kidney function measures
SCr (mg/dL) 1.88 = 0.83 1.59 = 0.46 1.87 = (.63 <0.001 0.8
eGFR (mL/min/1.73 m®) 36149 462+ 147 437 + 14,9 <0.001 <0.001
eGFR category <{3.001 <0.001
<30 mL/min/1.73 m? 135 (27} 245 (15) 322 (20)
30-<45 mUmin/1.73 m? 205 (41) 570 (35) 607 (37)
45-<60 ml/min/1.73 m? 114 {23} 532 (32) 485 (30)
=60 mL/min/1.73 m? 43(9) 291 (18) 226 (14)
SCysC (mg/L) 1.6{1.3,21) 1.3{1.1,1.7) 1.4{1.1,1.9) <0.001 <0.001
Participants with mGFR 214 (43 585 (36) 525 (32) 0003 <0.001
lothalamate GFR 41.0* 188 509+ 203 471193 <0.001 <0.001
Urine studies
24-h urine creatinine (g/d) 1.1 {0.8, 1.4) 1.3(1.0,1.7) 1.3{0.9,1.7) <(.001 <(.001
24-h uring protein {g/d} 0.72(0.32,3.25) 0.12 (0.07,0.51) 0.24 (0.08, 1.07} <0.001 <0.001%
Diabetics 1.10(0.22, 4.32) 0.21 (0.08, 0.90) 0.42 (0.10, 1.63} <0.00% <0.001
Nondiabetics 0.26 (0.07,1.17) 0.0% (0.06, 0.28) 0.14 (0.07, 0.63) <0.00% <0.001
UACR (mg/g)® 413,5(29.8, 2,503 4) 24.5({6.1, 208.1) 76.9(11.4, 518.9) <0.001 <0.001
Diabetics 830.0(70.1, 3,377.5) 68.1(14.4, 454.2) 174.9 (204, 975.2) <0.001 <0.001
Nondiabetics 85.7 (10.4, 826.8) 13.2(5.0,98.2) 32.5(7.7, 237.5) <0.001 <0.001
Lipoproteing
Total cholesteral {mg/dL) 189.5 = 53.7 1801 = 419 185.6 * 45.7 <0.001 0.1
LDL cholesterof {mg/dL} 103.7 = 40.0 99.4 = 321 106.1 > 37.2 0.01 0.2
HDL cholesterol (mg/dL) 431 z12.9 47.1x15.2 49.3 + 161 <0.001 <0.001
Triglycerides {mg/dL} 158.0 (120.0, 228.0) 133.0(91.5, 183.0) 112.0(83.0, 160.0} <0.001 <0.01
Hemoglebin A, (%) 7017 6313 69+ 1.7 <0.001 0.3
Hemoglabin {gidl} 121=19 132217 122+1.7 <0.001 0.2
Bone metabolism
parameters
Calgiurn (mg/dL} 9.0=05 92=x05 9.2+05 <0.001 «<0.0M
Phosphate (mg/dL} 4007 3606 38x07 <0.001 <0.001
PTH {pg/mL} 62.0 (41.0,102.0) 43.0(30.4, 68.6) 67.2 (41.2, 114.8) <0.001 0.0

Note: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median (25th, 75th percentile); categorical variables

ara given as frequency (percentage). Conversion factors for units: SCrin mg/dL to mmolfL, x88.4; total/LDU/HDL cholesterol in mg/fdL
fo mmol/t, x0.02586; hemoglobin in g/dL to ¢/, X 10; calcium in mg/dL to mmolfl, X 0.2495; phosphate in mg/dL to mmol/L, x0.3229;
no conversion necessary for PTH in pg/mL and ng/l..

Abbreviations: 8MI, body mass index; BP, blood pressure; GRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohart, DBP, diastolic bload pressurs;
eGFR, estimated glomerular filiration rate; GFR, glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; HDL,
high-density lipoprotein; LDL, low-density lipoprotein; MAP, mean arterial pressure; mGFR, measured glomerular filtration rate; M1,
myocardial infarction; PTH, parathyroid hormone; PVD, peripheral vascular disease; SBP, systolic blood pressure; SCr, serum

creatining; SCysC, serum cystatin C; UACR, urine albumnin-creatinine ratio; VA, Vatarans Administration.

“Ankle-brachial index <0.9.
®Four percent missing values.

(18%). The prevalence of self-reported hypertension
for Hispanics (89%) was between that for non-
Hispanic whites (79%) and blacks (93%), whereus
blood pressure > 130/80 mm Hg at cohort cntry was
more common for Hispanics {62%) than non-His-
panic whitcs {(35%) and non-Hispanic blacks (57%;
P < 0.03). Mean glycosylated hemoglobin level in
Hispanics (7.0%) was significantly higher than in
non-Hispanic whites {6.3%; P < 0.03) and similar to
that in non-Hispanic blacks (6.9%; £ > 0.05). Mcuaa

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

¢GFR was significantly lower in Hispanics (39.6
mi./min/1.73 m?) compared with non-Hispanic whites
(46.2 mL/min/1.73 m?) and blacks (43.7 mL/min/1.73
m? P < (.00)), and measured GFR resulls for select
participants were consistent with these findings. Me-
dian 24-hour urine protein and spot urine albumin-
creatinine ratios were substantially higher in Hispan-
ics compared with non-Hispanic whites and blacks,
and these trends persisied in both the diabetic and
nondiabetic subgroups (P < 0.001). Lipoprotein lev-
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Table 3. Baseline Frequency of ACEI/ARB Use in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and

Black CRIC Participants
P
| 1
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanlc Hispanic
Variable {n = 497) {n = 1,638) {n = 1,650) va White vs Black Overall
Cverall 67% (332/483} 57% (1,088/1,627) 71% (1,164/1,638) 0.8 6.1 0.03
Control of BP
=>130/80 mm Hg 62% (189/305) 70% (397/567) 70% (650/934) 0.02 o.01 0.03
=130/80 mm Hg 76% (140/184) 65% (689/1,057) 73% (507/696) 0.004 0.4 <0.001
Presence of diabetes
Yes 72% (238/331) 81% (524/645) 80% (678/843) <0.001 0.001 0.001
No 58% (94/162) 57% (564/982) 61% (486/795) 09 0.5 0.3
Dagree of proteinuria
=03 g/d 67% (172/258) 78% (384/493) 73% (510/701) <0.001 007 3.003
=0.3g/d 71% {110/154) 62% {67111,087) 70% (574/822) 0.02 0.7 <0.001
eGFR level
<30 mL/min/1,73 m? 60% (81/135} 75% (183/244) 67% {215/322) 0.002 02 0.008
30-<45 ml/min/1.73 m? V4% (149/202) 73% (412/567} 74% (447/605) 08 09 0.9
45-<60 mL/min/t.73 m? 72% (81/113} 68% (358/526) 75% (367/489) 0.5 05 (.05
=60 mL/min/1.73 m? 49% (21/43) 47% (135/290) 61% {135/222} 0.8 01 0.04

Note: Statistical comparisons made within clinical subgroup strata {(eg, eGFR level) across racefethnicity.
Abbreviations: ACEI, angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitor; ARB, angiotensin receptor blocker; BP, blood pressure; CRIG,
Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; eGFR, estimated glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cchort.

els, hermoglobin concentrations, and bone metabolisim
parameters were less favorable in Hispanics com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites and similar to those
in non-Hispanic blacks.

Baseline Frequency of ACE-I/ARB Use

Overall, use of angiciensin-converting cnzyme
(ACE)-inhibitor or angiotensin receptor blocker (ARB)
medications was not significantly different among
H-CRIC/CRIC participants (Table 3). However, for
important subgroups. including those with blood pres-
sure >130/80 mm Hg. diabetes, or urnc protcin
excretion >0.3 g/d, Hispanics consistently had the
lowest receipt of ACE-inhibitor/ARB therupy com-
pared with non-Hispanic whiles and blacks (£ <
0.05).

Bload Pressure by eGFR and Albuminuria Strata

Across all eGFR categories and albuminuria strata,
the proportion of participants with blood pressure
>130/80 mm Hg was significantly higher {for Hispan-
ics compared with non-Hispanic white participants
(P < 0.05; Table 4). However, only in eGFR <30
mL/min/1,73 m? strata was the percentage of Hispan-
ics with blood pressure >>130/80 mm Hg significantly
higher than that of non-Hispanic blacks (P < 0.05),
whereas this percentage was not significantly differ-
ent between these 2 groups for all other ¢GFR stratis.
No significant differences were found between propor-
tions of Hispanic and non-Hispanic blacks with blood
pressure > | 30/80 mm Hg across atbuminuria strata.

220

Laboratory Parameters by eGFR and
Albuminuria Strata

Across all cGFR categorics and albuminuria strata,
Hispanic participants had significantly lower serum so-
diusn and bicarbonate levels than non-Hispanic whites
and blacks (# << 0.05). whereas less pronounced differ-
ences cxisted for serum polassium levels among these
groups (Tablc 5). There were no significant differences
in hemoglobin levels between Hispanics and nen-
Hispanic blacks, but levels were significantly lower in
Hispanics compared with non-Hispanic whiles across
eGFR and albuminuria valees {(F < 0.05). Calciem
levels were lower and serum phosphorus levels were
higher in Hispanics versus non-Hispanics with eGFR
<45 mb/min/1.73 m® or albumin-creatinine ratio =30
mg/g (P < 0.05). Total intact parathyroid hormone
levels for Hispanics generally were significantly higher
than for non-Hispanic whites, but lower than for non-
Hispanic blacks across ¢GFR and albuminuria levels.
Serum albumin level consisiently was the lowest in
Hispanics compared with non-Hispanics regardless of
eGFR or albuminuria group.

DISCUSSION

We found that in participants with CKI) in the CRIC
and H-CRIC Studies, Hispanics were disproportionately
burdened with lower sociocconomic status, more fre-
guent diabeies mellitus, worse blood pressure control,
lower receipt of ACE-inhibitor/ARB medications, and
more severe CKD compared with non-Hispanic whites

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011,58(2).214-227
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Table 4. BP in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants

P
| 1
Hispanig Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variakle {n = 497) {n = 1,638) {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
¢GFR Strata
eGFR <30 (h = 702)
SBP {mm Hg) 1423+ 23.0 1234+ 204 135.0 = 251 <0.001 0.004
DBP {mm Hg}) 731127 664 120 716+ 14.0 <(.001 03
MAP {mm Hg} 962 = 14.14 85.4 £ 12.7 927 *153 <0.001 0.03
B8R »130/B0 mmHg 98 (73) 84 (35) 191 (60) <(.001 0.008
eGFR 30-<45 (n = 1,282}
SBP {mm Hg) 137.1 + 243 1238 = 1941 134.7 £ 23.8 <{0.001 02
DBP {mm Hg) 7201289 68.1 =111 73.1*+13.7 <{(.001 0.4
MAP (mm Hg) 937+ 145 866116 937151 <G.001 03
BP >130/80 mm Hg 126 {62} 216 (38} 349 (58) <(.001 0.3
eGFR 45-<60 (n = 1,141)
SBP [mm Hag) 130.8 £ 229 1216 = 184 117210 <0.001 0.7
DBP {mm Hg) 721133 702+114 740+ 132 0.1 0.2
MAFR {mm Hg) 97144 874 120 932+ 136 <{0.001 0.3
BP >130/80 mm Hg 62 (55) 192 (36} 291 {59) <(.001 04
eGFR 260 (n = 560)
SBP (mm Hag) 1255+ 18.8 1169 = 154 127.8 220 0.001 05
DBP (mm Hg) 747> 114 706 =111 782142 0.02 0.1
MAP (mm Hg) 916129 86.0 £ 10.9 948+ 155 0.002 0.2
BP >130/80 mm Hyg 21 (49) 81(28) 111 (50) 0.005 0.9
Albuminuria Strata
UACR <30 mog/g (n = 1,564)
SBP {mm Hg} 1220+ 206 118.0+ 163 124.1 £ 19.4 0.02 ¢.3
DBP {mm Hg} 67.3 % 121 678 =107 707 £ 125 0.7 0.009
MAP (mm Hq) 855+ 13.2 845+ 10.7 88.5+130 0.3 .03
BP >130/80 mm Hg 44 (38} 228 {27) 255 (42) 0.01 05
UACR 30-<300 mg/g (n = 955)
SBP {mm Hg} 133.2+ 200 1229+ 185 1326 x 22.2 <0.001 08
DBP {mm Hg} 696 11.9 683114 736+ 14.0 0.3 0.01
MAP (mm Hg) 208+ 126 865116 932+ 146 0.001 01
BF >130/80 mm Hg 51 (54} 148 (36) 247 (56) 0.001 0.7
UACR 2300 mgig (n = 1,110)
SBP {mm Hg) 1432 £ 22.6 1298+ 21.2 143.2 = 231 <0.001 08
DEP (mrm Ho) 76.0+ 123 725=x122 ¥7.2+139 <{.001 03
MAP {mm Hg) 984 + 134 g16*129 982 x 142 <0.001 05
BP >130/80 mm Hg 185 (75) 183 (57) 395 {76) <0.001 0.8

Note: Conlinuous variables are represented by mean =
{percentage). eGFR given in mL/min/1.73 m?,

standard deviation; categorical variables are given as {requency

Abbraviations: BP, blood prassure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; DBPR, diastolic blood pressure; eGFR, estimated
glomerular fittration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohorl; MAP, mean anerial pressure; SBP, systolic blood

prassure; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio.

and blacks. In particular, in the setting of CKD, Mexican
Americans had cspecially unfavorable sociodemo-
graphic and clinical paramcters relative to Puerto Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans. Even when level
of eGIFR was taken into account, Hispanics with CKD
more oflen had uncontrolled bloed pressure, lower se-
rum hemoglobin levels, and worse metabolic and bone
metabolism parameters than non-Hispanic whites and
blacks.

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

In contrast Lo prior reports and studies that focused
chiefly on populations with ESRD,?* this work is on¢
of the few systematic evaluations of CKD in Hispan-
ics, who constitute a growing high-risk population
well known to be affected by health disparitics.>' %
The CRIC and H-CRIC Studics were designed 1o
examine prospectively risk factors for CKD progres-
sion and cardiovascular discase incidence and progres-
sion in a large diverse representative cohort of indi-
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Table 5. Laboratory Parameters in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Cempared With Non-Hispanic White and Black

CRIC Participants
P
| ]
Hispanic MHon-Hispanlc White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispankc
Variable {n =497) {n = 1,638} {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
eGFR Strata
eGFR <30 (n = 702)
Sodium (mmol/L) 1381 =29 1398+ 29 1398+ 31 <0.001 <0.001
Potassium {mma¥l) 46> 06 46> 05 4.5+086 0.5 0.004
CO, (mmoli) 217+35 230+33 227 *34 <0.001 0.003
Hemoglobin {g/dL} 11518 12316 115216 <0.001 0.7
Calcium {mg/dL) 88 =06 92205 9106 <0.001 <0.001
Phosphate {mg/dL) 4.4+ 07 4.0+ 08 4207 <0.001 0.09
Total PTH {pg/mL) 102.7 (73.1,171.3) 79.2(50.6, 126.4) 133.6{81.3,212.6) 0.006 <0.001
Serum albumin {g/dL) 36+05 40% 04 3805 <0.001 <0.001
eGFR 30-<45 {n = 1,382)
Sodium (mmol/L) 137.9 + 3.0 1231229 1400 3.2 <0.001 <0.001
Potassium (mmolfL) 4.4+05 45x05 43+05 02 0.04
CO, (mmol/L) 228+28 243+28 245* 32 <0.001 <0.001
Hemaglobin (g/dl) 1817 13017 11.9+186 <0.001 02
Calcium (mg/dL) 89+05 82+05 92+05 <0.001 «<0.001
Phosphate (mg/dL) 40+07 37106 38=06 «<0.001 <0.001
Total PTH [pg/mL) 59.5{44.0, 95.0) 48.0 (32.0,76.0) 75.3 (48.9, 118.5} 0.09 <0.01
Serum albumin (g/dt) 36+05 40x04 39+05 <0.601 <0.001
aGFR 45-<60 {n = 1,141}
Sodium {mmol/L) 138.3 = 31 1393+ 3.0 139.5 = 31 0.002 <0.001
Potassiurm {(mmol/L) 4305 43+05 41 =05 0.4 0.002
CO, (mmolil) 240x29 251 =28 25.7 %30 <0.001 <0.001
Ramaoglobin (g/dl) 128+ 21 34186 125+ 1.6 <0.0M 0.08
Calcium {mg/dL) 91 x05 93x04 92>05 0.01 0.08
Phosphate (mg/dL} 3606 35+05 36086 0.09 0.8
Total PTH {pg/mL}) 51.0{37.0, 66.0) 353.0(28.5,54.0) 52.2 {36.0,77.9} «(.001 0.05
Serum albumin (g/dL) 3806 4104 40x04 =001 (.008
eGFR =60 (n = 560
Sodium (mmol/L) 1377+ 25 138.7 = 3.0 139.3+ 286 0.04 <{2.001
Potassium {mmol/L}) 42+05 42+04 41 *04 0.3 0.3
CO, (mmoli} 248x34 255= 30 25628 0.1 0.1
Hemoglohin {g/dL) 13016 137216 18116 £.003 0.8
Calciumn {mg/dL) 5105 9104 93+04 0.4 0.004
Phosphate {mg/dL) 37=05 3405 35+ 086 <0.001 0.09
Total PTH (pg/mL) 40.9 (27.0,49.7} 35.0(26.0,45.0) 38.0(28.5, 55.6) 03 0.4
Serum afbumin {g/dL} 38+08 4.0+ 04 40+04 0.02 0.02
Albuminurla Strata
UACR <30 mg/g (n = 1,564}
Sodium (mmol/L) 138329 1391 = 3.0 1398+ 3.3 0.005 <0.00
Potassium {mmol/L} 43=+05 4305 42+05 05 0.03
CO, (mmollL) 239+33 251 %29 25.4 =31 <0.001 <0.001
Hemoglobin (g/dL) 12415 13415 124 %16 <0.001 0.7
Calciom {mg/dL) 893x04 9305 9305 0.7 0.2
Phosphata {mg/dL) 3705 35+ 06 3708 0.004 0.9
Total PTH {pg/mL) 49.0 (35.0,63.0) 38.0(27.1,54.1) 52.0(35.0, 77.8) 0.1 0.03
Serum albumin {g/dL} 4.0+04 4.1 =04 41*04 0.04 0.4
UACR 30-<300 mg/g (n = 855}
Sodium {mmol/L) 1383227 13933 139.8 > 3.0 £.005 <{0.001
Potassium {mmol/L} 4406 44+05 43205 0.4 (.06
CO, (mmoliL} 23132 241> 30 24434 0.003 <0001
{Continued)
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Table 5 (Cont'd). Laboratory Parameters in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIG Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and Black

CRIC Participants
P
[ 1
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanlc
Varlable {n =497) {n = 1,638) (n =1,650) vs White vs Black
Hemeoglobin {g/dL) 12220 131 1.7 12318 <{.001 o7
Catcium {mg/dL) 91+05 92=*05 8205 ¢.01 0.008
Phasphate {mg/dL) 3%:07 3607 A7+0¢6 <{0.001 ¢.02
Total PTH (pg/mL) 57.7 (34.0,90.0) 49.3{32.0,743) 69.4 {43.1, 125.0) 0.04 0.005
Serum atbumin {g/dL) 3904 4104 40+ 0.4 <0.001 0.02
UACR 2300 mg/g (n = 1,110}
Sodium (mmol/L} 137.9 + 31 139.2 28 1365+ 30 «<0.001 <0.001
Potassium (rmmol/L) 45+ 08 4505 43*05 0.09 0.009
CO, (mmoliL) 225+ 32 24.0 = 3.1 240+ 34 <(.001 <{.001
Hemoglobin {g/dL} 11820 127 x18 11917 <(.001 08
Calcium (mg/dL} 88+05 9105 8005 <.001 <0.001
Phosphats (mg/dL) 42+08 3808 4007 <{.001 <0.001
Total PTH (pg/mL) 81.2(50.5, 117.0) 60.1 (36.9, 98.4} 92.04{55.7, 157.0) 0.06 <0.001
Serum atbumin {g/dL} 35>05 3805 A7x056 <<(.001 <0.001

Mote: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median {25th, 75th percentile). eGFR given in
mL/min/4.73 m2. Conversion factors for units: hemoglobin in g/dL to g/L, X10; calcium in mg/dL to mmol/L, X0.2485; phosphate in
mg/dL to mmolL, »0.3229; albumin in gfdl to g/L, X10; no conversion necessary for PTH in pg/ml. and ng/L.

Abbreviations: CO,, carbon dioxide; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohart; eGFR, estimated glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC,
Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohori; PTH, parathyroid hormone; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio.

viduals with CKD."”"'® By capturing a wide array of
data for a broad range of demographic factors and
clinical exposures, the H-CRIC and CRIC Studics
will further elucidate reasens for health disparitics in
Hispanics with CKD and inform clinical trials of
therapeutic interventions that potentialty may lead to
improvements in clinical outcomes.?®

A few prior studies cxamined differences in the
burden of CKD between Hispanics and non-Hispan-
ics. Although analyses from NHANES (National
Health and Nutrition Examination Survey) have found
the prevalence of eGFR <60 mL/min/1.73 m* (o be
similar in Mecxican Americans and non-Hispanic
whites, they gencrally have noted a higher prevalence
of micro- and macroalbuminuria.®®'
hort of adults with stages 3-4 CKD from Kaiser
Permanente of Northern California, higher levels of
proteinuria also were observed in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanic whites, which is consistent with
our observations in the H-CRIC/CRIC Studies.” Less
is known about complications of CKD. Similar 10 cur
findings, a recent analysis from NHANES found that
scveral metabolic abnormalities, including those in-
volving hemoglobin, phosphorus, potassium, and bhi-
carbonaic, were more coenman in Hispanic than white
adults with ¢cGFR <60 mL/min/1.73 m®*® Differ-
ences in sociocconomic status may explain some of
these observed differences. For example, 2 recent
studics found that low sociocconomic stalus was
associated strongly with higher serum phosphorus
levels in adults with CKID regardless of race/ethnic-

Am J Kigney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

®In a large co--

ity.*>*" The impact of these complications on health
outcomes will be assessed in future longitudinal anal-
ySes.

Optimal control of blood pressure and use of reno-
protective medications also were found to be inferior
in Hispanics compared with non-Hispanic whites in
H-CRIC/CRIC despite evidence supporting these mea-
sures 1o attenuate CKD progression.'® Simitar pat-
terns of greater uncontrolled blood pressure in Hispan-
ics with and without CKD also have been observed in
samples from NHANES?®7? and MESA (Multi-
Ethnic Study of Atherosclerosis),” which appear due
in part to socioeconomic differences. Only one prior
study has cxamined the relationship beiween race/
cthnicity and ACE-inhibitor/ARB use in individuals
at high risk of progressive CKD. Of almost 40,000
diabetic adults in the Kaiser Permanente of Northern
California Diabetes Registry, 39% of Latinos received
an ACE inhibitor/ARB, including 54% with albumin-
uria, and this proportion was aot significantly differ-
ent from that observed for whites.™ Although we ob-
served a similar proportion of Hispanics recciving ACE
mhibitors/ARBs in H-CRIC/CRIC overall, we found
that Hispanics had significantly lower receipt of these
medications in high-risk groups {cg. diabetes, proicin-
uria, and blood pressure >130/80 mm Hg) compared
with non-Higpanic whites and blacks. In addition to local
clinical practice patterns, the lower prevalence of health
insurance in Hispanics in H-CRIC/CRIC likely contrib-
utes to these observed differences. Although not specifi-
cally evaluated in regard to catcgories of race and ethnic-
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ity, lack of health insurance has been associated with
decreased access to regular care, worse control of hyper-
tension, and lcss receipt of ACE inhibitors/ARBs in
adults with diabetes and CKD.**~° Becausc of its robust
data collection, future H-CRIC/CRIC analyses will delin-
cate the relationships between racefethnicity, socioeco-
nomic status (eg, income, health insurance, and access to
health care), risk factors for CKD, and CKD progres-
sion.

There is notable heterogeneity among Hispanics in
the United States with regard to race, country of
origin, language, health belicfs, and social customs.™
The H-CRIC and CRIC Studies also afford an initial
examination of differences among subgroups of His-
panics with CKD, finding that Mexican Americans
had more severe CKD (ie, lower eGFRs and higher
proteinuria), a disproportionate burden of unfavorable
CKD risk factors, and a higher prevalence of CKD-
related metabolic complications compared with Pucrto
Rican Amcricans and other Latin Americans, Only a
few prior studics have investigated differences in
CKD parameters and outcomes among Hispanic sub-
groups. In a prospective observational study of nearly
5,000 Hispanics recciving long-term dialysis therapy,
Mexican Americans were found to have significantly
lower mortality than their Puerto Rican American
counterparts over 2 ycars.:‘8 Analysis of NHANES
data showed that Cuban Americans were more likely
10 have an estimated creatinine clearance <60 mL/min/
1.73 m” compared with Mexican Americans or Puerto
Ricans.* Recently, findings from MESA showed that
although Puerto Ricans had levels of albuminuria
similar to non-Hispanic whites, Mexicans and Domini-
cans had much higher albuminuria than whites, which
appeared 10 be related to the heterogeneity in genetic
admixture between European, African, and Native
Amcrican ancestry in these groups.®*® Further analyses
are needed to betier understand the diversity among
Hispanic subgroups in the United States and delineate
the clinical implications of these baseline findings.

The causes of racial and ethnic inequitics amang
individuals with CKD are speculated to be of diverse
origins, including patient- {eg, biological, sociocco-
nomic, and environmental), provider- (eg, bias and
communication), and healih carc system—related (cg,
access to services) factors.?22® Reasons for these
reported disparitics in Hispanics have been examined
infrequently. Some have argued that differences in
sociodemographic and recognized clinical factors ac-
count for much of observed disparitics in health
outcomes.”” Others have contended that intrinsic bio-
logical and genetic predispositions toward CKD and
1ts complications, along with differeniial responses 10
treatment, may contribute substantially to these dispari-
tics for Hispanics.” Morcover, few studics have incor-
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porated detailed data for socioeconomic status, health
insurance, and access to care.™® Of those that did, the
observed disparities in regard to higher rates of ESRD
in Hispanics appear to be explained only partially by
these factors.” By virtue of their prospective longitudi-
nal design and detailed collection of patient-level
data, the H-CRIC and CRIC Studics arc poised to
identify additional genetic, biological, and sociocul-
tural factors thal contribute 10 racial/fcthnic differ-
cnces in CKD-related outcornes.

As in other obscrvational analyses, inferences re-
garding causality are limited by residual bias and
confounding. However, method straicgics have been
adopted to minimize these concerns.'”*'® Another po-
tential limitation pertains te the gencralizability of
findings from CRIC and H-CRIC participants. As
previously described,'”'® the CRIC cohort over-
sampled certain subgroups (ie, African Amertcans)
and recruiled participants from select gecographic sites
and therclore is not a population-bascd sample like
the NHANES CKD cohort. Similarly, mest Hisparnic
participanis in CRIC/H-CRIC were Mexican Ameri-
cans {69%)} and were recruited from the Chicago
metropolitan area (85%). Although many character-
istics of our Hispanic cohort, including country of
origin, cducation, income, and primary language,
are similar to representative samples, such as those
in NHANES 2"*"2 j{ is importani to recognize that
our Hispanic cohort does not include robust repre-
sentation from all Hispanic subgroups and geo-
graphic regions of the United States. Therefore,
findings reported here may not fully generalize to
all US Hispanics with CKD. Last, although a recent
study has indicated that the CKD-EPI equation for
eGFR is relatively accurate for Hispanics,*® this
equation has not been validated in large diverse
samples of Hispanics. Hence, ¢GFR findings re-
ported here across racial/ethnic groups may be
subject to hias.

In conclusion, Hispanics with CKD in the CRIC/H-
CRIC Studies arc disproportionately burdened with
lower sociocconomic status, more frequent diabetes
mellitus, worse blood pressure control, lower receipt
of ACE-inhibitor/ARB medications, and more severe
CKD with disproportionate associated metabolic com-
plications than thcir non-Hispanic white and black
counterparts. The consequences of these observed
differences across racial and cthnic groups are less
clear. Although multiple studies have found an in-
creased burden of adverse sociodemographic charac-
teristics, clinical risk factors, and ESRD in Hispanics
comparcd with whites,>**1%%% 5 decreased risk of
cardiovascular cvents and death in Hispanics with
CKD and ESRD has been observed,”?*2” which
is consistent with a phenomenon obscrved clsewhere
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called the Hispanic paradox.** Therefore, longitudinal
analyses are critically needed to fully examine the
impact of these baseline health disparities as potential
mediators of racial/ethnic variation in CKD-related
clinical outcomes. lmproving our understanding of
the causcs and conscquences of health disparities in
Hispanics with CKD has the potential to allow us to
more effectively identify and address barriers to health
care and improve outcomes for this population,?*+
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U.S. Census Bureau
AMERICAN ' o
FactFlnder O . | "

QT-P3 Race and Hispanic or Latino Origin: 2010

2010 Census Summary File 1

NQTE: For infarmation on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, and definitions, see hitp:/fiwww.census.goviprod/cen2010/doc/sft pdf.

Geography: Villa Park village, Ninois

S “Subject "~ 7 Number” Percent |
RACE t
“Total population ’ " 21,904 100.0
One race j 21,420 9?.81
" white ) ' 17,741 81.0
Black or African American 933{ 4.32
American Indian and Alaska Native Bl 67 0.3
American indian, specified [1] 28[ 0.1‘
Mlaska Native, specified [1) ) 0 0.0,
Both American Indian and Alaska Native, specified 0 0.0
! American Indian or Alaska Native, not specified | a9 0_2|
Asian 1.141] 5.2
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 1 0.0
Some Other Race 1 53?| 70
" Two or More Races 484 . 2.2
Two races with Some Other Race 155’ ) 0.8
Two races wilhout Some Other Race 281" 13
Three or more races with Some Other Race J 0{ Do
Three or more races without Some Other Race 18 0.1
HISPANIC OR LATING ' 1
' Total population E 21,904 100.0
Hispanic or Latino {of any race) i’ 3,894 178
" Mexican e 1 3215 14.7
Puerto Rican [ 235 1.1
Cuban i 78 0.4
Other Hispanic or Latina [2) ' 366 17
Not Hispanic or Latino : 18,010 82.2
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO i '
f Tolal population b 21,904 100.0
One race 21,4205 978
Hispanic or Latine 3,703 16.9
Mot Hispanic or Lating E 17,77, BO.QI
Twe or More Races 484 22
Hispanic or Lating 191 0.9'
Not Hispanic or Latino ' 293 1_3!

X Not applicable.

[1] "American Indian, specified” includes people who provided a specific American Indian tribe, such as Navajo or Blackfeet. “Alaska Native, specified”
includes people who provided a specific Alaska Nalive group, such as Inupiat or Yup'ik,

§2] This category is comprised of people whose origins are from the Dominican Republic, Spain, and Spanish-speaking Ceniral or South American
countries. It also includes general origin responses such as “Laling” or "Hispanic.”

Scurce: U.S, Cansus Bureau, 2010 Census.

Summary Filg 1, Tables P53, P8, PCT4, PCT3, PCTE, and PCT11,

1 0of1 027222012
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U.S. Census Bureau

AMERICAN

FactFinder O\

QT-P3

Census 2000 Summary Fite 1 (SF 1} 100-Percent Data

Race and Hispanic or Latino: 2000

NOTE: For information on canfidentiality prolection, nonsampling error, definitions, and count corrections see
hitp:#factiindar.census. govihomefen/dalanctes/expsf1u.him.

7 Subject

kace
E Total papulation
‘ One race
White
Black or African American
[ American tndian and Alaska Native
American Indian
Alaska Native
Bolh American Indian and Alaska Native
American Indian or Alaska Native, not specified
Asian T
F Asian Indian
Chinese
Filipine
Japangse
Korean
“Vigtnamese
Other Asian category
Two or more Asian calegarios
‘Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander
Native Hawaiian
Samoan
Guamanian or Chamorro
Other Pacific Islander category

Two or more Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific
slander cateqories
i Some other race

Two of more races
“Two races including Some other race

21

=g —z = =

T

IMONG Faces
F Two races excluding Some other race

Three or more races
HISPANIC OR LATINO
Total poputation
Hispanic or Latino (of any race)
Maxican
|»' Puerto Rican
Cuban
Other Hispanic or Latino
H Not Hispanic or Lalino
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATING
Total population

Cne race

Hispanic or Lating

1 of 2

Two races excluding Some other race, and three or

g

el

|

—_— e e e e ——— p— —

Hllinois
Number

12,419,203
12,184,277;
9,126,471
1.575,a7sf
31,006
1?,466‘
223
6!
13311)
423,503‘
124,723
76,725
86,298,
20,379
51,453
19,501
38,786
6,138)
4810
1,003
1,062,
988’
1532
25|
722,712
235,015}
120,214!
114,802

103,755
11,047}
12,419,293}
1,530,262
1,444,390}
157,851 =
18,438;
209,563
10.889.031i

12.419,2933
12,184,277,
1,448,242

- I,
Percent

1000,

98.1
735
16.1
0.2
‘01 ['
0.0,
0.0
o.1f
34
10
0.6
0.7
02
04
0.2]
03
0.0‘
0.0
o.o{
0.0
00!
00
00’
55
19!
10
09!

i
08

0.1!
~

100,0:

12.3
!

9.2
it

1.3

v

0.11
1.7

a;r:l

100.0
98.1]
117

1
22,075
21 ,705[
1 9,6?9'{

369,
g
1

25

19,305I

I

22,0?5I

21,705
2,668,

Villa Park viltage, Blinols__{

Numher Percent

100.0
98.3
89.1

1.7
0.2}
0.1
0.0:
0.0
0.1l
3.6
1.9
0.3
0.?:
0,1|
0.2,
01l
0.4]
0.0,
0.0:
0.
00
0.0,
00
0.0

3.7
17
0.7
10,

10,
0.0

100.0.
12.5°
10.5°

06
6.3
1.4,
8?.51

1000,
98.3|
124

022212012
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Subject

Not Hispanic or Lalino
Two or more races

Hispanic or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

{X}) Not applicable.

Ninois
_Ndniber
10,735,035
235.096
81,020
153,996

" Vitla Park village, Hlinois

Percent
86.4l
1 .9i
0.7
1 _2[

Number -E_ Percent

1,037
3?01
102
268

36.2%
1.7
O.SE
1.2

Source; U.5. Census Bureau, Census 2000 Summary File 1, Matrices P3, P4, PCT4, PCT5, PCTS, and PCT11,

2 of 2
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U.S. Census Bureau _
AMURICAN
FactFinder Q\ ~ | | *

QT-P3 Race and Hispanic or Latino Origin: 2010

2010 Census Summary File 1

NOTE: For information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, and definitions, see hitpJ/fwww. census.govprodicenZ010/oc/si1.paf.

Geography: Addison village, lllinols

[ S ‘Subject | Number " Percent 2
RACE |
! Tolal population : 36,942 100.0°
Qne race l 35,941 9?.3'.
p White . 24,962 67.6!
Black or African American ' 1,441 ] 39
E: American Indian and Alaska Native \ 198 0.5
American Indian, specified [1] 63' 0.2
Alaska Native, specified {1] . ) ol © 0.0
Both American Indian and Alaska Native, specified \ ol - 0.0
& American Indian or Alaska Native, not specified 135 0.4
Asian , 2,?30{ 7.4
I Nalive Hawaitan and Other Pacific Islander n 3 0.0
Some Other Race ‘ 6.607' 179
L Two or Mare Races 1.001: 27
Two races with Some Other Race 617 1.7
F Two races without Some Other Race : 51 1.0
Three or more races with Some Other Race { 1 1! 0.0
] Three or more races without Some QOther Race 22 0.4
HISPANIC OR LATINO [
Total population E 36’942i 100.0
Hispanic or Latino {of any race) i 14,813 401
Mexican : 12,863 348
Puerto Rican [ 483 13
Cuban ‘ 150 0.4
Other Hispanic or Latino [2) 1,307 35
Not Hispanic or Latino { 22,129 588
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ? ';
F Total poputation l 36,042 100.0
" Onerace E 35,941 973
Hispanic or Latino v 14,212 38.5
Not Hispanic or Latino 21 ,':'29)]I 58.8
Two or More Races ' 1,001 27
Hispanic or Lating . 601] 1.6
Not Hispanic or Latino i 400, 11

X Not applicable.

[1] "American tndian, specified” includes people who provided a specific American Indian tribe, such as Navajo or Blackfeet. "Alaska Nalive, specified”
includes people who provided a specific Alaska Native group, such as Inupiat or Yup'ik.

[2} This category is comprised of people whose origins are from the Dominican Republic, Spain, and Spanish-speaking Central or Souih American
countries. It also includes general origin responses such as “Lalino” er "Hispanic.”

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census.

Summary File 1, Tables P5, P8, PCT4, PCT5, PCTE, and PCT11.

1 of 1 Q22212012
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U.S. Census Bureau -

AMERICAN

FactFinder O\ .

QT-P3

Race and Hispanic or Latino: 2000

Census 2000 Summary File 1 (SF 1) 100-Percent Data

NOTE: For information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, definitions, and count corregtions see
hitp:iffactiinder.census.gov/homefen/datancies/expsf1u.htm.

" Subject

RACE
if Tatal population
One race
* White
[ Brack or African American
[ American Indian and Alaska Native
American Indian
F: Alaska Native
Both American Indian and Alaska Native
[ American Indian or Alaska Native, not specified
Asian

Asian fndian

Chinese
E‘ Filipina
Japanese
E " Korean
Vielnamese
F " 7 Other Asian category

Two or more Asian calegories
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander

“"Native Hawairan

“ Samoan
- Guamanian or Chamorre

" QOther Pacific Islander category

Two or more Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific
slander categories
Some other race

Two or more races
" " Two races including Some other race

Two races excluding Some other race, and lhree or
more races
Two races excluding Some other race

Three or more rages
HISPANIC OR LATIND

"Total population

E: Hispanic or Latino (of any race)
Mexican

Puerto Rican

Cuban

E QOther Hispanic or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATING
Total population

" Onerace

Hispanic or Latino

-

1 of 2

§ e e e — i ——

l

Number

12,419,293
12,184,277|
9,125,471
1,876,875!
31,006
17,465}
223
]
13311
423,603
124,723
76.725!
86,208
20‘3?9:
51,453
19,501}
38,786
6.138'
4,610
1,003,
1,062
988)|
1532
25

722,712
235,016
120,214
114,802

103,755,
14,047

12,419,293
1,530,262
1,144,380

157,851|
18,438
209,563
10,889,031

12,418,293
12,184,277
1,449,242,

llinols

b;;cent

L

100.0
93.1]
735
15.1]

0.2
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.4
34
10!
0.6
07
02f

04"

0.2|
0.3
o.o}
0.0
n,o|
0.0
0.0(
0.0
0.0

]
5.8

T
19
1.0;
09

0.8
0.1|

100.0]
12.3
9.2
13
0.1
1.7
87.7

100.0
98‘1i
1".7)

Addison village, lllinois ¢

Number

35,014
15,054}
27.076"

902]

127,

6|

PO O 2O

]

4,001
863;-
6091
254

229

35,914
10,198
8,741
K1

96
1.010
25,716I

35814
35,051,
9,717

25

Percent

100.0
97.6;
75.4

28
04
0.2
0.0
0.0
02!
7.9
46
0.4
15
0.4
0.2
D5
06
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.0
o]
0.0
o.oi

17.4
2.4]
17"
07

0.8'

0.1,

3

100.0,
28.4
243

1.0
03
28
FAN:)

100.0
a7.6
271
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Subject " iinols " Addison village, lllinois  ;
' r . P i

“Number | Percent . Number .  Percent
Not Hispanic or Latino 0 10,735,035 86.4 25,334' 70,50
Two or more races 235,016% 1.9I 8631 24
Hispanic or Latino o 81,020 07. 481 1.3
Not Hispanic ar Latino [ 153.906] 12| 382 1.1

{X} Not applicable.
Source: U.5. Census Bureau, Census 2000 Summary File 1, Matrices P3, P4, PCT4, PCT5, PCT8, and PCT11.

2 of 2 02/22/2012
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The attached tables show the following information:

s A list of zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normal
travel time of the project's site; and

¢ The total population of the identified zip code areas (based upon the 2010 population
numbers available for the State of Hiinois population).

. Total . Total
Zip Code Population Zip Code Population
60519 88 60107 39,927
60502 21.873 60010 44,093
60174 30,752 60194 19,777
60555 13,538 60169 33,847
60563 35,922 60193 39,188
60540 42,910 60195 4,769
60565 40,524 60067 38.585
60440 52,911 60137 37,805
60532 27,066 60148 51,468
60517 32,038 60157 2,380
60515 27,503 60101 39,119
60516 29,084 60191 14,310
60559 24,852 60143 10,360
60439 22919 60007 33,820
60561 23,115 60523 9,890
60527 27.486 60181 28.836
60514 9,708 60126 46,371
60521 17,597 60162 8111

60558 12,960 60163 5,209 |
60185 36,527 60164 22,048 '

60190 10,663 60106 20,309
60184 2,448 60173 12,217
60103 41,928 60008 22,717
60189 30,472 60005 29,308
60188 42,656 60074 38,985
60187 29,016 60056 55,219
60139 34,381 60070 16,001
60133 38,103 60018 30,099
60108 22,735 60016 59,690
60172 24,537 60004 50,582
60120 50,955 60090 37,633
60192 16,343 60464 9,620
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. Total
Zip Code Population
60480 5,246
60465 17.495
60457 14,049
60455 16,446
60525 31,168
60526 13,576
60458 14,428
60501 11,626
60513 19,047
60534 10,649
60482 11,063
60415 14,139
60459 28,929
60638 55,026
60402 63,448
60154 16,773
60155 7,927
60104 19,038
60165 4,946
60160 25,432
60153 24,106

60141 224
60546 15,668
60130 14,167
60305 11,172
60707 42,920
60131 18,097
60176 11,795
60171 10,246
60634 74,298
60706 23,134
60656 27,613
60631 28,641
60304 17,231
60301 2,539
60302 32,108

2114828-2

- Total

Zip Code Population
60804 84,573
60623 92,108
60644 48,648
60639 90,407
60651 64,267
60624 38,105
60641 71,663
60630 54,093
60646 27,177
60712 12,590
60068 37,475
60714 29,931
60025 39,105
60062 39,936
60053 23,260
60029 482
60608 82,739
60647 87,291
60612 33,472
60622 52,548
60607 23,897
60616 48,433
60642 18,480
60661 7,792
60654 14,875
60606 2,308
60602 1,204
60610 37,726
60618 92,084
60625 78,651
60605 24,668
60604 570
60603 493
60601 11,110
60611 28,718
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The names and locations of all existing or approved health care facilitics located within 30
minutes normal travel from the site that provide the dialysis services that are proposed by the
project. This table indicates both facilities within an unadjusted 30 minute drive time and the
1.15 factor adjusted 30 minute drive time. Utilization data for these facilitics is taken from the
fourth quarter 2011 ESRD utilization ,

Mapquest maps of driving times and distances are included in Appendix 2 in the order they
appear in the facility table.
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US RENAL CARE VILLA PARK DIALYSIS UTILIZATION ANALYSIS

FACILITIES WITHIN A 30 MINUTE DRIVE TIME RADIUS (1.15 ADJUSTED)

Adjusted Included
L Zip . . Drive Drive in e
Name Map Address City Code County HSA | Stations | Patients Time Time Utilization Utilization
(1L15 X) Analysis
USRC Oak Brook 1213 Butterfield | ¢ 0 Grove DuPage 7 13 - 13.0 15.0 Y 0.0%
Dialysis Road
FMC - Downers Grove | 3825 Highland | 1y o0 Grove | 60515 | DuPage 7 19 94 14.0 16.1 v 82.5%
Dialysis Center Avenue =
FMC Dialysis Services of | 6300 Kingery Willowbrook | 60527 | DuPage 7 16 81 13.0 15.0 Y 84.4%
Willowbrook Highway =
. Suburban n o
FMC - Wesichester 2400 Wolt Road Westchester 60154 Cook 7 20 92 15.0 15.0 Y 76.7%
Fresenius Medical Carc of | 1859 North Neltnor | -y cpicaos | 60185 | DuPage 7 2 21 19.0 21.9 Y 29.2%
West Chicago Boulevard
FMC - Central Dutage | 2% ft‘r’:é't‘ O3k | WestChicago | 60185 | DuPage | 7 16 77 | 40 | 276 v 80.2%
S - 2 i I 3
USRC Streamwood 149 lving Park | oy camwood Cook 7 13 . 260 | 299 v 0.0%
Dialysis Road
DSI - Schaumburg | | 120 South Roselie | g imburg | 60193 | Suburoan | 14 68 180 | 207 Y 81.0%
Road Cook
FMC - Hoffman Estates | > o0 WestHiggins | g, vburg | o195 | Subuwban |, 20 108 | 270 | 311 N 90.0%
Road Cook
Fresenius Medical Care 1940 Springer Lombard 60148 | DuPage 7 12 10 15.0 17.3 Y 13.9%
Lombard Drive
. Glendale g
FMC - Glendale Heights | 520 North Avenue Heichts 60139 DuPage 7 17 86 8.0 9.2 Y 84.3%
FMC - Elk Grove 820 Beisterfield Elk Grove 60007 | Suburban 7 28 130 14.0 16.1 Y 77.4%
Road Village Cook
RCG Villa Park York Road & Elmhurst 60126 | DuPage 7 24 128 9.0 10.4 Y 88.9%
Roosevelt Road =
- . ) 4180 Winnetka Rolling Suburban 4 5 a ~n
FMC - Rolling Meadows Avenne Meadows 60008 Cook 7 24 94 22.0 253 Y 63.3%
. . . Arlington Suburban _ - o
DSI - Arlington Heights 17 West Golf Road Heights 60005 Cook 7 18 53 200 23.0 Y 49.1%
Frescnius Medical Care | 155 oion Place |  Des Plaines | 60018 Cook 7 12 . 200 | 230 y 0.0%
Des Plaines
_ 1201 West ) Suburban o
Loyola Dialysis Center Roosevelt Road Maywood 60153 Cook 7 30 142 16.0 18.4 Y 78.9%
FMC - Melrose Park T Superior |y poyioce Park | 60160 | Suovrban | 18 55 17.0 19.6 y 50.9%
Street Cook
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Adjusted Included
. . Zip . . Drive Drive in R
Name Map Address City Code County HSA | Stations | Patients Time Time Utilization Utilization
(1.15X) | Analysis
FMC - Berwyn 2601 South Harlem Berwyn 6040z | Suburban 7 26 140 23.0 26.5 Y 89.7%
Avenue Cook
Iorl Wi f
Oak Park Kidney Centers. | 610 South Maple Oak Park 60304 Suburban 7 18 67 18.0 20.7 v 62.0%
[.1.C Avenue Cook
'
FMC - North Avenve | 12 estNorh o) ose Park | 60160 | Suburban | 4 24 19 | 150 173 Y 82.6%
Avenue Cook
Fresenius Medical Care | 14y oot Avenue | River Forest | 60305 Cook 7 20 . 200 | 230 Y 0.0%
River Forest
Fresenius Medical Care - 4701 North . Suburban . .
Northevest Cumberland Norridge 60706 ool 7 i6 54 22.0 25.3 Y 56.3%
D'a]ys‘ée‘:\"‘i‘:jfe”‘e“‘ 7435 West Talcott Chicago 60631 Cook 6 14 56 B0 | 265 Y 66.7%
: _Oak B F ; ,
FMC - Oak Park Dialysis | 533 w40 dison Street Oak Park go302 | Suburban 7 12 127 21.0 242 Y 176.4%
Center Cook
- W .
FMC - West Suburban | (| krie Street Oak Park go302 | Suburban 5 46 233 | 230 | 2653 Y 84.4%
Dialvsis Unit Cook
DaVita - Monteclare 7009 West Chicago 60634 Cook 6 16 83 20 | 276 Y 86.5%
Dialysis Center Belmont
FMC - North Kilpatrick 4800 North Chicago 60630 Cook 6 28 123 28.0 32.2 N 73.2%
Kilpatrick
FMC Dialysis Services of | 3410 West Van Chicago 60624 Cook 6 30 124 | 240 | 276 Y 68.9%
Congress Parkway Buren
Cook County Hospital 1901 West Chicago 60612 Cook 6 9 85 260 | 299 y 157.4%
Dialvsis Harrison
UTILIZATION CALCULATION FOR FACILITIES W/IN 30 MIN DRIVE TIME | 383 2,450 30 69.8%
UTILIZATION CALCULATION FOR FACILITIES W/IN ADJUSTED 30 MIN DRIVE TIME | 537 2219 ] 28 | 63.9%
2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

MALDISTRIBUTION

This Project will not result in maldistribution, because there is not an excess of stations in health
services area 007. On the contrary, this area has a need for 108 additional stations, as published
in the IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated Febrvary 21, 2012. A
copy of the relevant page of the Long-Term Care Bed Inventory Update is included in this
attachment.

A ratio of stations to population that exceeds one and one-half times the State average:

The ratio of stations to population for within a 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility
does not exceed one and a half times the State average. The State average, calculated from the
most-recently available IDPH Revised Necds Determinations for ESRD Stations dated February
21, 2012 and 2010 census population statistics results in a state station to population ratio of |
station per 3,371 persons. The calculated station to population ratio within the 30 minute drive
time of the proposed facility is 1 station per 6,737 persons. Thus the station to population ratio
within the 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility docs not exceed one and one-half times
the State average; in fact it is one-half the State average demonstrating that there is not a
maldistribution of stations in the 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility.

The associated calculation of station to population ratios is included in this attachment. The
calculation for the state station to population ratio utilizes 2010 Census data for the State of
Illinois and the total station count as found on the JDPH Revised Needs Determinations for
ESRT) Stations dated I'cbruary 21, 2012, The calculation of the station 1o population ratioc for
facilitics within a 30 minute drive time is calculated using all facilities and zip codes identificd
in the Unnecessary Duplication of Services attachment.

200 E. North Ave., Villa Park, 1L

Total Number of Stations for Facilities within a 30 Minute Drive Time 585
Total Populatton for Zip Codes within a 30 Minute Drive Time 3,941,194
Ratio of Stations to Population 6,737

State of Illinois

Total Number of Stations in the State of llinois 3,806
Total Population in the State of Hllinois 12,830,632
Ratio of Stations to Population 3,371
2114828.2
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ATTACHMENT 26

IMPACT OF PROJECT ON OTHER AREA PROVIDERS

The addition of 13 ESRD stations at the USRC Villa Park Dialysis Facility would only account
for 2.2% of the total shift capacity in the unadjusted 30-minute drive time area and 1.1% of the
total shift capacity in HSA 7. Assuming 80% utilization (9,734 shifts per year) was achieved
immediately, the facility would only make a 1.07% difference in the 30 minute drive time
occupancy levels and less than a 1% difference in the total shift capacity of HSA 7. This
increase in stations is fractional compared to the number of licensed stations in the area, thus it
is unlikely that the addition of these stations will lower the utilization of other area providers,
both those who are operating above 80% and those operating below 80%.

Additionally, the HSA7 has a station need of 108 stations, as published in the IDPH Revised
Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated February 21, 2012,

*This calculation is based on the HSA 7 approved stations of 1,111 as calculated on the IDPH
Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated February 21, 2012 and the 30 minute
drive time facilities as identified in Attachment 26 Unnecessary Duplication of Services. Shift
capacity of each station is calculated as 3 shifts per day, 6 days a week, 52 weeks a ycar.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

Medical Director
The curriculum vitae of the facility's Medical Director is included in this attachment.

Staff Recruitment

U.S. Renal Care Inc. recruits facility personnel through the use of various job posting websites
as wcll as a recruitment tool maintained on the corporate website (available at
http://www.usrenalcarc.com/us_renal_care_careers.htm).

Training

Applicant maintains rigorous orientation and training requirements for all staff of dialysis
facititics. Clinical staff arc subject to a comprehensive orientation regimen providing training
for such personnel in multiple areas (policies related to orientation and competencics are
included in this attachment). Such staff are also required to comply with any federal or state
training requirements necessary for certification in their respective fields. In addition, U.S.
Renal maintains both corporate and facility level training requirements for facility staff. For
example, all staff are subject to corporate requirements for annual competency assessments and
quarterly assignments provided through U.S. Renal Care's training tool, Health Streams (a copy
of the schedule of assignments, email reminder and completion report are included in this
attachment). Furthermore, dialysis staff are also required to comply with any facility required
training programs as implemented by the governing body of the dialysis facility (see attached
policy# EO-8002).

Staffing Plan

Applicant maintains staffing ratios in compliance with state requirements for the state in which
Applicant maintains a dialysis facility. Included in this attachment is the U.S. Renal Care policy
regarding staffing ratios which demonsirates the requirement for on duty RNs when the patients
arc present and maintenance of direct patient care providers in compliance with state
regulations. In the case of Illinois Applicant will maintain a ratio of one direct patient care
provider to cvery four patients.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

USRC Villa Park, LLC

As required by 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e)(5), Applicant certifies that US Renal Care

Villa Park Dialysis will maintain an open medical staff. Any board licensed nephrologist may
apply for privileges at this facility.

Signature /

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ﬁay of %20]2

o

Signature of Notary

Seal \\“\umum

ey,

\ - Sre,
R “, 7

02 m
’ﬂmmnm\“‘
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CURRICULUM VITAE
MICHAEL L. COHAN, M.D.
1133 W, Cornclia #1
Chicago, ). 60657
EDUCATION
July, 1991 Nephrology Rush-Presbytorian St, Luke's
Junc 1993 Fellowship Modleal Center
Chicago, IL.
June, 1987 Internal Medicine Rugh-Preshyteraa St, Luke's
Sunt, 199) Internship Medical Center

September, 1983
June, 1987

Scptember, 1979
Muay, 1983

EXPERIENCE

July, 1993
Present

July, 1990
June, 1991
1988 — 1990

1999

1983~ 1985

Z8'd BrecesLer9t

Boctor of Medicine

Bachelor of Arts
Bivlogical Busic of Behavior
Minor: Chetnistry

Internal Medicine
Nephralogy

Attending Internist

tnterviewer for
Applicunts

Physician

Child Carc Worker

Chicago, (L.

Thomas Jeiferson Medical Callege
Phitadefphia, PA

Universily of Pennsylvania
Philadelphiz, PA

Elmhurst Clinic
Etsnburst, 1.

Rush-Presbyterian 5t Luke's
Medical Center
Chivago, IL.

Rush Medical College
Chicago, L.

Chicage, Park Disirict
Chicago, 11,

Chlidren’s Scashore Housge
Atlnntic City, NJ.
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MICHAGL L, COITAN, M.D.

LICENSURE/CERTIFICATION

1988 Natlonal Board of Medical Examiners

1990  Licensed in the State of Hiinols
Diplnmat of the American Bnard of Internal Medigine

CURRENTLY BOARD CERTIFIED:
INTERNAL MEDICINE
NEPHROLOGY

HONORS

Lotter of Commendalion fur Outslanding Performapee as a Teacher, Department of Iniernal
Medicine, Rush-Presbyterian St. Luke’s Medical Center, Fall, 1988: Winter, Spring, Fall, 1989

Hubnrt Hure Hoporary Medicyl Secicty, Jefferson Medical Colloge
Course Honors: nternal Medicine, Psychialry, Pharmacolugy, Jeffersnn Medlea) Codlege,
P'si Shi Psycholugy Honor Society, Universily of Pennsylvania

Dean’s List, University of Pennsylvania, [973-1953

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSINPS
American Medienl Assoclation

Amerigan College of Physicinas
DuPage County Medleal Soclely

RESEARCH

Various studics at tha University of Pennsylvania Obesity Canter, 1981-1933

PERSONAL INFORMATION
Martid] Slatus:  Single

Orlgin: Ihiladelphis, PA
Birthdatc: February 21, 1941
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MICHARL L. COHAN, M.D.

REFERENCES

RRiszer Rodhy, M.5.
Pepartment of Nephrology
Rush-Presbyterisn §t. Luka’s Mcdical Center

1653 W. Congross Plavy
Chieago, 1. 60612

Susan Hou, M.D.

Department of Nepbrology
Rush~Preshyterian St. Luke's Mucdical Center
1653 W. Congress Phwy

Chicago, IL. 60612

Edmund J. Lewls, M.D.

Depurtment of nephrology
Ruyh-Proshyterian St. Luke’s Medical Conter
1653 W, Conpress Phwy

Chieago, 1), 60612
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US| RENAL CARE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:

01/2011

POLICY # EQ-9003

REVISION DATE:

Employce:

Title:

Date of Hire:

NOTE: Nof All Skills May Be Required

T g —

Universal Precautions/Exposure Conirol

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Sterile Techmgue

Aseptic Technigue

Machine Setup/Initiation of Treatment ™

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Hemodialysis Machine Set-Up

Correct Bath

Gather all Supplies

Tum on Water

Alann Testing

Line Placement’Conncct Concentrate

Peracetic Acid or or other Residual Stenlant Testing (when applicable)

Secures the Correct Dialyzer for the Patient

Verification of Dialyzer

Conductivity/pH Procedure

Treatment Scltings

Treatment Procedure

Date Completed

. Preceptor Signatare

Initiation of Treatment

Calculating Fluid Removal

Setling UFR/Programs/Na Modeling/Coel

Calculating Fluid Replacement

Adjusts Blood Flow Rate to Palient's Prescription

Ultratilirate Only

Heparin Adminisiration

Patient Monitoring

Vital Signs

Fluwd Replacement

Complication Assessment and Treatment

Reporls unusual Findings to CN

Orypen Administration {if applicable)

Verifies the Ordered Flow Rate from the CN

Sets up Equipment Comrecily

Connects Tubing Comectly 1o Equipment and 1o Patient

Complicatien Intervention

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Hypotension

Hlypertension

Nausea/Vomiting

Cramping

Chest Pain

508

Seizures

Cardinc/Respiratory Arrest

Informs CN of any Unusual Findimgs
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LIS.|RENAL CARE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
12011

POLECY # EQ-9003

REVISION DATE:

e

Medication Administration

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Aseptic technique is used when preparing and administering intravenous medications
lrom vials and amplules

P.O.

1M,

1LV Push

LV.Drip

Sub Q

Labels Syringes Correclly

Licocaine Administration {if applicable)

{hecks Patient's Prescription

tdentifics the Correct Vial of Medication

Prepares Dosage Correctly

Administers the Dose Correctly

Observes for and Understands Possible Complications

lHeparin Administration (if applicable)

Describes Basics of Anticoagulation Therapy

Assess Patient for and Reports Evidence of Aclive Bleeding

Checks Paticnt's Prescription

Jdentifics the Correct Vial of Medication

Prepares Dosage Correcily

Administers the Dose Correctly

Ohbscrves for and Understands Possible Complications

Monitors Approprialcness of Anticoagulalion Throughout Treatment

Normal Saline Administration {if applicable}

Understand Facility Protocol

Checks Patient's Prescription

Recognizes Signs of Hypotension

Notifies KN Appropriately

Adminisiers Normal Saline Correctly

I'reatment Fermination

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Rinsgback Procedure

Removal of Fistula Needles

Treatment of Post Tremiment Bleeding

Care of Catheters Post Treatment (it applicable)

Discarding Supptics

Reports Unusual Findings 1o CN

Sanitizing equipment and treatmenl area

Catheters {(As Per State Regs)

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Assessment

Pretreatment Preparation

Initiation of Dialysis

Accessing the Bloodstream

Correeting Operational Problems:

Poor Artenal Flow

Poor Yenous Flow

Clotting in Catheter

Elevated Arterial/Venous Pressures

Site Infections/Cullures

Take OfT Preparation

Rinseback Procedure

Post Treatiment Care of Catheter

Dressing Change
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7

US./RENALCARE

Clinical Apnual Competency

EFFECFIVE DATE:
01/201t

POLICY # EO-2003

REVISION DATE:

Fistula's/Grafts

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Assessment of Bruit and Thritl

Pretreatiment Preparation

Cannulation

Inspects the Aceess for Patency

Prepares the Skin Using Aseptic Technique at all Times

Calls for Assisstance Appropriately

Places Needles Correctly

Replaces Needles Appiropriately

Secures Needles

Accessing the Bloodstream

Operational Problems and Corrections:

Responds Appropriately to Maching Alarms

Infiltration with Cannulation

Infiltration During Treatment

Arteriat/Venous Spasms

Arterial/Venous Pressure Problems

Localized Bleeding

Dislodged Needle

Clotted Needie/Dialyzer

Blood Leak inlo Dialysate

Blood Leak Qutside of Bloodpath

Daocumentation

" Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Clinical Information Svstem use

Flowsheet

Dnalyzer and Patient Verilicalion

Machineg Checks

Vital Signs

Medication Adntimstration

Pre and Post Assessments

Treatment Complications

Monthly Nursing Charing

Admissions Charting

Discharge Charting

Patient Qccurrence Charting

Patient Assessment/Plan of Care

Diagnostic Laboratory Testing .

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Monthly and Other Labwark

BloodWound Cultures

Blood Glugose Testing

Able to Describe Appropriate Respunse to Patient Emergencies

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Air Embolism

Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest

Unstable Angina
Seizures

Shock

"Mew Dialyzer Reaction”
Hemoylysis

Pyrogenic Reaction
Chlonine in Dialysate
Other
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U.S.lRENAL CARE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:

01,2011

POLICY # EO-9003

REVISION DATFE:

Equipment and Building Emergencies

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Dalyzer Blood Leak

Clotted Dialyzer and or Lines

Loss of Elcetrical Powsr

Hand Crank Take-Off Procedure

Fire or Flood

Emergency Evacuation of Building

Tomado/Hurricane/Blizzard Plans

Knows Correct Procedure for Machine Failure

Use of Emergency Equipment ~ . Date Completed Preceptor Signature
Oxygen

Ambu Bag/Oral Ainvay

Crash Cart

Porable Suction

Pr._Evacuation During an Emergency

Education _ Dale Completed "~ Preceptor Signatore
Fire Safety

Back Safety

Hazard Communication

Electrical Safety

US Renal Care Siandards of Conduct & Compliance Program

Prevention of Slips, Trips and Falls

Emergency Preparedness

Prevention of Needlesticks

Additional competencies as required by state specific regulation, job role or needs
assessment

Complete Annual Competency Checklist - Clinical Employee (Technical
Training Mannal Section 9)

, has successTully completed the USRC Clinicsl

Annual Training Program to include successful return demonstrations and is competent to perform the

clinical duties included on this checklist.

Employee Signhaturc:

Preceptor Signature:

Medical Dircctor Signature:

Date:

Date:

Daite:

ATTACHMENT 26

124




CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE PROGRAMS-
SEE STATE SPECIFICALSO

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines on continuing education

POLICY:

All employees must have the opportunity for continuing education and related
development activities. Continuing education and in-service programs are
encouraged for all staff in the facility to continuously improve the quality of
patient care by increasing staff knowledge.

PROCEDURE:

The governing body or designated persons are responsible for developing
regularly scheduled in-service programs that will meet the needs of the staff and
the center.

Documentation of attendance at continuing education activities will be kept in
the personnel file for each staff member. Continuing education activities may
consist of, but are not limited to; seminars, lectures, and educational workshops
for one-on-one training,

The Facility Administrator will maintain minutes of all such meetings, including
attendance records. Out of center continuing education programs will be at the
guidance of the Facility Administrator.
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us.lnenm. CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
ot/2011
POLICY # EO-1002 REVISION DATE:
04/2011
Employee:
Title:
Facility:

Dale of Hire:

PA, VA, NY, GA a LPN maybe o charge nurse as long as dialysis RN is available in the building. The LPN may not supervise a RN

Charge Nurse, Administrator, or qualified destpnee may perform skills verification as precepror
Objectives: To ensure proper arentation to the charge nurse position.
To provide a smoolh transition from 1he clinical floor seiting to the charge posilion

Fxperiations: The Charge Nurse will d ahility to comphete all charge nurse dutics as per all facility pratocols and procedures according to job description

Orienlation Requirements

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Received a copy of the Federal/State Regulations and become familiar with the Tule
and regulations of the practicing state.

Undersiands and accepts expectations of job description

Knows the facility's floor plan for emergency purposes and location of the
squipment and supplies.

Demonsirate knowledge of policics and procedures:

. Patients' Rights and Responsibilities a 2
b Patient's Gricvance Procedure b. b,
¢. Patient/Siaff disaster plan, emergency evacuation and use of c. ¢
emergency supplies
d. Process for transferring patient to hospitals and other health care d. d.
facilities
e. Patient Admissions and Discharges e, c.
f. Processing of the transient patjent f f
. Administration of medications and {count of narcotics) it required per |g. B
facility procedure. ]
b, Administration ol blood products (f provided) as per facility protocol |k h.
Demonstates knowlede of the Electronic Medical Record{EMR).
Pass a written comprehensive exam on Renal AdelP, ESRI, and Memodialysis with a
seore of §0% ot belter.
Pass a written medication lest as related to dislysis and other conditions related to renal
failure
Attend formal charge nurse education class conlact educator.
] _Daily Responsibilifics - Date Completed Preceplor Signature
Water Checks
Verifiex Water 1esting is performed per palicy,
a. AM opening - Check all waler patamelers, a. a.
Pressure gavpes, Splingr and Corbon Tanks
b. Checks Carbon tnnks prior to start of ench shifl b b,
c. End of the day checks - Soflner tank £, c
d. Ensures all logs ace properly completed. d. C.

Clinica] Checks

Krows the location of the emergency cart, ALiD and suction equipment

Ensures all equipmen is funciional and ready lor use

Verifies all daily checks are done, i.e.; glucomeler, AED, crash canl, oxygen, suction
supplies

Assures drug counts are performed and accurare al sian and end of day and documents on
logs

Verifies temperatures on medication and lab refridgermors are within eslablished limils
and documenis on logs.

Makes daily stalf assipnments based on gatient needs
Ensures staffing ralios do not exceed 4:/PCT and 12;1license nurse or as per state regs.

FA is notified if not met

Ensun:s s1afT maintains integrily of patient schedule. FA notified if not met.

Provides immediale supervision of palient care,

Provides oversight and direction to PCTs and LVNs/LLENs

Imervenes to changes in patient's condilion

Ree ds ch: i n1 based on patient's current needs

Ensures patienis are in view of stafl during hemodial ysis ireatments.
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LIS.-[RENAL CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0112011

POLICY # EQ-1002

REVISION DATE:
0412011

Ensures visulaization of the patients, their access site, and their blowdtine cannections
during the dinlysis treatmen

Enforces staflf complinnee 1o personnel policies regarding breaks, lunch periods, ete.

Efficienuly manages stafT hours and overtime - inctuding sending staff home as needed
when census is low.

Ensures complisnce with stale and federal regulations - FA notified if not met

Relerences the Policy and Procedure manual to increase personal knowledpe of P&P

Practices aceording to company policies and procedures

Verifies and corrects others 10 follow company P&P

Follows proper infection control practices

Monilors/corrects infection control practices for staff, patients and visitors - FA nonified if
not iwel

Ensures biohazard wast is disposed of and stored properly

Oversecs the clinical Moor is kept clean of debris/spills

Ensures an unobsirucled path 1o patient stafions 15 maintained

Ensures emergency exits are not obstructed

Owersees (hat emergency procedures are followed

Transeribes orders correctly enlo Kardex, computer system, and/or methods as per facility
proiocol

Verifies staff is transenbing/carrying out orders comecily

Hospitalization of a patient: notifies physician, sends correct papenwork, proper
docomentation in progress notes.

Proper documentation on relum of haspitalized patient

Conducts assessmenlt of & patient when indicated by a question relating 10 a change in the
patient’s status, extended or frequent hospitalizations, or at the patiem's request,

Facitiintes communicatin between the patient, patient's family or significant other

fnitiates and provide parient education and fllow up as needed

Participates in the interdisciphinary team review of a patent's progress

Prepares for and assists with CIPA and POC completion as assigned

Proper medication adminstration, mecleding use of protocols for:

. Bpagen

b, Witamin D Analogs: Caleijex, Hectorol, Zemplar

¢, lron: Venfor, Ferrlecil

d. Gxypen

¢. Hepilitis vaceine

£ 'TB Tuberculin Testing

E. Heparin

h Lidocaing

E N B [N N N

T =0 |a|n |=]x

i. Urokinase (Activase}

j. Antibiolics

K. Normal Saline

Mnnages complications during hemodialysis

a. Jiypolension

b. Hypertension

¢, Cramps

d. Headaches

£, Pruritis

I. Nausea, vomiting

S BEREE

. Fever, chills

h Pyvrogenic reaction

i, Chest pain

j. Scizures

k.Hypopglyeemia

1. Hyperglycemia

==

ATTACHMENT 26

127




us.] RENAL CARE

Hemeodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:

0172011
POLICY # EOQ-1002 REVISION DATE:
04/2011
Crversees use and management of Reuse chemicals where applicable
a. Approve sierilant a. [}
b. Signs and symplams of reactionfexposure b, b.
Praper use of incident repons
Verilies all ordered lab is drawn, processed, packaged and sen( out
Verifies staff perform ph/conductivity checks before treatment
Recognizes machine problems, correcily handles machine problems, commumicates with
Lechnical
Communicaies with physician, dietician, and social worker regarding patient nceds
Fngures charis are closed ouf prior to leaving and all paperwork cammunicated o
business oflice as required (billing loys, ete.)
Secures the building ot the end of the day:
o makes sure a)) patients have Icfl the facility a a
b. cheeks 1hat water and acid valves have been tumed off b. b,
¢. checks (hat answering service has bee activaled C. [
d. makes sure alt doors have been locked d. d.
Weekly iMonthly /Quarterly Responsibilities ™~ N Date Completed Preceptor Signature
Checks crash cart for adequacy of supplies, kind of supplies, and expiration dates, i.2.;
iheds, airway, lab tubes, misc.
Checks 10 see what weekly 1abs need 10 be dmwn
Review of lab results and reports any criticnl abnormal resulis Io the Physician
Adjust patient treatment agcording to lab results following prolocol
Monthly Diabetic Foot Cheeks done
Quarterly review of patienl's heme medication
__ 77" 7 ’Ireatment Initiatien Responsiblities Date Completed ~ |~ " Preceptor Signafure
Conducts nursing rounds once all palients are undergoing treaimen and
a reviews patfent pre-treatment assessiments and verifies accuracy and a. a
compl 5
b. verifies all parameters are sel 10 prescribed order. b. b,
¢. verifies pre-ircatments machine checks have been perfarmed and < £
documenmed
d d

d verifies treatment is imitiated 3-5 minutes aller heparin bolus is given
according to documentation

Intradialvtic Responsibilitiey

Date Complefed

Preceptor Signatare

Delegnles adminisiration of medications 1o licensed siafi’

Verifies medications are prepared and labeled appropriately

Adjusis medication doses based on kb per established protoco!

Reviews "routing” charting by nurses/PCTs

Reviews "special situation” charting {acute problems, drug reactions, chest pain, fever,
bloed loss, ete.)

Monilnrs machine alarms are answered i a limely manner

Ensures 1/2 of all paliem care stafT are present on the clinjeal Noor at all times.

Turn-Around Responsibilities

Date Completed

Preceptor Signnture

Orchestrates a smooth turnover by remaining on the dialysis floor during turnover,
re-assigning stafi as needed and 1roubleshooling problems

Monitors sharps are disposed of properly

Monilors Lrash is disposed of property

Ensures sialTdoes not tnke breaks dering furnover

Ensures na personal phone calls are taken during turnover

I"hysician Rownding Responsibilities

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Rounds with physictans and review labs, medicalions and other study results with M}
Updates MD to any new patient developments.

Receives new ordess, transcribes (hemm aceuralely, and carry (hem qut in a Lime manner.

Emergency Procedures

Bate Completed

I'receptor Signature

Demonstrates Knowledpe of Emergency Procedures

a. Fire evacuation

b. Loss of power

¢. Loss ol water supply

d. Natural disaster procedurcs

Earthquake

Tomado

Hurricang
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LIS.~ RENAL CARL

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checkliist

EFFECTIVE DATE:

01/2011

POLICY # EQ-1002

REVISION DATE:
0a3/2011

, has successfully completed the USRC Charge

Nurse Skills Checklist to include successul return demonstrations and is competent 1o perform the clinical

duties ingluded on this checklist.

Employee Signature:

Revicwer Signature:

Medical Director Signature:

[rate,

e,

Date:
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RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION

SCHEDULE FOR RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION AFTER ALL STEPS OF
HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION ARE MET

(Ex. RN/LPN/LVN may only need 4 weeks to achieve Hemodialysis Orientation and then
RN/LPN orientation can start)

Week 1 Paperwork
Medication Administration and Documentation
Dressing Changes
'V Pump
Review of PD concepts- schedule with PD Nurse. Ultra Bag Competency and
instillation of medications in PD bag.
Rounds with the physician
Transcribing orders
Evaluation

Week 11 Charge Nurse Competency
Day I: Shadow the Charge Nurse
Day 11-V: Charge Nurse role with Preceptor
Medication Test
Lvaluation

Reference: Core Curriculum for Nephrology Nursing

ATTACHMENT 26

130




POLICY:

All Patient Care Technicians (PCT"s) shall be certified under a state or a nationally approved
certification program as follows:

1. For newly cmployed patient care technicians, within 18 months of being hired as a
dialysis patient care technician or

2. For patient Care technicians employed on October 14, 2008, within 18 months after this
date (on or before April 14, 2010).

3. Forcurrent employees who transfer in to the patient care technician role from other jobs
(rcuse or water treatment technicians) certification will be obtained in 18 months from
the date he/she started in the new PCT position

Ultimately US Renal Care (USRC) recognizes that certification of the PCT is an individual
responsibility and a condition of continued employment in the dialysis industry. USRC will:

1. Offer review classes for voluntary attendance.

2. Offer copics of the “Amgen Care Curriculum for the Dialysis Technician™ as a study
guide.

3. Assist thc employee with the application process to ensure completion and thoroughness
of each application.

4. Pay initially for the first exam.
Reimburse for a second testing attempt once proof of a passing score is provided.

6. Encourage cach PCT employed on October 14, 2008 to sit for the certification exam no
later than the end of January 2010 to ensure adequate time to reschedule and retake the
exam by the April deadline if necessary.
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HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION FOR NEW CLINICAL STAFF
Also see State Specific

The orientation period is approximately 6 — 8 weeks in length. In order to meet the objective of
the Orientation Checklist, and to allow for sufficient clinical practice, the following schedule is
prescnted as a guide. Mastery of both theory and clinical skills is the responsibility of the
student and no student may practice independently without demonstration and documentation of
required skills. Until the individual has satisfied the training and competency requirements, the
individual during the process of completing training shall be identified as a trainee when present
in any patient area of the facility.

Prior 10 providing dialysis care, all nursing staff shall demonstrate satisfactory completion of
either the training program or educational equivalency and the competency skills assessment
checklist as required for the dialysis technicians.

Any registered nurse or licensed practical nurse who is employed without previous experience in
the dialysis process, and who has not yet successfully completed the skills competency checklist,
shall be directly supervisc when engaged in dialysis treatment activities with patients by a staff
member who has demonstrated skills competency for dialysis treatment as required by the
State/Federal Regulations.

In addition to the Amgen and Nephrology Core Curriculums, the Employee Orientation Program
Workbook is a good resource tool. Delivery of training material will be accomplished through a
combination of lecture, video presentations and independent study.

WEEK I:

Day 1: Facility tour and orientation

Overview of the services provided by the facility

Meel preceplor )

Mect the staff and physicians

Review of Employee Handbook and Job Description

Staff Roles and Responsibilities

Cverview of US Renal Care Philosophy

Overview of P & P Manual

Introduction of dialysts machine and dialysis prescription

Reference Amgen Core Curriculum

Read/review Module [ and I (Today’s Dialysis Environment/The Person with Kidney
Failure)

Unijversal Precautions/OSHA Education

HIPAA training

Fire and Electrical Safety

Professional education

View state specific training videos

Testing: OSHA (TB, Blood borne pathogens, Universal Precautions, Hepatitis)
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Day 2:

Day 3:

Scavenger Hunt

Practice sct up of dialysis machine with preceptor and removal of lines
Observation of Hemodialysis procedure and orientation to clinic routines
Proper clcaning of chairs, machines, clamps, and blood pressure cuffs
Basic chemistry of body fluids and electrolytes

History of Dialysis

Legal and Ethical Issues

Hygiene and Grooming

Mobility and Positioning

Read/review Module 111 (Principles of Dialysis)

Practice set up of dialysis machine with preceptor

Introduction to screen of dialysis machine and machine components

Reference Braun Operators Manual

Vital signs

Overview of the continuous quality improvement program

Read/revicw Module IV (Hemaodialysis Devices)

Role of the dialysis technician in a dialysis setting: legal and ethical considerations and

concepts of delegating.

Day 4:

Communication and Team work Skills
Pre and Post weights
Machine testing PH/conductivity/temperatures

Machine opceration and introduction to problem solving with preceptor

Trouble shooting equipment — machine alarms

Practices set up of the dialysis machine

Policies and Procedures on Patients rights including Patient Bill of Rights

Delivery of an adequate dialysis treatment and factors which may result in inadequate

treatment

Complications of dialysis and interventions

Aseptic technique

Education on the proper use of Safety Needles

Education on accidental needle sticks (Issues and Prevention Strategies for Healthcare

Workers)

Day 3:

Preparation and usc of dialysale baths

Practices set up of the dialysis machine

Elder Abuse in the dialysis machine

Testing: Module I (Today’s Dialysis Environment)
Identify allergics, patient chart (electronic medical record)
ldentify goal, treatment time, UFR, TMP

Evaluation: Week |
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WEEK 2:
Continue practice set up and use of dialysis machine
Residual testing for presence of bleach
Introduction and education on access placement and taping access
Review location and use of emergency equipment:
(Oxygen, suction, crash cart, EKG, AED, Emergency box, fire drill & cvacuation)
Introduction to patient monitoring during treatment
Introduction and education on documentation procedures and the Hil system
Theory and practice of conventional, high efficiency, and high flux dialysis
Interpersonal Communication
Read/review Module II and 111 (The Person with Kidney Failure/Principles of Dialysis)
Evaluation: Week 2

WEEK 3:
Emergency Plans and Procedures
Introduction to dialysis termination procedures
Review and practice pre and post treatment procedures, patient monitoring
Review clinic specific responsibilities and documentation
Education on Transplants
Review complication recognition and treatment
Continue practice with machine sct up and operation
Read/review: Module V (Vascular Access)
Testing: Module 1V (Hemodialysis Devices)
Evaluation: Weck 3

WEEK 4:
Introduction to initiation of dialysis with catheters (as appropriate to job description}
Review and educatc on commonly used dialysis medications
Medication Administration
Continue superviscd practice of dialysis termination
Review P & P Manual
Normal and abnormal lab values
Pre and post dialysis blood draws
Lab processing duties
Orientation and competency for blood glucose monitoring equipment
Supervised practice to incorporate pre and post dialysis procedures and patient
Monitoring with machine operation, and documentation
[ntroduction to initiation of dialysis by cannulation
Introduction of materials used to create grafts, needie placement for access in a graft, and
prevention of complications: and identification of signs and symptoms of complications
when cannulating access
Education on P>
Renal Dietitian: Nutritional Considerations
Read/review Module VI (Hemodialysis Procedures and Complications)
Evaluation: Week 4
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WEEK 35:

Cannulation of a patient with fistula needles

The orientce will incorporate trouble shooting and patient complications with all
previously learned and practiced experience

Continue supervised practice of dialysis initiation via catheter, dialysis termination,
and treatment procedures and monitoring

Incorporate machine problem solving and recognition and treatment of complications
Into practice

Education on monitoring of arterial and venous pressures

Renal Social Worker: Psychosocial issues

Read/review Module VII and VIII (Dialyzer Reprocessing/Water Treatment)
Testing: Module V (Vascular Access)

Evaluation: Week 5

WEEK 6:

Continue supervised practice of hernodialysis procedures

Competently complete a 1 — 2 patient assignment

Education on the management of adequacy outcomes

Technical Specialist: Water system, risks to patients of unsafe water, water checks,
machine maintenance, trouble shooting machines and cleaning of machines
Evaluation: Week 6 (Preceptor/Orientee/Administrator)

WEEK 7 & 8:
Competently complete assigned patient assignment
Testing: Module VII and V11l (Dialyzer reprocessing/Water Treatment)

This orientation program is based on the assumption that the orientee has no previous
experience, Alterations/Adjustments in the ortentation program will be made based on previous
experience and proven clinical skills. During orientation the orientee will also receive theory
training provided by the Clinical Services Department.

REFERENCES TO BE REVIEWED DURING ORIENTATION:

Core Curriculum for Dialysis Technicians
State Specific Educational Videos
Dialysis Training Manual

Dialysis Machine Manual

Dialysis Machine Trouble Shooting Guide
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EVALUATION:
All tests in the orientation manual are to be passed with a score of 8§0%.

Weekly evaluations with the orientation checklist will be filled out throughout the orientation
process by the orfentee, preceptor, and educator. The Administrator will evaluate alt checklists
weekly.

If at any time there are difficulties with the fearning of the didactic material or inability to
complete modules in the specified time period the Facility Administrator will be notified
immediately. 1f at any time there are difficulties with the dialysis machine set-up, treatment
monitoring, or termination of the treatment the Administrator will be notified. The Preceptor and
Administrator will assess the training schedule orientee’s progress and if nceded will make
changes in the orientation program.
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us.lneum CARF.

POLICY : STAFFING POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: C-AD-0140 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:

Staffing requirement for the ESRD facility include the coordination of personnel by the
facility administrator to adequately staff for safe and effective provision of patient care.

The following guidelines will direct the staffing of each facility.

1.

A fulltime supervising nurse shall be employed to manage the provision of patient
care.

A nurse or nurses functioning in the charge role shall be on site and available to
the treatment area to provide patient care during all dialysis treatments.

A registered nurse shall be in the facility when patients are present in the facility
— if applicable,

Licensed nurse to patient ratio shall meet the required state reguiations which
govern the facility.

Sufficient direct care staff shall be on-site to meet the needs of the patients. The

staffing level shall not exceed that which is required by state specific reguiations
which govern the facility. See below for state specific staffing requirements.

State Specific Staffing Requirements

State Licensed Staff to Direct Care Staff to
Patient Ratio Patient Ratio
Georgia 1to 10 1104
Maryland 1109 1103
New Jersey 1t09 1t03
Ohio None None
South Carolina 110 10 1t04
Texas 11012 1t04
Pennsylvania None None
Arkansas Nane None
Cklahoma None None
South Carolina None None
New York None None

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information, All Rights Reserved
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ATTACHMENT 26

SUPPORT SERVICES

USRC Villa Park, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) and with respect to the US Renal Care
Villa Park Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies that:

1. Applicant certifies that it will utilize the Health Informatics International system for the
provision of care to its patients;

2. Applicant certifies that support services consisting of clinical laboratory service, blood
bank, nutrition, rehabilitation, psychiatric and social services will be available to its
patients; and

3. Applicant certifies that provision of training for self-care dialysis, self-care instruction,

home and home-assisted dialysis, and home training will be provided at the US Renal
Care Oak Brook Dialysis facility.

Signature %\\7@

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this c;ug day of Q)Q 2012

Yoo

Signature of Notary \“\\“\‘I:IIA‘F??”M”*
S, %,
S WBLIC ", %,
oy - -
Seal 5:3 N . Z
hand - L] -
95 t 2
& % 4‘?4 H
% .‘.. Srﬁﬁ&@.h §
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ATTACHMENT 26

MINIMUM NUMBER OF STATIONS

The proposed U.S. Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis facility contemplates the establishment of 13
ESRD stations which meets the minimum station requirements for a metropolitan statistical
arca.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

CONTINUITY OF CARE

2114828-2
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT

USRC Villa Park, LL.C an Illinois limited liability company (the “Center™), and Alexian
Brothers Medical Center, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (thc “Hospital”), make and
enter into this Transfer Agreement (“Agreement”), cffective as of this o 4 of

4, o f } 3 2012.
\;;%REAS, the Center will to. the Tllinois Health Facilities Services and Review Board (the

“Beard) an application for.a_certificate of need permit to.establish.a free-standing.renal dialysis
center for treatment of patients with end-stage renal disease, which the Center will locate in Villa
Park, lilinois;

WHEREAS, the Hospital owns and operatcs a licensed and Medicare-certified acute-care
hospital, located at 800 Bicsterfield Rd, Elk Grove Viilage, Illinois, in reasonable proximity to
the Center;

WHEREAS, palients of the Center (“Patients™) may require, from time to time, evaluation,
treatment, or admission to the Hospital; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for facilitating the transfer of
Patients to the Hospital.

NOW, THEREFORE, to facilitate the transfer of Patients to the Hospital, the parties hereto agree
to the terms of this Agreement, as set forth below.

I. TRANSFER OF PATIENTS: If the Center determines that a Patient needs emergency
evaluation, treatment, or admission to the Hospital, and a Hospital physician accepts the transfer
of the Patient, the Hospital will accept the fransfer of the Patient, as promptly as possible,
provided such transfer meets the Hospital’s transfer requirements, and the Hospital has adequate
staff and bed space for the Patient. A designated staff member of the Center shall contact a
designated staff member of the Hospital to facilitate such transfer and admission to the Hospital.
The Hospital shall receive Patient in accordance with applicable {cderal and state laws and
regulations, and reasonable Hospital policies and procedures. The Hospital’s responsibility for
Patient’s care shall begin when Patient enters the Hospital.

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CENTER: The Center shall be responsible for performing or
ensuring the performance of the following:
a. Transportation: The Center will arrange for transportation of Patient to the
Hospital;
b. Designated Coordinator: The Center will designate a staff member who has

authority to represent the Center and to coordinate the transfer of the Patient to the
Hospital (“Transfer Coordinator”). The Center will notify the Hospital and keep it
apprised of the name and contact information of the Transfer Coordinator;

¢ Notice to Hospital: The Center’s designated staff person will notify Hospital’s
Admission Coordinator before the transfer to alert the Hospilal of the impending and
estimated time of arrival of Patient and to provide information on Paticn, to the extent
Section 4 of this Agreement allows;
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d. Patient Choice: The Center recognizes the right of a Patient to (i) request transfer
into the care of a hospital of the Patient’s choosing and (ii) refuse to consent to treatment
or transfer; and

e. Compliance with Law: The Center will comply with the rcquirements of
applicable state and federal laws rclative to the care and transfer of individuals to
hospitals.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE HOSPITAL: The Hospital shall be responsible to perform ot

ensure-the-performance-of the-following:

a. Designated Coordinator: The Hospital will designate a person who has authority
to represent the Fospital and to coordinate the transfer and admission of Patients into the
Hospital (“Admission Coordinator”). The Hospital will nolify the Center and keep it
apprised of the name and contact information of the Admission Coordinator; and

b. Compliance with Law: The Hospilal will comply with the requirements of
applicable state and federal laws relative to individuals admitted to hospitals.

4. PATIENT INFORMATION: In order to meet Patients’ needs for hospital care, the Center
shall provide relevant Patient information to the Hospital. Such information may include:
resident niame, social security number, date of birth, insurance coverage, Medicare beneficiary
information (if applicable), current medical findings, diagnoses, known allergies or medical
conditions, trealing physician, contact person in case of emergency, and any other relevant
information Patient has provided the Center in advance.

5. NoN EXcLusiviTy: This Agreement shall in no way give the Hospital an exclusive right
of transfer of Patients to the Hospital. The Center may enter into similar agreements with other
hospitals, and Patients will continue to have complete autonomy with respect to decisions on
medical care. "

6. FREEDOM OF CHOICE: In entering into this Agreement, the Center in no way endorses or
promotes the services of the Hospital. Rather, the Center intends to coordinate timely transfer
for medical carc. Patients are in no way restricted in their choice of hospitals or medical-care
providers.

7. BILLING AND COLLECTIONS: Hospital and the Center are each responsible for billing the
appropriate payer for the services it provides. Neither party shall have any liability to the other
party for such charges.

8. INDEPENDENT RELATIONSHIP

a. Independent Contractors: In performing services pursuant to this Agreement,
the Hospital and all employees, agents, or representatives of the Hospital are, at all times,
acting and performing as independent contractors, and nothing in this Agreement is
intended, and nothing shall be construed, to create an employer/employee, partnership, or
joint-venture relationship between them. The Center shall neither have nor exercise any
direction or control over the methods, techniques, or procedures by which the Hospital or
other employees, agents, or representatives of the Hospital perform their professional
responsibilities and functions. The sole interest of the Center is to coordinate timely
transfer of Patients for medical care,

1502484-2 2
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b. Hospital Employee Payment: The Hospital shall be solely responsible for the
payment of compensation and benefits to its personnel and for compliance with all
payments of taxcs, social security, unemployment compensation, and workers’
compensation.

c. Non-Hospital Personnel: Notwithstanding the terms of this Agreement, in no
cvent shall the Hospital or any Hospital personnel be responsible for the acts or omissions
of non-Hospital personnel.

9 —INSURANCE:-The-Hospital-shall- maintain;-at-no-cost-to-the-Center,-professional-liability—
insurance in an amount customary for ifs business practices. The Hospital shall provide evidence
of the coverage required herein to the Center on an annual basis.

10, INDEMNIFICATION: The Hospital shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Center
from and against any and all liability, loss, claim, lawsait, injury, cost, damage, or expense
whatsoever (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs), arising out of, incident to, or
in any manner occasioned by the Hospital’s (or any of its employee’s, agent’s, contractor’s, or
subcontractor’s) performance or nonperformance of any duty or responsibility under this
Agreement.

11, TERM AND TERMINATION

a. Term: The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of execution and
shall continue in effect for one year (the “Inifial Term”) and shall renew on an annual
basis (“Renewal Term™), absent either party’s writien notice of non-rencwal to the other
party, at least 30 calendar days before the expiration of the [nitial Term or any subsequent
Renewal Term of this Agreement,

b. Events of Termination: Notwithstanding the foregoing, ecither party may
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of any one of the following events:

i. For No Cause: At any time upon 30 days prior, written notice to the other
party.
il Insolvency: Upon 10 business days’ prior written notice, in accordance

with Section 12.g of this Agreement, if either party shall: apply for or consent to
the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of itself or of all or a
substantial part of its assets; file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; admit in
writing ils inability to pay its debts as they become due; make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors; file a petition or an answer seeking
reorganization or arrangement with creditors or take advantage of any insolvency
law; or enters a court of compelent jurisdiction order, judgment, or decree or an
application of a creditor, adjudicating such party to be bankrupt or insolvent,
approving a petition seeking reorganization of such party, appointing a receiver,
trustee or liquidator of either such party or of all or a substantial part of such
parties’ assets; and such order, judgment, or decree continues in effect and
unstayed for & period of 30 consecutive calendar days.

¢. Immediate Termination: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this
Agreement terminates immediately upon the following events: {a) the suspension or
revocation of the license, certificate, or other lcgal credential, authorizing the Hospital to
provide hospital and medical-care services; (b) the temmination of the Hospital’s

1902484-2 3
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participation in, or the exclusion from, any federal or state health program, for reasons
related to fraud or failure to comply with certification standards in the rendering of health
services; or (¢} the canccllation or termination of the Hospital’s professional-liability
insurance that this Agreement requires, and the Hospital has not obtained rcplacement
coverage.

12, MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

a, Counterparts: The parties may execute this Agreement in any number of
counterparts;each-of-which-shall-be an-original;-but-all-such-counterparts-together-shall
constitute the same instrument.
b. Waiver: Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in writing, and
the parties have signed it. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not
waive any other terms and conditions hereof.
C Severability: The provisions of this Agrcement are severable, and, if a court of
competent jurisdiction funds any portion invalid, tHegal, or unenforceable for any reason,
the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective and binding upon the parties,
d. Headings: All headings herein are only for convenience and ease of reference,
and no one may consider them in the construction or interpretation of any provision of
this Agreemerit.
e. Assignment: The Hospital may not assign, delegate, or subcontract this
Agreement, without prior written consent of the Center.
f. Governing Law: The laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the enforcement
and interpretation of this Agreement.
£ Notices: Any required or permiticd notice herein shall be in writing. It shall be
deemed duly given on the date of service, if a party personally serves it on the other
party, or on the fourth day after mailing, if a party mails it to the other party by certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, at the address below:

To Dialysis Provider: To the Hospital:

Thomas Weinberg Jobhn Werrbach, CEO

'U.S, Renal Care, Inc, Alexian Brothers Mcdical Center

2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350 800 Biesterfictd Rd

Plans, TX 75093 .

Elk Grove Village, IL 60007

With a copy to: With a copy to:
or at such other place or places as any of the parties shall designate by written notice to
the other.

1902484-2 4
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Jan 26 2012 8:53PM HP LASERJET FAX e s

h, Amendment: The parties may amend this Agreement upon their mutual, written
agreement,

i Regulatory Compliance: The parties agree that nothing contained in this
Agreement shall require the Center to refer residents to the Hospital for hospital or
medical-care services or to purchase goods and services. Notwithstanding any
unanticipated effect of any provnszon of this Agreement, neither party will knowingly and
intentionally conduct its behavior in such_a_manner as_to_violate the prohibition against———— -

— fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and Medicaid programs,

j Access to Books and Records: If applicable, upon wtitten request of the
Secretary of Health and Human Services ot the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any of their duly authorized representatives, the Hospital shall make available to the
Recretary or to the Comptroller General those contracts, books, documents and records
necessary to verify the nature and extent of the costs of providing its services under this
Agreement. The Hospital shatl make such inspection available for up to four years after
the rendering of such service, Public Law 96-499 and applicable regulations governs and
requires this Section'12,j. The parties agree that this Agreement shall not waive any
atterncy-client, accountant-client, or other legnl privileges.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties, through their duly authorized officers, have executed this
Agreement as of the date first written above,

vita Bt
US Renal Care Addisen, LLC Alexian Brothers Medical Center
’/"}ZM 5 et U pbirfeo—
Its Manager w: L AED

1902484-2 5
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ATTACHMENT 28

ASSURANCES
USRC Villa Park, LLC

In accordance with 77 IlI. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(j), and with respect to the US Renal Care
Villa Park Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies the following:

By the second year of operation after the project completion, the Applicant will achieve
and maintain the 80% utilization standards as specified in 77 [ll. Adm. Code § 1100; and

2. That Applicant will achieve and maintain compliance with the following adequacy of

hemodialysis outcome measures for the latest 12-month period for which data are
available: :

> 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves area reduction ratio (URR) >

65% and > 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves Kt/V Daugirdas Tl
1.2,

Signature

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this %r;y of Q’L’, 2012

g Fogs”

Aty
RENART w,
Signature 6f Notary

N\ q‘%ﬁ%gb" .,"’

%

Sev %
$§K ) ?J-
A s Z
Seal g 1* w i E
R ¥ ;=
;";’, '_‘ &Aﬁtﬁ%’. §
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ATTACHMENT 39

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Applicant documents that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or excced the
estimated total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient
financial resources from cash and securities. Applicant will fund the project through capital
contributions from its members. In the event that such contributions are insufficient to cover the
costs assoctated with this project, U.S. Renal Carc Inc. will provide funding 1o Applicant
through USRC Alliance, LLC by way of a revolving promissory note. As evidence of U.S.
Renal Carc Inc.'s financial viability, we have included audited financials for 2008-2010. In
addition, included in Attachment 42 is a certification from U.S. Renal Care Inc. attesting 1o the
rcasonableness of the financing arrangement. Lastly, the master lease for dialysis equipment 1s
also included in this attachment. The lessee contemplated by the master lease is a wholly owned
subsidiary of U.S. Renal Care Inc. and the equipment wili be subsequently leased to USRC Villa
Park, LLC.

2114828-2
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edlition

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch’s or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody’s (the rating shall be affirned
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

« Section 1120.120 Availahility of Funds - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIl - $1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial rescurces shaft be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated tota!
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$1.316.057 a) Cash and Securities — stalements (e.g., audited financial statements, letlers from financia)
! ! institutions, board resolutians) as to;

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any securily, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest o be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
assel from the dale of applicant's submission through project completion;

by Pledpges ~ for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c} Gifts and Bequests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time table of receipts;

$1.627.726 d} Debi — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable
it or permanent interesi rates over the debt time period, and the anlicipated repayment schedule) for
any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project. including:

1} For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence thal the governmental unit has the authority 10 issue the bands and
evidence of the deltar amount of the issue, including any discounting

anticipated;

2} For revenue bends, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3 For mortgages, a letter from the prospeciive lender altesting to the expeclation

of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, incleding the anticipated
interest rale and any conditions associated with ihe mortgage, such as, but not
limited 10, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, 2 copy of the |ease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase oplions, any capital improvements to the properly and
provisicn of capital equipment;

5) Far any option to lease, a copy of the optien, including all terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by 2
statement of funding avaitability from an officiat of ihe govemmental unil. f funds are to be made
avaitable from subsequent fiscal vears, a copy of a resolution or ather action of the governmental
unit atlesting ta this intent;

f) Granis — a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
tirme of receipt;

a} All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any ather funds that will be
used for the project.

$2.043,783 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

: APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-33, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Page 50
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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Suite 3100
717 North Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.8. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
intemal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our andits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMe P

Dallas, Texas
April 27,2011

KPHG LLP iz a Delzwwere Orited Babily partherstip,
e US. memoer i of KPMG Inemstonal Cooperatve
"KPMG |rtemational”), o Swisa entity.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIIHARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Assets 2010 2009

Cash and cash equivalents L3 9,537,107 15,325,357
Accounis receivable, net of allowances of $13,458,494 and $8,460,232 48,449,631 25,%00,874
Inventories ' 3,100,193 1,369,198
Other receivables 9,994 938 4,863,513
Deferred tax asset 6,215,457 904,600
Other current assets 2,636,244 1,429,165

Total current assets 79,933,570 49,792,707
Property and equipment, net 46,781,941 19,251,600
Amortizable intangibles, net 27,349,714 12,241,001
Trade names 859,000 —
Investment in affiliate — 217,670
Goodwill 190,524,762 67,922,354
Other long-term assets 470,502 238,961
Deferred taxes — 906,459

Total assets $ 345919889 150,570,762

Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payable 5 0,045,119 5,675,616
Accrued expenses 24,248,618 16,485,807
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 2,924,662 £,447,595
Current portion of related-party notes payable 125,000 125,000

Total current liabilities 36,343,399 23,734,018
Long-term debt and capital lease gbligations, net of current portion 181,723,522 62,010,592
Related-party notes payable — 125,000
Other long-term liabilities 440,844 532,982
Deferred tax liability 9,480,942 —
Preferred stock accrued dividends 19,831,208 14,736,426

Total Liabilities 247,820,315 101,139,018

Commitments and contingencies

U.S. Renat Care, Inc. cquity:
Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 20,325,000,

issucd and outstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares) 123,500 123,500
Preferred stock B and B-1($0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000, issued and outstanding 1,431,666 and 1,415,666 shares) 14,317 14,157
Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000,
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,500,962 shares) 245,010 245,010
Preferred stock D (30.01 par value. Authorized shares 8,333,333;
issued and cutstanding 8,333,333 and 0 shares) 83,333 —
Common stock ($0.01 par value, Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000; issued and outstanding 7,074,324 and 7,074,324 shares) 70,744 62,229
Additional paid-in capital - 38,667,471 36,454,222
Retained eamings 5,291,320 1,467,604
Total U.8. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders® equity 44,495,695 38,396,812
Noncontrolling interests (including redeemable interests with redemption
values of $40,999,428 and $23,600,000) 53,603,879 11,034,932
Total equity 98,099,574 49,431,744
Total liabilities and equity b 345,919,889 150,570,762

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.

ATTACHMENT 39 150




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Patient care costs
General and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts
Legal cost/settlement
Transaction costs
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Qperating income
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)
Net income

Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

2010 2009
237,606,328 153,164,637
154,284,195 98,842,829

20,207,561 15,601,927
6,898,682 4,585,251
(352,334) 286,647
9,076,731 460,465
14,655,411 7,957,301
204,770,246 127,734,420
32,836,082 25,430,217
10,192,698 2,923,456
22,643,384 22,506,761
5,826,130 (3,191,190)
16,817,254 25,697,951
13,023,628 10,103,151
3,793,626 15,594,800
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 16,817,254 25,697,951
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 14,655,411 7,957,301
Noncash dispute settiernent 450,000 —
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent 31,337 {83,399)
Provision for doubtful accounts 6,308,682 4,585,251
Deferred income taxes 2,929.214 (4,794,034)
Equity investment income (805,801) (17,646}
Stock compensation expense 102,652 55,096
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 41,711 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable (11,223,175) (9,500,021}
Inventories 1,065,325 1,046,906
Other reccivables (2,773,018) (529,248)
Other current assets (326,422) (93,041)
Other long-term assets (1,049,343) 7,176
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 585,137 (5,143,239)
Other noncurrent liabilities 331,317 (12,936)
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,730,281 19,176,117
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (116,523,175) (386,762)
Sale of property and equipment 3,172,324 —
Additions of property and equipment, net (18,394,835) (7,431,804)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (18,991,500} —_
Investment in affiliate 101,335 (200,024)
Net cash used in investing activities {150,635,851) (8,018,590}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 181,952,491 8,750,000
Payments on long-term debt and related-party notes payable {73,000,188) (600,224)
Deferred financing costs (7,938,537) (7,424)
Proceeds from capital leases 3,260,343 336,118
Capital leasc payments (1,243,894) (799,901)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 25,015,999 316,000
Proceeds from issvance of common stock 43,648 29,823
Repurchase of preferred stock — {75,000)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 695,750 267,750
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (11,668,292) (9,463,932)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 117,117,320 {1,246,790)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,788,250) 9,910,737
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15,325,357 5,414,620
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year L 9,537,107 15,325,357

(Continued)
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U.5. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDJARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $
Cash paid for taxes

Supplemental disclosures of noncash invesfing and financing activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends )
Capital lease financing

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2010 2009
8,474,494 2,780,464
4,814,265 1,260,000
5,094,782 3,924,249

99,126 463,783

ATTACHMENT 39

154




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(1) Organization and Significant Accounting Policics

(@)

6

(c)

(@)

(¢)

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient Kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2010, the Company operated
84 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center operations, as
of December31, 2010, the Company provides acute dialysis services through contractual
relationships with 21 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
recognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments,

Accounis Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially ali of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtful

7 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost report filings and as
such, the actual payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermediaries.

Amounts Due from Drug Rebates

The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivables, represents balances owed
to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPQ), vitamin D and iron. Puring
2010 and 2009, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upon
volume purchased. This incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition,
there was an additional annual incentive based on volume that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate, The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 vears
Leaschold improvements Life of lease
Furniture and equipment S years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value. The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred. '

8 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2009

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company's primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients,
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
57% and 55% of gross accounts receivable at December31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilitics include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the cffective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in interest expense,

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible asscts and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and cther indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2010 and 2009 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable
or the uscful life has changed, When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient
to recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair
value.

9 (Continued)
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U.S, RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table details the Company’s financial instruments where the carrying value and fair
value differ (amounts in millions):

Fatr value at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Significant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobscrvable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financial instrument 2010 {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Senior secured credit
facility $ 178,917 — — 189,632

The estimates of the fair value of the Company’s senior secured credit facility are based upon a
discounted present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital
and credit markets, the actual rates that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could
materially differ from the estimates the Company has used.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps arc determined using quoted market prices for similar swap
agreements and were nominal at December 31, 2010.

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

. Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or ne market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

For the Company’s other financial instruments, including the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenscs the Company estimatesthe carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.

10 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A vsual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company’s dialysis
treatment and other patient services. However, aciual collected revenue is normally at a discount to
this fee schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company’s dialysis facilities arc certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis services (ESRD Program). Prior to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicare ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies. There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and pharmaceuticals such as
EPQ, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning January 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which all ESRD payments
are now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based vpon a market basket index, less a preductivity improvement factor. The bundled payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass all goods and services provided during the dialysis treatment,
inciuding pharmaccuticals that were historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab services that were previously paid directly to laboratories are also included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a result of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaceutical utilization since reimbursement is set at a fixed average reimbursement
rate.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rate includes reductions of 2% and 0.8%, respectively, to conform
to the provisions of MIPPA and to establish budget neutrality. Further, there is 2 5.94% reduction
tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be carned back upon the presence of these
certain patient characteristics and co-morbidities at the time of treatment. Historically, dialysis
providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors and this may be difficult to capture
initially. There are also other provisions which may impact reimbursement including an outlier
adjustment and a low volume facility adjustment.

As of November 1, 2010, dialysis providers were required to make an election as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of January 1, 201! under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundied reimbursement system beginning January 1, 201 1.
Once this election was made, it may not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare certification
subsequent to November 1, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system.
Beginning in 2012, dialysis providers will also be subject to a 2% annual Medicare payment
withholding that can be earned back by facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance
standards.

11 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment fumished to
patients. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are often delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administcred by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractuyal terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which the Company
has formal agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known or otherwise upon
historical collection expertence adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for scrvices provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
grants to employees, using a fair-value measurement method, Under the fair-value method, the
estimated fair value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

12 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 22%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of 3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of
1.08% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from two public dialysis
companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplificd method as permitted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission's Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share Based Payment. The
expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent history and
expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers, and other
grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five year United
States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 352,000 and 195,000 options granted
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see note 9).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASBissued an accounting standard, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the prescntation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing te noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are cxpected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

13 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company adopted the accounting standard update ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January 1, 2009. Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencics
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit, For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the
relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open, As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S, federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within cach jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no longer subject to
.S, federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authoritics for the years before 2006.1n
2010,th ¢ Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 U.S. income tax
returns. The resolution of this examination resulted in no additional tax payment.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses for all periods presented.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiarics do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their earnings and losses are included in the retums of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement as a means of hedging its exposure to
and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. These agrecments are designed as cash flow
hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the economic
effect of converting portions of the Company’s variable rate debt to fixed rates.

In 2010, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Insiruments and Hedging Activities (included in FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging}, which amends the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging
activities. The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
(see note 6).

14 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

()  Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are not permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statemnents.

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent events not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2010 and through April 27,
2011, the date on which the financial statements were issued.

(u}  Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 consolidated financial statement balances to
conform with the 2010 presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on eamings or

stockholders” equity.

(2) Fixed Assets .r
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, property and equipment consists of the following:

2010 2009

Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems $ 42,891,347 22,202,152
Land and buildings 6,747,940 —
Leasehold improvements 21,493,319 9,731,329
New center construction in progress 778,865 2,829,967
71,911,471 34,763,448
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {25,125,530) (15,511,848)
i) 46,781,941 19,251,600

Year ended December 31

2010 2009
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment 5 9,304,459 5,355,638
15 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was as follows:

2010 2009
Equipment h 10,671,572 7,312,321
Less accumulated depreciation (6,099,837) (4,092,015)
3 4,571,735 3,220,306

Acquisitions/Disposition
The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and

liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair valves as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best available information.

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible asscts acquired.

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

(@)  Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc.Ac quisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc. (DCA) for $11.25 per share. DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
acute services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Chio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina.
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 20190.

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately $110 million and costs related thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company’s senior secured and subordinated loan agreements (see note 6) and the
issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (see note 8). All purchase accounting adjustments are final
except for certain deferred tax calculations primarily related to flow-throuph entitics.

16 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows:

Assets:
Cash $ 1,294,958
Net accounts receivable 17,072,334
Inventory 2,684,480
Other receivables 1,280,382
Other current assets 2,257,895
Total current assets 24,590,049
Property and equipment, net 20,526,500
Amortizable intangibles, net 12,857,381
Goodwill 113,828,342
Other long-term assets 863,600
Total assets $ 172,765,872
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,958,871
Accrued expenses 6,877,187
Total current Labilities 11,136,058
Long-term debt 9,586,971
Other long-term liabilities (326,883)
Deferred tax liability 3,808,826
Total liabilities b 24,204,972
Equity:
Minority interest $ 38,310,900
Tolal equity $ 38,310,900
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San Antonio

On July 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% interest in one of its joint venture
entities which it previously had a 40% noncontrolling ownership interest for $7.2 million. The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility (see note 6) and
cash on hand. The consclidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company’s
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010. Previously, the Company's investment was recorded
using the equity method of accounting. The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately
$922,000.

Assets:
Cash $ 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22,726
Other receivables 7,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total current assets 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974,832
Goodwill 8,426,146
Total assets 3 11,280,069
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 25,983
Accrued cxpenses 145,888
Total liabilities $ 171,871
Equity:
Minority interest $ 2,986,200
Tetal equity b 2,986,200
December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (December Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a 51% majority
intcrest in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately $1 million was funded from
operating cash flow.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
Inventory b 89,114
Other current assets 26,017
Fixed assets 416,000
Goodwill 869,546
Total assets $ 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses $ 357,713

L)

Total liabilities 357,713

{d} Medicore Disposifion
On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the net assets of its medical products business

that was acquired in the DCA acquisition. The Company sold, assigned and transferred cerlain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain or loss.

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company engages in the purchase and sale of equity interests with respect to its consolidated
subsidiarics that do not result in a change of control. These transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling
interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was the majority owner in 48 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling

interests in those 48 joint ventures, 17 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that arc cither currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totaled $7.3 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $41.0 million and $23.6 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2010,
$7.0 million of put rights arc currently exercisable and the remaining $34.0 million become exercisable at

future dates.

During the year, there were nine time-based puts exercised in the Company’s South Texas region and one
in the San Antonio region. The Company paid $18.4 million relating 1o these puts. As a result of the DCA
acquisition, there was one change of control put that was partially exerciscd at one clinic for $600,000.
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Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Noncompetition agreements b 31,836,273 20,132,544
Lease agreements 580,106 76,221
Deferred debt issuance costs 7,939,537 1,910,489
Licenses 359,000 —
40,714,916 22,119,254
Less accumulated amortization (13,365,202) (9,878,243)
Net amortizable intangible assets 3 27,349,714 12,241,011

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

2010 2009
Lease agreements b 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amortization (648,44%) {556,311)
Net amortizable intangible assets 3 440,844 532,982

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Deferred debt
Noncompelition issuance Leasc

agreements costs agreements Licenses
201 § 4,564,626 1,323,090 396,359 71,800
2012 4,492 939 1,323,090 307,657 71,800
2013 4,418,857 1,323,090 227,206 71,800
2014 4,322,211 1,323,090 183,663 71,800
2015 1,281,681 1,323,090 149,418 29,917
Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2010 2009
Balance at January 1 $ 67922354 67,559,887
Goodwill adjustments (521,626) 362,467
Goodwill acquired 123,124,034 —
Balance at December 31 $ 190,524,762 67,922,354
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The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization cxpense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the

term of the leasc.

Long-Term Debt

On June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a new senior credit agreement that consists of: (a) a
$132.5 million scnior secured term loan (Term Loan) and (b) a $40 million senior secured revolving credit
facility (Revolver). Also on June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a $40 million senior subordinated Joan
agreement (the Subordinated Loan). The proceeds of the Term Loan and the Subordinated Loan along with
available cash on hand were uiilized to: (a) pay off the Company’s existing CIT Term Loan B and
Revolver (which bore interest at 4.25% at December 31, 2009), (b) pay expenses and fees associated with
the new senior secured and subordinated loan agreements, and (c) to fund the DCA acquisition (see note 3)
including cost and fees related thereto.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver {collectively Senior Securcd Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.75%) or the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted
based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The new Senior Secured Loan alsc provides for an annual
unused commitment fee of 0.75% based upon the average revolving credit commitment less outstanding
borrowings on the Revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31, 2010, borrowings under the
Senior Secured Loans bore interest at 6.25%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with
11.25% paid in cash per annum.The remain ing 2% of intercst on the Subordinated Loan (PIK Interest) will
be capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the loan.

The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $331,250 in each year from 2011 through 2015
with the balance of $124,881,250 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one- time payment of
$40 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated Loan mature on June 2, 2015, June 2, 2016 and June 2, 2017,
respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is repaid within the
first four years subsequent to June 3, 2010,

Commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the Company is required to prepay its
outstanding Senior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: (a) 50% of the net
proceeds of certain capital contributions as defined in the credit agreement, (b) 100% of the proceeds of
asset sales or the proceeds received from casualty event settlements that are not reinvested or permitted
pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (¢) 100% of the proceeds of indebtedness that is incurred
and not permitted pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment under the
Senior Secured Loans, the Company is required to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with 100% of
the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casualty event settlement that are not reinvested
or pemmitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement,
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The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agreements are collateralized by most of the
Company's assets, including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to permitted
capital leases. The Subordinated Loan is subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The
Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan agreements include various events of default and contain certain
restrictions on the operations of the business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including
capital expenditures, investments and the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include
covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, interest coverage, and total debt leverage, as well as other

customary covenants and events of defaults,

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Secured Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met all debt payment obligations. At December3(, 2010,
approximately $33.0 million was unused and available under the Revolver.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

Senior secured credit facility:
CIT term loan B
CIT revolver
Term loan
Revolver
Subordinated loan
Other notes payable
Capital lease obligations

Less current portion

22

2010 2009
— 34,873,000
— 24,968,762
131,506,250 —
7,000,000 —
40,410,549 —
23,305 23,532
5,708,480 3,592,893
184,648,584 63,458,187
(2,924,662) (1,447,595)
181,723,922 62,010,592
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital Iease obligations at December 31, 2010 were as
follows:

Long-term Capital lease
debt obligations
2011 $ 1,346,461 1,964,299
2012 1,326,844 1,402,897
2013 1,325,000 1,208,797
2014 1,325,000 988,427
2015 8,325,000 486,895
Thereafter 165,291,799 309,975
$ 178,940,104 6,861,290
Less interest portion at 5.719% — 8.561% (1,152,810)
Total h 5,708,480

According to the senior secured loan agreement, the Company was required to enter into an interest rate
hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the closing date. The Company entered into a three
year Hedge Agreement on September 1, 2010 which consists of an interest rate cap on the LIBOR floating
rate of the senior secured loans at 1.75% until August 31, 2011. Additionally the Company entered into a
swap from September 1, 2011 to September 1, 2013 effectively fixing the base rate at 2.32%. The notional
amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivalent to 35% of the Term Loan amount borrowed.
The fair values of the interest rate cap and swap are insignificant at December 31, 2010 and are not being
accounted for as an effective hedge resulting in no adjustment to fair value being recorded to the statement
of operations as interest expense.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit} consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Current:
Federal $ 1,652,164 678,126
State 1,244,752 924,717
Deferred:
Federal 3,086,086 (4,783,401)
State , (156,872) (10,632)
h) 5,826,130 (3,191,190)

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
Texas gross margin tax, which is not based on pre-tax income and income fax attributable to
noncontrolling interest,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible
Net operating loss carryforwards and contribution limitation
Flow through entities
Property plant and equipment

Other

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differences in depreciation and amortization

Goodwill

The valunation allowance consisted of the following:

Balance at January 1
Increase (decrease) during the year

Balance at December 31

Total deferred tax assets

Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
5,776,527 765,594
858,471 1,345,244
4,328,310 3,671,996
197,679 236,104
151,589 332,312
11,312,576 6,351,250
(3,546,732) (25,65T)
(11,031,330) (4,514,534)
(14,578,062) {4,540,191)
(3,265,486) 1,811,059

2010 2009
— 6,149,048
— (6,149,048)

The Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $205,000 as of December 31, 2009,
which were utilized in 2010. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred
tax assets at December 31, 2010 as it expects to gencrate future taxable income sufficient to realize such

deferred tax assets,

Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 108,783,333 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 sharcs of common stock and 55,258,333 shares of preferred
stock. Preferrcd stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board

of directors.

(a) Series A Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred outstanding.
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Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Serics B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2010 and 2009, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 545,000 and 529,000 shares, respectively, of Serics B
Preferred outstanding,

Series B-1 Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred outstanding.

Series D Preferred Stock

During 2010, 8,333,333 shares of Preferred D Stock werc issued at a price of $3 per share for total
net proceeds of approximately $25.0 million in connection with the acquisition of DCA. As of
December 31, 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred ocutstanding,

Dividends

Series A Preferred, Series C Preferred, and Series D Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive
cash dividends at the rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are
cumulative from the date of criginal issvance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock do not bear interest and are payable
generally at the time of a liquidating event as defined in the agreement. Series B Preferred,
Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the board of directors out of the Company’s assets legally available thercfore, so long as
all accrued dividends on then outstanding Series A, Scries C, and Series D Preferred stock have been
paid or declared and set apart.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, SeriesC, and Series D Preferted stock is redeemable beginning on
September 1, 2020, if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shareholders of Series A, Series C,
and Series D Preferred. Serigs B and Serics B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on
September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A, Series C, and Series D
Preferred Stock and if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A, Series C, and
Series D Preferred, voting as a single class, and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding
shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class.

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments calculated using the sum
of the original issue prices (31 per share for Series A,Seri es C, and Series D Preferred, and $1.50 for
Series C and Series B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.
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(k)  Conversion Rights

o

W

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D Preferred stock is convertible at
any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of
Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D converts automatically upon a qualified public
offering. Upon such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and afier payment or provision for payment of all debis and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal
to their original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past
dividends, combinations, sphits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b) second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their original share purchase prices, plus
any accrued and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits,
recapitalizations, and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Series A
Preferred Stock, Series C Prefeired Stock and Series D Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to
Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock shall have
received, in total including the payment under (a) above, an amount equal to three (3) times the
Series A and Series C and two (2) times the Series D original issue price, respectively; and
(d) fourth, to the holders of Commeon Stock, any remaining available amounts.

Voting Rights

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible, For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series I Preferred stockholders vote together as a
separate class. In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A, Series C and
Series I Preferred stockholders must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is enfitled one vote. As long as Series A, Series C and Series D
Preferred stock is outstanding, and except for various defined events, Sertes A,S eries C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an
as-if-converted to common stock basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock

basis, can change the number of authorized shares cutstanding.
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Other Terms

If Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared,
and no shares shall be redcemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued
Series A, Sertes C and Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is
declared on Series A,Se ries C and Series D Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the
board of directors.

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities
on a proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A, Series C or
Series D Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities.
Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred,and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockholders who wish o transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. There were 6,000,000 and 5,400,000 shares
available for grant as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

(a)

Stock Option Plan

Awards grantcd under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December31, 2010 and 2009 included $70,744 and $13,271 respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2010, there was $22,072 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2010, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 2.37 years.

27 {Continued)

ATTACHMENTY 3%

175




1.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2810 and 2009

The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock opticn plan:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards price
Outstanding at beginning of
year 1,016,066 $ 0.14 1,061,692 % 0.14
Granled 352,000 0.26 195,000 0.15
Exercised {291,472) 0.15 {208,751} 0.14
Canceled — — (31,875) 8.11
Outstanding at end of year 1,076,594 § 0.[8 1,016,066 $ 0.14
Awards exercisable at
year-end 380,742 % 0.14 41294] % 0.14

(b}  Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2010 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair

market value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $31,908 in 2010 and $41,825 in 2009. The

following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2010 2009
Qutstanding balance at beginning of year $ 3,401,558 3,401,558
Granted 560,000 —
Exercised — —_
Forfeited —_ .
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 3,961,558 3,401,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2010 2009
Outstanding balance at beginning of year $ 641,122 1,384,334
Granted 560,000 —
Vested (488,369) (743212)
Forfeited —_ —
Repurchased —_— —
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 712,753 641,122

At December3l, 2010, 3,248,805 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2010, there was approximately $320,471 of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 59 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally secks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary refemal
source for most of the Company’s centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services fo the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the

- Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a pericd of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 44 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and sublcases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center, Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $22 million at December 31, 2010, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2010 and 2009, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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Company entered into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lease is expected to commence in 2011. The future lease payments payable under this
lease are approximately $1.5 million.

The Company's York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited liability partnership in which
the Company has a 60% ownership interest with the remaining 40% owned by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minority ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility.

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity interests in
entities that operate the Company’s dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
more favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm’s-length bargaining between
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolliing interest holder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $125,000 and $250,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual installments from May 1, 2006
through May 1, 201 1.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,011 and $293,101, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $100,000 and $108,333 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subject to extensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patients, maintenance of
proper ownership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regunlatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company’s dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authoritics,

The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally referred to as
the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or
reccive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment. The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a false or fraudulent
claim for payment to the federal government. Another federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular healthcare provider.
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthoare
laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from govermnment healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401{k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to
contribute a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
effective Janvary |, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired busincsses. For the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the Company made
matching coniributions to the plan of $386,328 and $391,053.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2010 or 2009.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
Dccember 31, 2010 and 2009

On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Lid. (Rencare) conceming accounts receivable that arose prior to the ciose of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff’s claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain liabilities. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. Both sides appealed and the Company fully prevailed in the appeal. The
appellant court moved that the plaintiff should reccive nothing. Plaintiff moved for reconsideration and the
appellant court dismissed their motion. Plaintiffs are seeking further appellant review. At this time, the
Company cannot determine what will be the ulfimate resolution. The Company incurred icgal and other
professional fees related to this litigation. These expenses aggregated $27,208 and $286,647 in 2010 and
2009, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it

recorded in 2008.

In February, 2010, and prior to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPO utilization at certain DCA clinics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date. While there is no indication of such at
this time, any negative findings could result in: (a} substantial monetary penalties, (b) excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, and (c) the Company incurring legal
expenses and management time, any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurred legal fees related to this investigation of
$389,741 in 2010, subsequent to its acquisition of DCA.

In December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) from the U.S. Attomney for
the District of New Jersey requesting documents relating to laboratory tests performed on patients of the
Company at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company is in the process of gathering the required
documents and performing its own review of such documents. While the Company believes that it is not
the subject of the government’s investigation, the outcome of this matter is uncertain and the Company has
risk of an adverse outcome that could resuit in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (sce note 4).
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2010, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating lcases with terms of one year or more consist of the
following:

2011 $ 9,210,791
2012 8,665,034
2013 7,709,826
2014 6,288,782
2015 ' 5,566,500
Thereafter 12,080,991

Rent expense was $8,129,164 and $6,290,202 for the years ended December3l, 2010 and 2009,
tespectively.
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KPMG LLP

Suite 3100
717 North Hamwooe Street
Dafllas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Auditors® Report

The Board of Directars
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2009 and 2088, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial staternents based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatetnent. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial staternent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our epinion.

In our cpinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 3t, 2009 and
2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note | to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of
accounting for noncontrolling interests in 2009 retrospective to 2008 due to the adoption of new
accounting requirements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, as of Januvary 1, 2009,

KPMe LLP

Dallas, Texas
April 21,2010

KPMG LLF, a LL.E. imied kablity parinersh, 5w 15,
nregrwt e of KPMG A Swiss T
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts reccivable, net of allowances of $8,460,232 and $6,589,745
Inventories

Other receivables

Other current assets

Total current assels

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Investment in affiliate
Goodwill

Other long-term assets
Delerred taxes

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders® Equity

Accounis payable

Accrued expenses

Current pottion of bong-term debt and capital Ilease obligations
Current portion of related party notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Related party notes payable

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

U.8. Renal Care, Inc. Equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 20,325,000,
issued and outstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1{$0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,415,666 and 1,449,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000;
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,300,962 shares)

Common stock (30,01 par value, Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000; issued and outstanding 6,222,852 and 6,014,102 shares)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained camings/{accumulated deficit)

Total U.S. Renai Care, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Noncentrolling interesis {including redeemable interests with redemption
values of $23,600,000 and $22,400,000)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,

2009 2008
15,325,357 5,414,620
25,900,874 20,986,104

1,369,198 2,416,104
4,863,513 4,334,265
2,333,765 1,340,190
49,792,707 34,491,283
19,251,600 16,731,509
12,241,011 14,848,215

217,670 —
67,922,354 67,559,887

238,961 246,136

906,45% 373,701

150,570,762 134,250,731
5,675,616 7,328,583
16,485,807 20,000,375
1,447,595 1,525,241

125,000 164,440
23,734,018 29,018,639
62,010,592 53,638,587

125,000 250,000

532,982 642,281

— 3,360,742
14,736,426 10,812,177
101,139,018 97,722,426
123,500 123,500
14,157 14,497
245,010 243,010
62,229 60,141
36454222 40,056,300
1,497,694 {(14,097,106)
38,396,812 26,400,342
11,034,532 10,127,963
49,431,744 36,528,305
150,570,762 134,250,731
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U.S, RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Censolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Net loperating revenues $ 153,164,637 127,567,973
Gperating expenses:
Patient care costs 98,842,829 86,674,644
General and administrative 15,601,927 13,828,191
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,585,251 4,339,141
Seller litigation settlement 286,647 2,269,203
Transaction costs 460,465 791,162
Depreciation and amortization 7,957,301 6,679,228
Total operating expenses 127,734,420 114,581,569
Qperating income 25,430,217 12,986,404
Interest expense, net 2,923,456 3,999,912
Income before income taxes 22,506,761 8,986,492
Income tax (benefit) provision (3,191,190} 2,543,899
Net income 25,697,951 6,442,593
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 10,103,151 8,517,409
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc. $ 15,594,800 (2,074,816)

- See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Cash flows from operating aclivities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconctle net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent
Provision for doubtful accounts
Deferred income taxes
Equity investment income
Stock compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Qther receivables
Other current assels
Other long-term assets
Accounts payable and accrusd expenses
Other noncurrent liabilitics

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Additions of property and equipment, net
Payment for noncompete agreement
Investment in affiliate

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings
Payments on long-term debt and related party notes payable
Deferred financing costs
Proceeds from capital leases
Capital lease payments
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Proceeds from issvance of common stock
Repurchase of preferred stock
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Net cash provided (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2609 2008
25,697,951 6,442,593
7,957,301 6,679,228
(83.399) {138,390)
4,585,251 4,339,141
(4,794,034) 1,082,400
{17,646) —
55,096 74,582
(9,500,021) (9,669,549)
1,046,906 (511,064)
{529,248) (871,725)
(93,041) (436,327)
7,176 (20,698}
(5,143,239 9,889,017
(12,936) {97,278)
19,176,117 16,761,930
(386,762) (5,964,131)
{7,431,804) (7,530,045)
— {350,000)
(200,0249) —
(8,018,550) (13,844,176)
8,750,000 12,004,250
{600,224} (4,284,519)
(7.424) {437,334)
336,118 251,615
(799,901) (793,974)
316,000 466,000
29,823 46,631
(75,000) —
267,750 1,702,911
(9,463,932} (8,341.814)
(1,246,790} 613,766
9,910,737 3,531,520
5,414,620 1,883,100
5,325,157 5,414,620
{Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Staternents of Cash Flows
Years cnded December 31, 2009 and 2008

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest %
Cash paid for taxes

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing
activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends $
Capital lease financing

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.

2009 2008
2,780,464 4,002,642
1,260,000 1,269,843
3,924,249 3,882,015

463,783 —
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

(1) Organization and Significant Accounting Policics

{a)

®)

¢

()

(e}

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2009, the Company operated
42 cutpatient dialysis clinics in Texas and Arkansas. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center
operations, as of December31, 2009, the Company provides acute dialysis services through
contractual relationships with 13 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management t¢ make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and Habilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions invelve revenue
recognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
Jiabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash qnd Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments,

Acconnts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients, The estimated provision for doubtful
accounts is recorded te the extent it is probable that a portion or all of 2 patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a pumber of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

7 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is. included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of our annual cost report filings and as such, the actual
payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the Medicare
program fiscal intermediaries.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of uscful lives is as follows:

Leasehold improvements Life of lease
Furniture and equipment 5years
Computers 3 years

Capita! lease assets and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or
the cstimated useful life of the improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is
recorded at fair value. The cost of improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs
and maintenance charges are expensed as incurred.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
55% and 60% of gross accounis receivable at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms {five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement

8 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized vsing the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debi. In the case of debt repayments prior fo the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in refinancing charges.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible asscis and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at ieast annually. The
annual evaluation for 2009 and 2008 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite Lived Assets

" We evaluate long lived assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable or the
useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to
recover an asset's camrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair

value,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following details our financial instruments where the camrying value and fair value differ,
(amounts in millions):

Fair valuc at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Significant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobservabie
December 31, items inputs inpuls
Financial instrument 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) ~ {Level )
Senior secured credit
facility $ 59,842 —_— — 57,412

The estimates of the fair value of our senior secured credit facility are based vwpon a discounted
present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital and credit
markets, the actual rates that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could materially
differ from the estimates we have used.

9 {Continued)

ATTACHMENT 3%

191




(n)

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, 1hat may be used to measure fair value. The three

levels of inputs are as follows:

» Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities,

- Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no markel aclivity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities,

For our other financial instruments, including our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses and other long-term debt we estimate the carrying amounts
approximate fair value duc 1o their short-term maturity.

Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for cur dialysis treatment and
other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normally at a discount to this fee
schedulie. Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for services and

amounts paid by third-party payors,

Our dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues reimbursed by
the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for dialysis
services (ESRD Program). Under the ESRD Program, Medicarc reimbursement rates for dialysis
services are set in advance pursuant to Part B of the Medicare Act. An established composite rate set
by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) govemns the Medicare reimbursement
available for a designated group of dialysis services, including dizlysis treatments, supplies used for
such treatments, medications, and certain laboratory costs. The composite rate is subject to regional
differences based on various factors, including labor costs. Other ancillary services and items,
including EPO and other drugs, are eligible for separate reimbursement from the Medicare program
and are not part of the comyposite rate,

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment furnished to
patients. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is cligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient's personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost repont filings
subject to individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are often delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. [n addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall

10 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance poriion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which we have formal
agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known, or otherwise upon historical
collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial revenue
recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company has
multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these coniracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers, In addition, for services provided by noncentracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the coresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option grants to
employees, using a fair-value measurcment method. Under the fair-value method, the estimated fair
value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service period, which is
generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated vatue of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased,

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black Scholes option
pricing model. The wecighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was $0.04 per share and was calculated based on the
following assumptions: expected volatility of 28%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of
3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of 1.50% to 3.34%. Expected volatility was derived using data
drawn from two public dialysis companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified
method as permitied by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s $taff Accounting Bulletin, Share
Based Payment. The expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent
history and expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers,
and other grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five year
United States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 195,000 and 550,000 options
granted during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see note 9).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASB issued an accounting standard, Noncowtrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests {previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
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subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling inferest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of conselidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures. The disclosure requirements are to be applied prospectively to
fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Classification of such interests have been
recorded retrospectively as noncontrolling interests and will appear in stockholders’ equity in our
consolidated balance sheets and presented separately on the statement of operations.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing to noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the cquity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not whoily owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability methed. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities arc recognized for the future tax consequences attributable fo the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to appiy to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or seftled. The effect on deferred tax asscts and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is ¢stablished when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The Company adopied the accounting standard update (ASC 740), Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January 1, 2009. Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial siatement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustzin the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate scttlement with the
relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurnisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment io apply. With few cxceptions, the Company is no
longer subject to U.S, federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the
years before 2006. The Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenuc Service of
its U.S. income tax returns for 2007, The Company expects these examinations to be concluded and
seitled in the next 12 months. The Company has no unrecognized tax benefits related to the period
being examined. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the resolution of this
examination will resuit in no additional tax payment.
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The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penaltics in operating expenses for all periods presented. During the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, the Company has recognized interest and penalties of $0,

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries de not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their eamings and losses are included in the returns of, and taxed direcily to, the members and

partners of these subsidiaries.

Recently Issued Aceounting Pronounce ments

In December 2007, the FASB issuved an accounting standard (ASC 805), Business Combinations,
which significantly changes the accounting for business combinations, including, among other
changes, new accounting concepts in determining the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired,
recording the fair value of contingent considerations and contingencies a acquisition date and
expensing acquisition and restructuring costs. ASC 805 is effective for business combinations which
occur during fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company made no acquisitions in
2009. We expect ASC 805 will have an impact on accounting for business combinations but the
effect will be dependent upon acquisitions at that time.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, as of January 1, 2008 for financial assets and liabilities that are remeasured and reported
at fair value each reporting period. FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that
distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the
hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hicrarchy). The adoption of the standard to the
Company’s financiat assets did not have any impact on the conselidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are nol permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance which divides
nongovernmental U.S. GAAP into authoritative Codifications and guidance that is nonauthoritative.
The Codification is not intended to change U.S. GAAP; however, it does significantly change the
way in which accounting literature is organized and because it completely replaces existing
standards, it will affect the way U.S. GAAP is referenced by most companies in their financial
statements and accounting policies. The Codification is effective for financial statements issued for
interim and annual periods ending afier September 15, 2009. The adoption of the Codifications did
not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements other than changing references to the
appropriate codifications sections.
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Effective December 31, 2609, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent events not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles, The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2009 and through April 21,
2010, the date on which the financial stalements were available to be issued.

(2Z) Fixed Assets

&)

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31

2609 2008
Facility equipment, furniture, and information systemns $ 22,202,152 18,768,243
Leasehold improvements 9,731,329 8,196,592
New center construction in progress 2,829,967 203,156
34,763,448 27,167,991
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (15,511,848} {10,436,482)
$ 19,251,600 16,731,509
Year ended December 31
2009 2008
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment $ 5,355,638 4,125,949
Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was:
_ December 31
2009 2008
Equipment $ 7,312,321 6,168,488
Less accumulated depreciation (4,092,015) {3,056,080)
¥ 3,220,306 3,112,408

Acquisitions

The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair market values as of the effective
acquisition date based upon the best available information.

Amertizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.
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The results of operations fer the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

fe} Eumana Home Dialysis Acquisition

7

On February 1, 2008, the Company acquired an 88% majority interest in the assets and certain
liabilities of Eumana Home Dialysis, Inc. (Eumana), which provides home hemodialysis, acute
hemodialysis, and peritoncal dialysis in patient’s homes and in hospitals in and around Houston,
Texas. The results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial
statements beginning on February 1, 2008,

The Eumana acquisition cost of approximately $6.4 millien was funded from the proceeds of a bank
loan (see note 6},

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows:

Assets:
Cash b 575,348
Inventory 52,687
Other current assets 26,166
Fixed assets 1,140,565
Noncompete agreements and
other identifiable infangibles 845,300
Goodwill 4,305,586
Total assets 6,949,652
Liabilities:
Lease agreements (see note §) (128,492}
Other liabilities (463,848)
Net assets acquired Lt 6,357,312
CRC Acquisition

Effective September 1, 2008, the Company purchased 100% of the stock of Clinical Research
Connections, LLC {(CRC). CRC is a site management organization that provides coordination and
management of clinical trials for pharmaceutical and medical device companies and contract
research organizations. Services are provided in Arkansas and Texas. The results of operations for
these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning on September 1, 2008,

The Company’s initial purchase price for CRC consisted of the repayment of an existing lean and
certain other credit obligations incurred by CRC prior to the acquisition date that aggregated
$572,245 and arc included in accrued expenses below. In addition to the initial purchase price, the
Company will also owe the prior shareholders of CRC an amount (Eamout) equal to the earnings
before depreciation, amortization, and interest of CRC for the three year period subsequent to

15 (Continucd)

ATTACHMENT 39

197




()

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

September 1, 2008 less the initial purchase price. The payments due pursuant to the Earnout will be
made annually beginning 15 months subsequent to close.

In November 2009, the Company made the first of three earmnout payments of $362,467 to prior
shareholders of CRC.

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as

follows:
Assets:
Cash b 2,245
Other current asscts 16,603
Fixed assets 14,573
Noncompete agreements and
other identifiable intangibles 50,000
Goodwill 907,155
Total assets 990,576
Liabilities:
Accounts payable (130,380)
Accrued [iabilities ( 674,764 }
Net assets acquired $ 185,432

Noncontrolling Interests

The company controls and therefore consolidates the results of 41 of its 42 facilities. Similar to its
mvestments in unconsolidated affiliates, the Company engages in the putchase and sale for equity interests
with respect to its consolidated subsidiaries that do not result in a change of control, these transactions are
accounted for as equity transactions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated
subsidiaries, and noncontrolling interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company was the majority owner in 31 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 31 joint ventures, 15 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are cither currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontroiling interests totaled $4.4 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
vafues of $23.6 million and $22.4 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put paymernt that would be required to redeem the inferest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2009,
$7.8 million of put rights arc currently exercisable and the remaining $15.8 million become exercisable in
2010.

During 2009 the company entered into a joint venture relating to dialysis services with a physician in
which the company owns a 40% interest. This is reflected as investment in affiliate in the Company’s

cansolidated balance sheet.
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Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, amortizable and indefinite-lived intangible assets consisted of:

Amortizable intangible assets as follows:

December 31
20069 2008

Noncompetition agreements $ 20,132,544 20,132,544
Lease agreements 76,221 76,221
Deferred debi issuance costs 1,910,489 1,903,064
22,119,254 22,111,829

Less accumulated amortization (9,878,243) (7,263,614)
Net amortizable intangible assets $ 12,241,011 14,848,215

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

December 31
2009 2008
Lease agreements b 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amertization (556,311} (447,012)
Net amortizable intangible assels b 532,982 642,281

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Noncompetition  Deferred debi Lease
agreements issuance costs agreements
2010 3 2,226,310 366,331 88,696
2011 2,226,310 366,264 88,696
2012 2,166,194 183,132 82,101
2013 2,119,921 — 56,801
2014 2,026,763 — 56,301
17 (Continued)
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Changes in the value of goodwill were as fellows:

December 31
2009 2008
Balance at January 1 $ 67,559,887 62,344,166
Goodwill adjustments for prior acquisitions 362,467 (1,020)
Goodwill acquired —_ 5,216,741
Balance at December 31 $ 67,922,354 67,559,887

The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the
term of the lease.

Long-Term Debt

Prior to January I, 2007, the Company entered into a $55 million syndicated credit agreement with CIT
Healthcare LLC, as administrative agent (the CIT Credit Agreement) and two other lenders, for a
$30 million secured loan (Term Loan B) and a $25 million revolving credit facility (CIT Revolver).

Borrowings under the CIT Credit Agreement bear interest based upon a spread in excess of the LIBOR or
the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, and based upon the Company's leverage ratio. The credit agreement
also provides for an annual unused commitment fee of 0.5% based upon the average revolving credit
commitment [ess outstanding borrowings on the revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, borrowings under the CIT Credit Agreemeni bore interest at 4.25% and 6.63%,
respectively.

The CIT Credit Agreement allows the Company to request up to an additional $15 million in revolving
credit commitments at any time during the term of (he revolving credit facility up to 180 days prior to its
scheduled termination. The Term Loan B and the CIT Revolver mature on July 3, 2012 and July §, 2011,
respectively. Quarterly principal payments of $91,000 are due on the Term Loan B. In accordance with the
original terms of the CIT Credit Agreement, the Company was required to make principal repayments
equal o 75% of excess cash flow, as defined, within 120 days of year end until the total leverage ratio at
the end of a fiscal year is 2.50 or lower.

In February 2007, the CIT Credit Agreement was amended to provide, among other things, for the
following: (1) the defined calculation for excess cash flow prepayments attributable to 2006 and payable
by April 30, 2007 was changed so that the Company will not be required to fund the 2007 prepayment;
(2} permitted capital expenditures were increased; and (3) total and senior leverage ratios were increased,
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In February 2008, the CIT Credit Agreement was amended to allow for the purchase of Eumana Home
Dialysis Inc. (see note 3). The credit agreement was increased $6.4 million to a total of $61.4 million. The
additional $6.4 million is a subsequent Term Loan B commitment and matures on the same date as the
original Term Loan B. The scheduled quarterly principal payments on the Term Loan B increased from
$75,000 to 591,000,

In July 2008, the CIT Credit Agreement was amended to provide, among other things, for the following:
(1) distributions in excess of those made to cover third-party owmcrs estimated tax obligations are
permitted assuming the Company is in compliance with its senior leverage ratio; (2) the permitted
acquisition limit was increased; {3)the spread in excess of LIBOR or the US Prime Rate, ns the
benchmark, to determine the interest rate the borrowings base was increased; (4) total and senior leverage
ratios were amcnded; (5) the limits for permitted purchase money debt, capitalized lease obligations and
capital expenditures were increased; and (6) scveral definitions were amended.

The CIT Credit Agreement is guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agrecment are collateralized by most of the Company’s assets,
including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not secured by other credit facilities. The credit
agreement includes various events of default and contains certain restrictions on the operations of the
business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including capital expenditures, investments and
the payment of dividends, and including covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, minimum annual
EBITDA, senior debt leverage and total debt leverage, as well as other customary covenants and events of
defanlts. One event of default pursuant to the CIT Credit Agreement is subjective as it relates to whether
there is a material adverse change in (a) the properties, business, prospects, opcrations, management, or
financial condition of the Company or (b} the ability of the Company to meet its obligations under the
agreement.

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the CIT Credit Agreement and has met
all debt payment obligations. At December 31, 2009, approximately $31,000 was unused and available
under the revolving credit facility,

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

December 31
2009 2008
. Senior secured credit facility:
CIT Term Loan B g 34,873,000 35,237,000
CIT Revolver 24,968,762 16,218,762
Notes payable:
Note payable to First Insurance — 58,802
Note payable to Simmons First Bank of Jonesboro 23,532 36,514
Capital lease obligations 3,592,893 3,612,750
63,458,187 55,163,828
Less curtent portion (1,447,595) (1,525,241}
§ 62,010,592 53,638,587
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligation
follows:

s at December 31, 2009 were as

Long-term Capital lease
debt obligations
2010 h) 370,004 1,349.272
2011 25,350,290 1,123,390
2012 34,145,000 561,963
2013 —_ 453,797
2014 —_ 261,986
Thereafter — 646,178
$ 59,865,294 4,396,586
Less interest portion at 5.7192% — 8.561% (803,693)
Total 5 3,592,893
Income Taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:
2009 2008
Current:
Federal $ 678,126 771,194
State 924,717 690,305
Deferred:
Federal (4,783,401) 1,090,717
State (10,632} (8,317)
¥ (3,191,190) 2,543,899

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal
due to the valuation allowance that was previously required due to h

statutory rate of 34% is primarily
istorical losses and uncertainty of

future taxable income, Texas gross margin tax which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax

attributable to noncontrolling interest.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible 3 765,594 310,441
Net operating loss carryforwards and contribution limitation 1,345,244 4,626,938
Flow through entities 3,671,596 1,407,357
Property plant and equipment 236,104 176,369
Other 332,312 99,998
Total deferred tax assets 6,351,250 6,621,103
Less valuation allowance — (6,149,048}
Net deferred tax assets 6,351,250 472,055
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differences in deprectation and amortization (25,657) (98,355)
Goodwill (4,514,534) (3,360,742)
Total deferred tax liabilities (4,540,191 (3,459,097)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 3 1,811,059 (2,987,042)
The valuation alijowance consisted of the following:
December 31
2008
Balance at January 1 $ 6,149,048 5,794,526
Increase (decrease) during the year (6,149,048} 354,522
Balance at December 31 $ —_ 6,149,048

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,321,958 and $10,400,000 as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which expire beginning in the year 2021 if not previously
utilized. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2009 as they expect to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such deferred tax
assets, The valuation allowance will be reduced at such time as management is able to determing that the
realization of the deferred tax assets is more likely than not to accur.
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Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 100,450,600 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of common stock and 46,925,000 shares of prefemed
stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board
of directors.

(a)

b

(¢

(d)

fe)

Series A Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2008 and 2009, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred outstanding.

Series B Preferred Stack

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2009 and 2008, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2009, there were 529,000 shares of Series B Preferred outstanding,

Series B-1 Preferred Stock

During 2009, the Company repurchased 50,000 shares from a rclated party physician at $1.50 per
share. As of Decemnber 31, 2009 there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock

During 2009, the Company issved 200,000 shares at a price of $1.50 per share. As of December 31,
2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred outstanding.

Dividends

Series A Preferred and Series C Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive cash dividends at the
rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are cumulative from the date
of original issuance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on shares of Series A and
Scries C Preferred stock do not bear interest and are payable gencrally at the time of a liguidating
event as defined in the agreement. Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and commeoen
stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if declared by the board of directors out of
the Company’s assets legally available therefore, so long as all accrued dividends on then
outstanding Series A and Series C Preferred stock have been paid or declared and set apart,

Redemption

Each share of Series A and Series C Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on September |, 2012,
if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shareholders of Scries A and Series C Preferred.
Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on September 1, 2012 if approved
by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A and Series C Preferred, voting as a single class,
and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B and Series B-1 Prefetred,
voting as a single class.
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Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annwval installments calculated vsing the sum
of the original issue prices ($1 per share for Series A and Series B Preferred, and $1.50 for Series C
and Series B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.

Conversion Rights

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1 and Series C Preferred stock is convertible at any time,
at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of Series A,
Series B, Series B-1, and Series C converts automatically upen a qualified public offering. Upon
such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becornes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows: (a)
first, to the helders of Series A and Series C Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their
original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past dividends,
combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b) second, to the holders of Series B and Series
B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equat to their criginal share purchase prices, plus any
accrued and vnpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations,
and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Series A Preferred Stock and
Series C Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A
and Series C Preferred Stock shall have received, in total including the payment under (a) above, an
amount equal to three (3) times the Series A or Series C original issue price, respectively; and
(d) fourth, to the holders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts.

Voting Rights

Each share of Series A and Series C Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to the number
of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. For various
defined events, Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders vote together as a separate class, In
those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders
must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Series A and Series C Preferred stock is
outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders
vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required {o take any corporate action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can change the number of authorized shares outstanding.
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Other Terms

If Series A and Series C Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared, and no
shares shall be redeemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued Series A and
Series C Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is declared on Series A and
Series C Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the board of
directors.

Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities on a
propoirtionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A or Series C
Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities. Series B
Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Scries A and Series B Preferred stockhotders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockholders who wish to transfer their
shares te a nonpermitted transferee,

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In May 2008, the Company
authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In March 2009, the company authorized an
additional 500,000 shares available for grant. There were 5,400,000 and 4,900,000 shares available for
grant as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP,

{a)

Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
pricc at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% afier one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December31, 2009 and 2008 included $13,271 and $10,111, respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2009, there was 320,735 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximatcly four years. At December 31, 2009, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was [.87 years.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock optien plan:

Year ended December 31
2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards price
Ouistanding at beginning of
year 1,061,692 % 0.14 838,355 § 0.14
Granted 195,000 0.15 550,000 0.15
Exercised (208,751) 0.14 {314,892) 0.15
Cancelled {31,875) 0.11 (11,771} .14
Qutstanding at end of year 1,016,066 §$ 0.14 1,061,692 § 0.14
Awards exercisable at
year-end 412941 % 0.14 245432 % 0.13
Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2007 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and ather plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair

market value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $41,825 in 2009 and $64,741 in 2008. The

following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2009 2008
Outstanding balance at beginning of year $ 3,401,558 3,401,558
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Forfeited — —
Repurchase — —
Balance at December 31, 2009 ) 3,401,558 3,401,558
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U.S, RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,2009 and 2008

The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2009 2008
Outstanding balance at beginning of year L 1,384,334 2,331,595
Granted — —
Vested (743,212) (947,261}
Forfeited — o
Repurchase — —
Balance at December 31, 2009 by 641,122 1,384,334

At December 31, 2009, 2,760,436 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested, As of
December 31, 2009, there was approximately $51,379 of total unrecognized compensation costs
refated to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately two years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for cach of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 27 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of our centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical director services
to the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns inferests
in centers as co-owners with us, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests in
competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a period of time beyond expiration of the
correspending medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 20 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center. Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $14 million at December 31, 2009, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2009 and 2008, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.4 million and $2.4 million, respectively.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIIMARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company or received as partial compensation under a medical director agreement.
Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity interests in entities that operate the Company’s
dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to us and no more
favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in amm’s-length bargaining between

independent parties,

The Company has on¢ promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest helder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $250,000 and $375,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual installments from May 1, 2006
through May 1, 2011, The obligations pursuant to these notes are subordinated in terms of repayment to the
Company’s obligations under the CIT Credit Agreement (see note 6).

The Company also has another promissory note obligation owed to another noncontrolling intercst holder.
The amount cutstanding on this note was $0 and $39,440 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The note was paid off in 2009. The note bore interest at 5% per annum and was subordinated in terms of
repayment to the Company’s obligations under the CIT Credit Agreement (see note 6).

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $293,101 and $496,059, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $108,333 and $50,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company purchased CRC in September 2008 (see nate 3). Three executives of the Company owned a
majority interest in CRC prior to the acquisition.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’'s dialysis operations are subject to extensive federal, state, and Jocal government
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality heaithcare for patients, maintenance of
proper owmership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to povernment and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in varipus federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,

27 (Continued)

ATTACHMENT 39

209




(12)

(13)

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Qur dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by state
authorities. The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally
referred to as the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, ameng other things, offer,
solicit, make or receive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment.
The federal False Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a
false or fraudulent claim for payment to the federal government. Another federal law, commonly refeered
to as the “Stark Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to
entities with which the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions
relating to the privacy of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular
healthcare provider. Congress, states and regulatory agencies ¢continue to consider modifications to federal
and state healthcare laws, The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject ta various state hazardous waste
and nonhazardous medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from gevernment healthcare programs, and
other civil or ¢riminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable govemment laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to
contribute a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January I, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $391,053 and $365,496.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2009 or 2008,

Commitments and Contingencics

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and generat liability claims.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

On February 15, 2007, the holders of the subordinated note referenced in note & brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounis due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd. (Rencare} conceming accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff’s claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain liabilities. A
trial was held n November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. An appeal is pending and the parties are awaiting a ruling from the appellant
court. At this time, the Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resolution of our appeal. In
addition to the judgment, the Company incurred legal and other professional fees related to this litigation.
These expenses aggregated $286,647 and $1,219,203 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are¢ in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners' discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (see note 4).

The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2009, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the

following:

2010 L 5,827,058
2011 5,260,414
2012 5,109,728
2013 4,696,231
2014 3,658,621
Thereafter 9,440,090

Rent expense was $6,290,202 and $3,011,653 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively,

Subsequent Event

On April 14, 2010, a subsidiary of the company, entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Dialysis
Corporation of America, Inc. (DCA). Under the terms of the agreement, USRC, through a subsidiary, will
commence a tender offer for all the outstanding common shares of DCA for $11.25 per share in cash,
followed by a merger to acquire all remaining outstanding DCA shares at the same cash price paid in the
tender offer. The transaction is valued at approximately $112 million. DCA provides cutpatient dialysis,
in-hospital dialysis, acute and at home dialysis services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina and Virginia, The Company has received a commitment letter providing
fully committed debt financing in connection with the transaction from Royal Bank of Canada and equity
financing from certain of its existing shareholders.
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A NOEMNITY Lecsos heraby somes bo indarrily mrd hokd Lecesor hanmiess fon &0 slter-tex bacis) fom ond agains! smy and s doime, bises, Bbilns
MW Mwwlmmwmmmmummwmymummawh
-] M)-ri.mgad. arnmymmmdm wmmmwnr’ drect) mm._, Iomont, incixing,

withool B2t \‘fw A ush, storape,

Hon, cornitian, met repatm«mmﬂmumswwmmmmmmdmmmmam
afpemaggh'dmwwbm whsither arizing undar i dociring of eivicd KabiRy. by op of faw e, o 0 givg Lezcor prompl notice of
#ny such ciaim or Eabioty.

9. ASSIGNMENT. .lnm’muyndlwlﬂimmwﬂthhMMwﬂWMJMWmmudehmm
foticn 1 o e corasnt of Lassoo. LeKS0e prsns ndt & assort sgaiast ey 5signod of Lexsor ony cololl, clein, Lezsas
may bave agalst Lossor or any persan other Shan such EsSigoeg. mmwltmmmummmm & wilk poy 08
ot ot othee payrronts paysbie e sech Si 2o cuch pxaignee or a8 nstn qmwmmkmﬁedhmmmm
Lasaw, An pszignee of Loty shall heve oll dghts of Losaor under the appicabit Leste, 1o O ¢xiont assignod,
incopondontly of LEXSOr or ary pignes with respect 1 afver ko ases mmywmmwummhmma
miorpnCos In this Vaster Laase (o Lesor sholl imcludy soch 8ssimee.
10 EHAPKMENT PERSONALTY, The Squinmant shal ol p J g of T2 sitnchmen? 1o really, and Lossse wgross io take such Bction
uhaxpmsanwbomwylaMmeMmﬂumManuamﬂdbahﬂmmwﬂy lwmludby
Lozsor with reensct 10 any Kom of the Eguipment, Lessod o X and dollver iy Laxear weivers of inforest or Sioms In recordiatls form, sodisfaciony fo

Frckirr o poezons cheiming sty hionost in tho e proporty on o 11 which sich e of the Snedgment i instakad o located.
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pareonndd, usn, maintain, eoslr, mod‘ly(lommwmmm It el iy it prudent practices (Bt in 00 event Jess han e e
X mn»ﬂmtemeemimm Wm«mwnmmmmummswmmwsmmmmm
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Bl worikdng orgior oy when origioslly mcoived by Lestes, ondinsey woar snd lesr axcepten and il kanish and replace ol parts of e Equipment &3 mey ST
mnmmnemummm.mmammumum 21 &5 exponso. mmusmmamw
¢ rocuaied by e, Losses may, o8 sk codl and axponsa, ke eny modficattres b the Equiormnl, proviced ot
mﬂjmmmmmmhmsﬂpﬂsmmwmmmmuﬂymamm&dm
mm{cjmdawmmnmmemdwmmmmm AS perts, modicationss pnd
fgrovements jo i Equipment shal, when o ey, iho propedy of Lozsor nd part of the Equdpment for of Pioviiod,
mwmuwwwmrmﬂwm bemdath:w-uydmawhm’ it Wy Fom such 4
shall by mpaived prior ko e rotur of the Eqpipmant ke tha Lo, m@wmmummdmm mmmmm
consent
$2. LOSS OR DAMACE, mmwmbmwmwanymmmaﬂﬁwwmdwmmtm vk shalf continm
Al oo and effact ummmwnmmmts)m,so:mmuw g ol stokon of d ond of the
clrurnsinces and extond of cuch damage, i the event eny dom of Equipmend shol b yedl, demuged bayond rmpel o sendersd
mnmmumumeanMdmamdmmaWmmwuym.mmnm
-y ey denard by Lossar, #n st oqual o e greetor of B foir markal valun of xuct Borms or the Lessor's Lags et Oefinod it paragrosn 18
. Upar peymsat of such omoind (0 Lassor, sach Moo shall bacoma b broparly of Lassze. Lessor wil ranchr 1o Loazss, withool rocoiess of werranty, ll‘d
meahmmwhmmmmmmmalmmmmwmmummmmm
. Losses shall pay any wens and yso bums gy on £uch fransher. Any i fradt ezl be ol 0 Lecoor end
mntmmmmmmmwumﬂmmym Wbmemrmcﬁ; ¢ i d; and axch G0 C1 ba
repalnd, Lesses Ehat, st 83 oxporso, promptly sffoc! suc repoies 4% Lacsor sholl ceen with prograph’ 11 above, F of
Inswancy shalk ba pakl b Lessor with mSpact io such I e Eqdp mmmmmum mmcdm«mhnmpalraf
0 Equlproeest by paymant by Lexsor diroclly o M. parly comploliog o opais, or I the mimburseenont of Lgssos oy the cost of such fopala; provided,
however, that Lassor shal hivvs no cbiigation i make such poymont oF any pavt Memo! Ll recoipt of Such’ svideoce as Lexsor ehal deemn satisfrciy that
SHCh rapais have boon compleled aod furthar providiod that Lestor may ppply such proaceds 10 e peyrment of By reok o clfier sin dug o (o become dos
rmrmmrmmmmmmmwmmmmmmmwwuwwmwmmmm«m«
o, would becomn an Eveed of Defad,
13 INSURANCE. Lactew sholl obdrin ond misintain on or with respoot o the Gulpment st B own o) coamyp fres pensoent Enblily inswronce
inxunng agninst By kor Doy ey, pnd praporty o nif o it Kk of $1 aion comblned! inghe &1 per o (0] phyrsical
inmaring egminct ioxs o danmde & ihe Equir ammmwmmummdmw mnoemaibnﬁatm
with p cacticals of in % 9 et i of a policy or polcias 1o Loszee b st et Iho mivdmom Ay roquined horala rmarsihg Lassor 15 an
Mmm&mmeuthmmmm Eavh such policy shak be it cuch Jorm and wilh
outh Izurons 85 may be eatistaatony ke Loesor, and stiglf gontiln a chiuse spaciying thet no wifion or mimppsentation by Lezsae chid imictile snch polcy
&hd 8 chyirse requiring the insoror o gV 10 Lossor of deas? My (30} dhay peior weiteer notice of {T) 1 cancekation of pon-renewal of gt polcy of (F) sy

mmmmwmmfmmwuuxmmmmh in Jo the podoy raquirements steled in this parograph; and
tan (10) doys prior nolioo of for fion ofp Lessos shalf gakver, mmumymmmhnmwhhmm
mmm«mmmdmmwm Lastss hereby a334gn3 fo Leasor the p s of al uch and directs

py FSUred o make payments Gtlly e Lessor. Lessor sho¥ be under nd dily b ascorten the exdstonco of or to examine any sudh poloy or o odise Lassoe

; mmwwmmmmmmm

14, RETURN OF THE ECUPMENT, L&mmm&mumﬂumafﬂ‘usmww Leszoa wit inmodistaly delivar s Equlpmont 10 and o ’

" she euannar designatod by the Leswor i1 ihe same condition #3 whert dolivored (o Lexsne fuly capebio of pork o Jor wiiich it was originay

or y. arad (@7 & appicatie & or parits trecessavy Kor i opomting for i3 indehoed purpoEes s 1o coinply with ab specTications and gl

.. e
il such maderials witt be untiamoged pnd conleh s pages. Upon Lessor's equest, Loxsee shall, of Loxoon's soke xporees, provide siorogs scoopiails ko

Whamuwbwmnmmmummmwgumamn o Equipmont, including tisplay sng wEon of
the Equi or inssees, mmmmmmymwmmmammmkmm

15 ADD@TDNALAGTION:EG’EVSE& mmwum.mm»wmmmmmmm«mu

may reguest in ovdior o carry out inore effactivedy the iitant and purpose of s Lease, mmmmmd j! tatnmronts to

mwmammmnmmmmﬁ Cogks or etfrr o, memmcﬂ.mwk

-mutnbacmormmf‘ X withoud the gigriaies of Lassew or Digned by Lassor or oy #35kmoo of Losaor 88

ottomey-in-fat for Lassee. memm.ewa power of atimey in Lessea’s namo, to snply for a codtiticaly of Ea o arry #om of Epalpment thel
s roguined o be 2800 urxdor o kaws Of sy frtschclion whams mmnwwummnwmmmmemwmdb

" romodiay upon en Bvant of Dalaol by Lessen ondar iz Lese. Lossoe asinomiaigos it Losoor may incur oul-glnociod costy sed sxponzes i cornecion
-mmmwwmmww o py {or roimburse Lazsor ford e roXxsanstis costs end axparaes rolsted o fa) Sng

o) any lithe oad bor Searched with reapat 1o s Ladwy snd the Equiprant. mmmmymnphm
mmhmul.em m(mmmmmmnmmmmdmmunmmd s obfigation
herouncar Lossoe Wit do whattver may be ¥ fo have o of the infovest of Lozor 8nd sny pssionee of Lessor in dve Eguiproat molod o sy
“corificate of e iotaling fo the Equipmant and will dediver seid certiicate to Lessor. i Lasson fails io povionn or comyply with 2y of ¥3 sgieements, Lossor may
pmrwmwmw-gmhhmmewhwmmnm mmmﬂofmymmmm:ﬁum

o with suoh o ihor with Edores thoraos et tha rate pr Dbelow, shad be de i ot by Lvssoe
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17, DEFAIRT. Eeth of the fallowing svents shel cor=fiytn s Evarrt of DefsiR” hermunder: (1) Lessnd shal fal i pey when doe ey incasment of Fenm

ronil, basic ront o any oer amount (o haoondy; fb} pery cortkicads, rink o irancial o credl infomation hexeinkne o
- iroeoador mady or fuiched by or on befiel of {dxeas wdemydMsmmm 2 lpve becn talsa or misiceding in eny
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thaodarl.gmrmtessmfdjtomwwmdmmwwmymdtmimbnmwmwmmuam
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shaff ogour under any othor abiigation Lessse or sny guaranior of Lasses’s 0bigotions henoundor pwes io Lassar, {T) &n event of telauk shal ocor wxdes any
Iobinnoss Losson may now oF haredfter twe fo any offisle of Lessor or () Lessan, or any Quaraolyr of ihix Loann sived siuffer et adverse metedal changs
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- Amendment ¢
Masfer Lease

- ‘Weﬂs Famgo Equipment Hname, Inc. (Lessor) snd U.S. Renal Care Home Tharaplas LLC ("Lasses”) hereby
amond the Master Leass Number 289260 datod as of November 2, 2010 (the “Lease”) as follows:

1. Section &’a}{vi) s amendad by deloting it and repiacing it in its entirely wilh the foflowing: “keop
accurala and complats rocords pertaining to Bormower's business and finoncial condiion and submi
it Lendar such quarterdy and annual roports conoemfng Bomower's busmess and fnancial conditicn
Lendermay from time to time masonably roquost”

2. . Saction 15 is amended by replacing words “Lassee will promptly execude and doliver lo Lassor” with
“Lessae will execite and doliver fo Lessor within ten {10) days of Lessor's roquest”

"3 Sectlon 17(a) Is amended by inserting *within (5) five business days of before the words "whond due”.
' 4. Saection 17{c) ks amended by deleting “tan (10) calendar days® and replacing # with “20 catendar days”.

8 Section 17{e) Is emonded by lnserﬂng “and,- ¥ such petition Is involuptary, the same shafl not be
dismissed within 30 calendar days of its filing”

6. Nswdauses(k},(ﬂand{m}amhorebyaddodasaddﬂmalmntsoloe!auﬁin Section 1‘?0”&9 L
© Agreement to road as foliows:

“tk} an svent of défeult shaﬂ occur afler giving effoct fo eny provided éure period, of Lessoo under

. that cerdaln Crod? Agresment dafed as of May 24, 20H0 among Lessee es Bomowar, the
Guaraniors ond Londers identified thoreinBank of Amarica, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and Roya!
Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent and as Coffateral Agent, as such Credit Agrosmant may

- be amended from time lo time (tha “Credit Agreement’); (1) fallure of Lesses to maintain-al all tines
a minfmum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratlo as definod and set forth In the Credit Agreement; ()
faflure to certify in writing fo Lessor within sbdy (60) days of the end of each fiscel quarter as o
those matters perldining to firancial stelements end Evenls ofDefau."l sfafad!nmefomforsam
oefbﬁcalna nftad:edherato as Exhibit A" .

Excopt as modﬂeid herein, the temms and conditions of the Lease ramaln the same and continue in full force and
effect. In the event of g conflict between the tenms of the Lease and this Amendmant, the terms of this
Amendment shall prbvaﬂ.

LESSEE:

U.8. Renal Care Homo Theropies. LLC

_ Rivisef 5 Fanal Care ing amerlioent i ML tv2) [2doe
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i Exhibil A
Tex Anendment to Master Lease dalod as of November 2, 2010

To: Wolls Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc.
733 Marquetie Avenue
Sulle 700
Minneapolis, MN 65402
Alt: Sanior Lending Manager; Healthcare

Re:. Quarfe:fy Compliance Certification of l;'.s. Renal Caro Hom Tharapias, LLC ("Lessee?

’ Thé undorsigned Lessee hersby certifies (b Wells Fargo Equipnient Fingincs, Inc, ("Lessor’) fhat {a) the
financlal statement of Lesses dated as of June 30, 2010, herefofore or concunently herewith defiverod by
Lessee o Lessor, is true and correct, and has been prepared in accordance wilh genérolly sccepled sccounting
principals, and (b} as of the daté hereof, tharv exists no dafaulf or defined Evont of Defaull under any loan
agreement, promissory nols or ofher document In affect with respect lo any credi acoommodstion granied by

Legsor lo Lassee.

Datod: November 2, 2010

* Page2 of2
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MRS 733 Marqotl . ) Amendment to
FANGL) - Master Lease

Wetls Fargo Equipmestt Finance, lnc. (Lessor) and U.S. Ronal Care Home Therapios, LLC (Lesson) hersby
amend the Master Lease Number 288280 dated as of Novernber 2. 2010 [ihe “Lease? a3 foliwvs:

1. Soction &{a)}{v]) is amendad by dolating It and replacing ff in its entirety with the following. “Yeep

. eccurate and complats racords perlaining to Bomower's bushess and finandial condition end submit

to Lender such quarlary and annual reports concarning Borrower's business and fMnancigt condilion
Lender may from e 10 ime-raasonably request™

2 Sccﬂm!Slsamendadbrmpﬁaasg mmwmmmmsmmmww
bssoowﬂaxacu!nanddoﬁwrtotammhrm (10} dsys of Lassor's request”

3 Sowon 17{a)lsaumzdadbyhmﬁ19Wn{s)mwmﬁysormmawdsmnm‘
4." Section 17(c) Is smanded by delsting “ten (19 cafandard‘sys'snd moplacing i with “20 calondar days'”.

"5 Soction 17(e) is amondad by inserting “and, ¥ Such pattion Js hm!unfary the samp shall not be
dismissed within 30 calondar days of s filng”

6. New clouses (%), (am{mjmmbyaddedes additonal Events of Dafoull in Section 17 of the
Agmomerﬁomsdasfoﬂowx -

Twmmdmmmnommwmsﬂadbwmﬁodwmmod ofLo@oomder
that certain Credit Agreemont deted as of July 5, 2006 among Losses as Bormower, the Guarantors
and Lenders Identiffied thereln, CopitaiSource Finance LLC, es Syndicafion Agent; and CIT
Hoslthesdre LLC, as Administrafive Agent and as. Issuing Bank, as such Credit Agroement may be
amendad from Gma to tne; (I} faitvre of Lasseo (o maltain at alf times a minimum Fixad Charge
Coverage Relio (as defined below) of 1.20; (m) fafurs to certlly in wiiling {o Lessor within slxty (60)
days of tha end of each fiscal quartor e lo thoge matlers perlahing to financial statemonts and

* Events of Default stated in tho form for such cerlificetion atfachod horelo as Exitbi A, Fixed
Charge Coverage Rotio” is definad as sel forth i the atlached Exhibt B, without rogand to whithar
aﬂheroﬁbeMoagmommtsfmmwfuchlhs!sﬂafEthBwasmkmkwbsaquadﬁadm
lomunated'

-Except 85 modified herein, motennséndmndﬁonsdmowasemmemthosamammwmmnfmmd

effect. l'n#meverrtofam:ﬂictbetwoonthefamso!ﬂmlaaseand%knmdmm“hetemsorm
Amendmant shalf prevaell,

- Dated: Novempa( 2, 2010

LESSOR:. ) LESSEE: ,
* Wells Fargo Equipinent nanc .8, Remal Cang Home 'I?l&mpes, LLc

U'S Honwl Core b Sumplats by chok o M_doe
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. Wells Fargo Equipraent Finance, inc. Supplement to Master Lease
WL LS 733 Marquetts Aveave, Sulta 700 Agroement of Sale
[IAYHELY MAC V0308-070

Smeapols, BV 55402

" |, tho dits of this Supplemont. Howevar, n that event, no such modifications will be bintling on Lesses uniess and untll Lesses
contalint modificatfons.

Fa
.ﬁﬂmwwl F2,050.00 phss applicedds safes angd uso | Inforim Ford Daily Rae: .014%

Suppiamont Nurmbear 0288280400 dalad & of Novarmbor 2, 2010
o N
- Washar Loate Mumber 288250 ding os of Novomber 2, XHE

T LeSSOF Feserves tho nghl (0 withdraw the tms ol Hhls Suppiement and Isawe 2 ModiTed SUppiomont without notice
to Lesson if Lessor i not in recolpt of o fully executod orglnal or fecsimile of this document within five (5} business days of

af such

axncuras the modifed documont

This iz o Stppiermont ko the Mastor Loase Kentfiod ebove befwean Lossor and Lassee {the “Mester Laase’). Upon the execution and
duhmybylmmdmmcfmwLmhm?wwhmmlmwmbmmbbmm
" Lésaor, B omiprmont described balow Upan the lsmns and condions of this Supphsment and e Maslor Loaso, Afterms and °
condions of tha Masher Loase shal rofnak: in full Koo and effect sxcept o 2o exdont modfrod by this Supploment. This Supplomend

*" ot thg Master Loase a3 & rofafes to this Supplemant are hivoinatter raferod {9 ox the “Lesse”.

Equlpmaert Descripton: .
The Equipment dascribed on Schodufa A sftached herote and rmade o part horeol

Aftor Lossoe signs this Lease, Lazsoo authorizes Lossar to nsort wiy Informmtion or change any inacourats informaticn (such
8¢ the modof year of the Eqidpnant or B sorf2l nsnber or VIN) Jnlo thls Equipment Descripfion.

Equipmont Location: 1311 La Conche Lann, Houston, YX TT054

SUMMARY OF PAYMENT TERMS

Jibal Tor (Monhs) 60 Totd Cost_§1
'Lﬂonm Tl DRsic Rort s:za.sinw_

tax

Mumher of Instafimaots €0 Ciko¥ Dute: Decomber 16, 2010

Advirret Payments: Firsi_ duo on signing this Lease Socurily Dopost, WA

Additiomt Provisions:  Told Finproe Charges: $14,700.03

 End of Term Agreement

. by addition fo paying the Tobul Baxic Ront whon and ay tus undar the Loaso, Lasyes agieos fo pay Lessor $1.00 on the sxpietion
tele of the inftisf torm of the Lanso (e “FAnal Pachaza Paymant}

I 2 mmdmm&mmmmmmmmm the Equiprment shall bo deamed transforrod to

EXPRESS QR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFIGALLY [ISTLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF ABILIYY AND OF FITNESS FOR A
FPARTICLLAR PURPOSE AND ANY UABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR THE
. INABILITY TO UISE THE

EQUIPMENT,

THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE TERMS ON THE ATTACHED PAGE(S).

LWEM&WZ}MMM us Renal Core Home Therapes, tAC,
[laseatom 32010

Rorx Commencement Daba

FPage 1ef2 . SUPSALE CAWNGTT 1010000 1XM KW K00 XHIEY Mt
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3
4.

Fodun K pay the Fingd Purchese Payment whan due shalt conctiufn on “Evend of Dot undor tho Legsa,

Lassos agroes fo pay o sodos and use tares arising on acoourd of tha sa9 of the Eqipment fo Lossoa,

Lossor makss no ropresentaiion with respoct io mmmmmdhohmammbrm Leasa, Lossorwi¥ bogt
mmmammdmmumkwmwm .

Modilention ta Master Lessa; To be cansistant with tiis Supplomony tho Mastor Lease fs amendod s lows:

1.
zZ

mmdmamdmzmmmnaﬁnwhmmm
Tha third contodea of paragraplt 12 covaning y fo the Equipmant & ddod &0 road as folk
in the ovant eny tsm of Equipment shall become lost, stiten, desiroyed, damaged beyand ropak, or mndard

pornanidty urifit for 1S for 87y resson, of ) the evin? of condamnation ¢r seizuny of any fom of Equipment, Lasseo
shad promplly pay Leasor an smound oqual io Lassor'’s Loss &5 dofined in parsgraph 18 with rspoct ta such Kom ot te

.mummmwmmmmmmmmadmammmmmmwdwma

- The sidh sontence of paregraph 12 15 armondod io read “Any instronze or sond, procoody wed shall b cradiiod io

Lesseo's obigation undor Bis paragranh and Lesses shal be entitiod fo any suphe”

Foarograplt 14 8t 23 are dofoted i thokr entvely.

Tho third sonience of paragrapih 15(0) I3 Smoncid o mad Lasses shakl be antiad o any curphss and shafl fmain 1adkp for ary
ooy, .

Clause (8} of the first sordance of peragreph 13 By amondad to mvad o2 flows: (8} comp A f Eabllly i
insoring wmhmmmmwm anhhmmdnmmmmm &t por
QuoterErce. e

Vor. 1109

Fb_gu!d!:m
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| vor Walls Forgo Equipment Finance, Inc. Schedule A
PRAIAEY 733 Marmquete Avernmo

Stfla 700

Menogepolis, M 55402

. Contract Mo, ZEE200-400 dated a5of Hovoembor 2, 2010
Laszon- US Runnf Cara Horre Theraplos, LELC

Equipment Description: Diatysis, Computar snd Gomputer Soft ¥ squipment
togothor with a8 options, aftachments and sccessonas a3 more fully described on the fllowing Vendor invoices
Assal 1D Oezcription Drle ARttClass ID  Vendor IO Chack # Invoics #
10260 Red Pull Tight Lock 1ZH508 EQUIPMENT  METROMEDICAL 7016 70814800
{22.00) FORES3-01
7946 77T
i1z
8189
{261.69)
10259 EPROM for upgrada o CRRT 12M509 EQUIPMENT  FREGENMUISUSA 7179 4485260
10262 1B X 72 Ad). Shot nosD EQUIPMENT INTERMETRO 7BO0 027921
10284 2008 K Diotyshs, Machine 0ZHOMD EQUIPMENT FRESENIUSUSA T958 SHEEIIH
1266 Moo FBO RO Syslam 4 1A 1Y) ECUIPMENT MAR COR TH42 0000159306
10297 BOXL Meter KCT 052610 EQUIPMENT MESA LABS 247 0303636-N

Equipment Orfginadty located at: 1313 La Congcha Lama
Houston, TX TT054
Dated: November 2, 2010

Lassea: ‘ US Ronal Curo Home Theraplos, LLE

By:

Pagatof1
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ATTACHMENT 40

FINANCIAL VIABILITY WAIVER

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources.

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 41

VIABILITY

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources as indicated in Attachment 40.

2i14828-2
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

See Attached Certifications
B. Conditions of Debt Financing
See Attached Certifications

C. Reasonableness of Project Costs

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D F G H
Department Tota!
{lIst below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Fi. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. 5 Cost{

New Mod. New Circ.” Circ.” {AxC) (BxE) {(G+H)

ESRD $150 6,612 $991,800
Contingency
TOTALS $150 65,612 931,800
* Include the percenlage (%) of space for circulalion
D. Projected Operating Costs
Projected Opcerating Costs Total Cost | Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Labor $776,507 9,108 $85.26
Medical supplies $191,879 9,108 $21.07
Medications $416,798 9.108 $45.76
Mcdical Director fees £50,000 9,108 $5.49
Rent $125,628 9.108 $13.79
Management Fee $256,418 9,108 $28.15
Other $268.087 9.108 $26.43
Total Projected Operating Costs* $2,085,318 9,108 $228.95
E. Total Effcct of the Project on Capital Costs
Total
Cost Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Total Effect of the Project on Capital Cost $400,652 9,108 $43.99

2114828-2
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Villa Park, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities

unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By & L LAl f

/

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this Q/g 20 day
of % 2012

hacdooas

Signature of Notary
m\“l!ﬂ!m,
‘i\\\\'; \‘!f\ﬂ]'. " I”/
S\OGLIE ., %,
B " %
3G Yz
= = ¢ =
s ¢ £ =
- 4 —
Z ) o s F
%, ., ARSI §
”’/,, * .“.g‘;:-. \\\\*
%,
Moty
2114828-1

By: /t@ar}t/ %}:}é

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this >4 j?lé}
of X5 2012

P pd bk

Signature of Notary

Whiinsy,
ana ity
R 1‘6“’*3 fr/
V *?

s,

U
0?’

It

AN
.\\\
6’

&ATEU“

NS
3
’4’ - \\\\
””mmum\\\‘

2'3 \\‘\
"’ﬂumum\\\“
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 11l. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing

USRC Villa Park, LLC

In accordance with 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1120.140, ] attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonabie in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could

be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

py =2 St B
/

By:%/%%é

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subsgribed and sworn to me this 2’( r;;y
of , 2012

“hag s

Signature ofNotarx, -
\\\“ “nirin’i}gjf.
& SIEWARF Ty,

% A
,'f” (i mgﬁﬁ{\“\\\

2114828-1

Its; Manager

Notarization:

: S
Subscribed and sworn to me this > 5) day

of 42012
%&mﬂm

Signature of Notary
WM BINy,
Nrewasr s,
YN PR,

(
Z
W Z
-
=
=

R .

%

=

0.0
”-

g,
RS L

S
SN
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Alliance, LLC

In accordance with 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By: 27 ?K/é‘/% By: /M

Its: Manager Its; Manager
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me thisMEa/y Subscribed and sworn to me this ﬂy
okf%, 2012 of fed,, 2012
L 9@0@ 1% g/QﬂwM
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary

Wy

AMNHI
oW Mg, ey,
NN STEWAR ",

SR STE A0,

\p Ny by N Y pu Yo (-
Mot e % SR Puges, 2,
F Zz = ¢ T 2
= . - -~ . =
= + = z s HE
= . = - b » =
z \3 £ z % 1€p s F
= 7 6\- s = e o & OF
%, . ppee & %, e §
%{ L é : 2.7 ':‘20\?\\\!*\\\ ”/;# 1 2—2?—20‘\\3\\\\\\

it HEY
2114828-1
Attachment 42 228

R




ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing
USRC Alliance, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, ] attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

By: ?7 - C/L/% By: ﬁZM

Its: Manager Its: Manager
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this % day Subscribed and sworn to me thisg) § day

of §045 2012 of '{ed~ 2012
e Mood “Srpe Moo

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary N,

Wi N STEW - %

\\\\\\“‘%Ewg"”ff;, R \'g‘ i,--o’.’*?}" %,

\\\ \a's ane R ,,/ \? s ?& UGQ’- 4’1
‘s} c}“.n'{{" Pubz;-.. ’I,/ 3 ."Q ‘Al 'o‘ =
ST W, T g ¢ 1
= - = - y =
£ : 2 i iz
z 3 o & = Z % Vg S OF
- o. \t‘- = '; .o ?EBF -. -
2 % meS S § %, SR §
’1,,, e. g.ﬂ‘l":%'i; & %’fff 2'27'26\%\\\\\\\\

Uy, 2T LTI

2114828-1
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

In accordance with 77 lll. Admin. Code § 1120.140, | attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By:224'—f*——7d

Its: Senior Vice President

Notarization:

. i
Subscribed and sworn to me this day

of e, 2012

e Moo

By: 7/ W

Its: Executive Vice President

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this%ﬁ\a'ay
of % 2012

o Hooh

Signature of Notary WUy,

2114828-1

S stEWAR Yy,

Z . & \‘F-
Z, ", STATE OF o
%, v, DG §
/4? .‘5.2‘1. Q)\\\
Y " R
Mittappar

Signature of Notary s:;‘}\.ﬁ;fbmﬁ%
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

In accordance with 77 1. Admin. Code § 1120.140, [ attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

By: 7 @\;74 BW/' Wﬁ»

Its: Senior Vice President Its: Executive Vice President
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscrlbed and sworn to me this ./ & Subscribed and sworn to me this %
& o, 2012 of W, 2012 ,
i
Signature of Notary \\\\\\_\“g“gmp m, Signature of Notary o ‘\‘:\%:T“é'i:':*"m' .
-@‘w- Bl 2, i
SER Sy,
5 {K " % H .-*Qﬁ %%
e o = z 3 {2
E2 S R £
0 ‘\ § .af ." 6> L] §
Tf\%{{?\ ¢3~ %, ™., ";Exg\ff S §
PG § %, ekl \\‘
FIES My, RSN

)
Sl '-“"“ ””mmm\\\\‘
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ATTACHMENT 43

SAFETY NET IMPACT

This project will result in a positive impact on the ability of other providers and health care
systems to cross-subsidize safety net services. The capacity of hospitals and health systems to
provide safety net and charity care services is impacted by their efficiency in discharging
inpatients and transitioning their care from an inpatient setting to an outpatient setting. As the
availability of outpatient dialysis services becomes more scarce, hospitals are sometimes forced
to delay patient discharges while attempting to procure necessary dialysis services in the
community. This delayed discharge and resuliing increase in length of stay may unnecessarily
consume hospital resources that could otherwise be directed to a patient in need of such
resources. As the proposed project seeks to make additional outpatient dialysis services
available it will help facilitate more timely hospital discharges and will result in greater
opportunities for hospitals to provide additional safety net and charity care services.

With respect to the provision of dialysis services for Charity Care and Medicaid purposes, the
Applicants do not operate facilities within Illinois and, as such, have provided Charity Care and
Medicaid information at the corporate level for U.S. Renal Care Tnc. As such information is
most accurately reported at the treatment level, due to the fact that patients receive multiple
dialysis treatments which may qualify them as one or more patient types depending on their
status at the time of treatment, this information is reported at the treatment level.

21 14828-2
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CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of treatments) 2008 2009 2010 2011
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A N/A
Outpatient 1,075 1,056 1,922 2,305
Total 1,075 1,056 1,922 2,305
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A N/A
Qutpatient $280,941 $281,536 $521,535 $595,473
Total $280,941 $281,536 $521,535 $595,473
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of 2011
treatments) 2008 2005 2010
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A N/A
Qutpatient 14,761 17,967 29,744 40,586
Total 14,761 17,967 29,744 40,586
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A N/A
Qutpatient $3,221,097 $3,956,318 $6,740,875 $9,382,740
Total $3,221,097 $3,956,318 $6,740,875 $9.382.740
21148282
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APPENDIX 1
PATIENT REFERRAL LETTERS

2114828.2
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February 29, 2012
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Mr. Dale Galassie

linois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

My colleague Dr. Martin Kittaka and I are practicing nephrologists at the Elmhurst Clinic. We
are writing in support of the certificate of need application for the proposed U.S. Renal Care
Villa Park Dialysis facility.

We treat patients receiving dialysis at the Fresenius Medical Care Villa Park facility and make
referrals to the same facility. As part of a larger multi-specialty practice, we provide our care in
a coordinated and cooperative fashion, where patients are seen by either Dr. Kittaka or myself
and are not directly attributable to one physician. As a result, in the Appendices to this letter we
present such data in aggregate. Based on our records, in the past three years, we treated 62
patients at the end of 2009, 59 patients at the end of 2010 and 53 patients at the end of 2011, as
reported to the Renal Network. The most recently completed quarter is fourth quarter 2011 and
thus corresponds with the 2011 data. Included as Appendix A is the patient count organized by
year and patient zip code for the years 2009, 2010 and 2011. We anticipate that 10% of our
existing hemodialysis patients are not expected to continue requiring in-center hemodialysis
services within 1 year due to a change in health status.

With respect to new patients referred for dialysis, in the year 2011 we referred 35 patients for
hemodialysis to the Fresenius Medical Care Villa Park facility. Included as Appendix B is a
patient count by zip code of newly referred patients,

Based upon a review of our 509 Pre-ESRD patients that currently are in Chronic Kidney Disease
(CKD) Stage 3, 4, and S5, we anticipate referring 23.5% of those patients, or 120 patients, for
dialysis within 1 to 3 years as demonstrated in Appendix C. Of those patients, we anticipate
referring approximately 40 patients annually, or 120 ESRD patients in total, to the proposed U.S.
Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis for dialysis within 2 years after project completion.

We respectfully ask the Board to approve the U.S. Renal Care Villa Park Dialysis CON
application to provide in center hemodialysis services for this growing ESRD population in
DuPage county. Thank you for your consideration.

We attest to the fact that 1o the best of our knowledge, all the information contained in this letter
is true and correct and that the projected referrals in this document were not used to support any
other CON application.
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Respectfully,

Signature: _/(A"‘ M_%

Name: /"“'J*“—'VQ CZ‘H—J

Title: M
— ==

=

Signature;\/\‘\-‘ \<-\ m
Name: WMl <« =S K\ﬁ@./\ﬁq
Tile: Y SO

SUBSCRIBED and SWO TO before me
this SWlay of XX\ . 2012

e, SN

Notary Public
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APPENDIX A — ESRD PATIENTS BY PATIENT ZIP CODE 2009-2011

ZIP CODE

2009

2010

2011

60005

1

60070

0

60101

11

60104

60106

60108

— P —

60126

.
[

60131

60137

60139

60143

60148

60153

60135

60160

60163

60164

60181

60187

60191

60523

60141

60445

60515

85375

»—-;—r—-—-—-—-cu[\)[\)m-—[\)qm—l[\)t—n

TOTAL

Bi= === | ]w o jw|un o= al—|o|—|un]|=lv o]~

A
Y]
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APPENDIX B - 2011 IN CENTER HEMODIALYSIS REFERRALS BY PATIENT ZIP CODE

ZIP CODE

2011

60070

60101

60104

60106

60108

60126

60130

60131

60137

60148

60153

60155

60163

60164

60181

60189

60523

60526

60563

TOTAL

(L)
LN
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APPENDIX C - ANTICIPATED REFERRALS IN THE ONE TO THREE YEARS

We anticipate a total of 120 patient referrals to ESRD over the next | to 3 years. Two thirds of
these patients, or approximately 40 patients annuaily, will be referred to the U.S. Renal Care
Villa Park Dialysis facility in the two years following project completion.

Z1P CODE

ESRD REFERRALS

60005

60007

60008

60053

60070

60101

—_—
(=3

60104

60106

60108

b | O

60126

—_—
-~

60131

60137

60139

60143

— | D]

60148

3

60153

60154

60155

60156

60160

60162

60163

60164

60165

60171

60172

60176

60181

60187

60138

60189

60191

60302

60304

60440

60504

i |t |t [ | L | bt | et | et | S | et | ot | et | e | A | | s LD e | | | 2
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60515

60521

60523

60525

60526

60532

60542

60544

60644

60651

60653

60707

60954

61920

TOTAL

—
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o
Larivafg Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, ... Page 1 of 2

To mvestors who want 5

o |
mapquest it to retlre comfortably

Trip to:

1213 Butterfield Rd '.If you have a 5500 000 portfollo.

Downers Grova, IL 80515-1032 download the gurda Wnﬂen by FOfbﬂS ', H
7.73 miles / 13 minutes colamnist and money manager Ken : .
Notes Fshers fimm. It's called "The 15—Mmute

“Retirerient Plan.” Evenif yOU. have
_something, else in place right now, it stiff
makes sense to requesl your guadel

USRC Qak Brook Dialysis

——a

:‘-Chck Here to Download Your Guude!

F:sm:n vaamrm :

@ 200 E North Ave, Vllla Park IL 60181 1221

1 Start out gomg west on E Nonh Ave )‘ IL- 54 W toward S Ellsworlh Ave Mgg 0.01 Mi

— e e e e e e 201 Mi TotB]

n @ 2 MakeaUturnat S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave ! IL-64 E. Map 0.4 Mi
If you reach Chatham Ave you've gone about 0.7 mnres too far 0.4 M¥ Total
" o) 3. Take the 2nd right onto 1L-83 § ! Kingery Hwy Continue tp fullow IL-83 S Map 33 Mi
& IL-83 5 is 0.1 miles past N Villa Ave 3.7 Mi Total

if you reach N River Gfen Ave you‘ve gone about 0 1 mites !oo far
m - 4 Merge onto Buttorfie!d Rd /IL-56 W. Map 1 6 MF
5 4 Mr Tota!
" - 5. Tum right to stay on Butterfield Rd / IL-56 W. Map 21 Mi
Butterfield Rd is 0.1 miles past Renaissance Bivd 7.5 Mi Total

.‘f you reach thf- end of Camden Cr you 've gone a Irme tao far

ﬂ 6 Turn Ieft onto Downers Dr. M ap 0. 05 Mi
Downers Dris 0.9 miles past § Faiifield Ave 7.5 Mi Total

Poriilio’s Hef Dogs in Fm!ey Square is on the comer
h' you reach Fm!ey Rd you' 've gone abouf 0 2 mn’es too f’sr

ﬁ 7 Tumn left onto Butterf‘eld Rd 0 2 Mi
Church of Jesus Christ of Lds in Wwdfand Corporate Ciris on the comer 7.7 Mi Total
!f you reach -88 W you‘ve gone abouf 0 3 m:.fes roo far

] 8 1213 BUTTERF[ELD RDis on the nght

if you reach Highland Ave you'va gone ab0ut 0 3 mrfes roo far

Q 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove IL 60515 1032

http:/fwww . mapquest.com/print7a=app.core.f3b6 5128 15281987955 1ad 0} APPE?‘?O%%] 2




Y
_\‘Drivm!g Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, ... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 7.73 miles - about 13 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
thefr content, road condilions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

TSI 515 for $30 in New & Used Sporting Goods
patCh. on Downers Grove Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hlinois 60181 to 3825 Highiand Ave, Downers Grove, ... Page 1 of 2

T6 investors who want

¢ R _
maquQSt i ,to retare comfortably

Trip to: ]
3825 ngh[and Ave . ;‘if }’OU h&\r'e 3 3500 000 pOﬂfO’lO P
Downers Grove, IL 605151552 download the gmde written by Forbes o i‘.
8.15 miles / 14 minutes -'colun'uﬁlst arid.money manager; Ken ...
Notes :'F[Sher s. fm‘l lt.s Called "The 15-Mlnut9
FMC - Downers Grove Dialysis Center Bl Ret'mmem Plan." Even: if you: ha"e Ea :
somethmg else in pface nghi now, it stiil:
: .,,rnakes senSe to request your gu:del
=3 Cl;ck Here to Down!oad Your Guude'

— SRl '. '._‘-‘ n. Wl R Fjsnn I}NMTMTN‘TS

S L L LR

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

1 Start out gcung west onkE North Ave f IL 64 W thward 8 Ellsworth Ave g 0 01 M|
S e e et oo O.OT M Tolal
n e-. 2, Make a U-turn at L Eﬂswurth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-84 E. Mag 0.4 Mi
if you reach Chatham Ave you've gone about 0.1 miles too far 0.4 Mf Total
r) oo 3. Take the 2nd right onto IL-83 S / Kingery Hwy. Continue to follow IL-83S. M Q IIM
IL 83 Sis 0.1 miles past N Villa Ave 3.7 Mi Tofal
if you reach N River G!en Ave you ‘ve gone about 0.1 mn’es too far
ﬁ’ 4. Merge onto Butterfield Rd / IL-56 W. Mg ap ‘ 1.6 Mi
g 5.4 Mi Total
5 Turn right to stay on Butterl"eld Rd { iL-56 W 1.3 Mi
Butterfield Rd is 0.1 miles past Renaissance Bivd 6.7 Mi Total

If you reach the end of Camden Ctyou've gone a liftle too far

- ——

6. Take the Highland Ave ramp. Map 0.2 Mi

e e 6.9 MiTotal
Y 7. Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.06 Mi

e e ot o e e e s e« e e o O MITOM
1? a. Merge ontu H:ghland ﬂwe M_g 1.2 Mi
8.1 Mi Total

M mb S L e e b s e e R e — TR s e % oo cror A e M r m i eyr Semmimm 1 mokh e e e e

9. 3825 HIGHLAND AVE is on thae left. Map

Your deslination is just past Black Oak Dr
If you reach 39ih St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

@ 3825 Highland Ave, Downers Grove, IL 60515-1552

. 2
http:/farww. mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.f3b65128152f89879551a40 %QOQO 12




A
" Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 3825 Highland Ave, Downers Grove, I... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 8.15 miles - about 14 minutes

R
Avete. il
L g g At R TG he2012 Map gt 12INAYTESD, Intarmal [fenms’:

92011 MapQues!, inc. Use of directions and maps is subject 1o the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road condilions or route usabillty. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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G 515 for $30 in New & Used Sporting Goods ,
Patcn@ on Downers Grove Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Iliinois 60181 to 6300 Kingery Hwy, Willowbrook, Illi... Page 1 of2

To investors who want

* un®h
mapquest it
Trip to:

6300 Kingery Hwy
Willowbrook, IL 80527-2248

9.72 miles / 13 minutes '
Notes Fsher s ﬁrm It’s called "Tha 15-Mmute

FMC Dialysis Services of Willowbrook i Rﬁlf&lﬂﬂﬂt Plan' Even ifyou ha\’e ::-‘. X :~ '
= som ethmg elsein place rlght now, it sz‘rﬂ'
E: makes sense to request your gurdel

-:.-z

Clle Here to Download Your Gurde' o

Y Y ,<

Flsu:: Invacmﬂm

*@Wzdﬁ'éiﬁb&i{ Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

s U et e m i m 4

® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave ! IL-64 W toward 8 Ellsworth Ave Map 0. 01 Mn
''''' L 0.01 Mi Total

n 2. Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / 11.-64 E. Map 0.4 Mi
If you reach Chatham Ave you 've gone abour O 1 mnfes foo far 0.4 Mi Total

ﬂ - 3. Take the 2ncl rlght unto IL-83 S/ Klngery Hwy Contlnue to follow IL-83 S p_ 9.3 Mi
iL-83 S is 0.1 miles past N Villa Ave 9.7 Mi Total
.'f you reach N River Gien Ave you've gone about 0.1 mifes toc far

. 4 6300 KINGERY HWY M ap

Your destinalion is 0.3 miles past Knolf Wood Rd
if you reach Americana Dr you ‘ve gone abou!‘ 0.1 miles too far

@ 6300 Klngery Hwy, Wllowbrook IL 80527-2248

e Mimt o lrs mu mme p s oam e s amea s - - Lamea b bhr b o See — aps cme e crmmow— - MR 4 Ui Smiie amma = m o R Mt o mmb 4%t e
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 te 6300 Kingery Hwy, Willowbrook, IlIli... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 9.72 miles - about 13 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc, Use of directions and maps Is subject to the MapQues! Terms of Usa. We make no guarantes of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability, You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

OIS 315 for $30 in New & Used Sporting Goods
PatChf on Burr Ridge Patch Get the Deal!

. 248
http:/Awww mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.f3b65{2815218f9879551ad0 APP%%% 12




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 2400 Wolf Rd, Westchester, Illinois 6... Page 1 of 2

- To investors'who' want

mapquest’ m™

ito retxre comfortably

Trip to: .
2400 Wolf Rd If you: have a 5500 000 portfolxo X
Westchester, IL. 60154-5625 -dowmoad me guzde wntten .by- Forbes
7.76 miles / 13 minutes . columnist a“d mo“e!f maria "
Notes ;’Fnshers firtn; If's called "Th‘, 15—Mmut9
FMC - Westchester - _Retlrement Plan. Even if you have |

= 'somethlng elsein: place rlght now, it stilf-

% makes sense to request your guudal

%ﬁ .Cllck Here to Download Your Gu:de'

i_r

l ,a‘%n F:mﬂl IWMTM)N’I‘&

@ 200 E North Ave Villa Park It 60181 1221

1. Start out going west on orth Ave 4 towar WO Ave ap
. Strt ut EN !IL-B w dSEll rth 001M!
e . Bt M i Total
n @ 2. Make a U-turn at § Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave /IL- 64 E M ap 0.4 Mi
If you reach Chatham Ave you've gone abouf 0,1 milas too far 0.4 Mr Total
ﬂ Pl 3. Taka the 2nd right onto IL-83 5 / Kingery Hwy. Conlinue to follow IL-83 8. Map 4.1 Mi
w iL-83 8§ is 0.1 miles past N Viila Ave 4.6 Mi Total

If you reach N River Glen Ave you've gone about 0 1 mn'es too far

ﬁ 4, Turn left onto W 22nd St. M ap 2 9 I‘.‘Ii
W 22nd Sf is 0 2 m.-res pasf Hodges Rd 7 5 Mf Tofar
'.’ 5 Tum right onto Wolf Rd 1§ Wolf Rd Cuntmue to foliow Wolf Rd Mag 0 3 Mi
Arby's is on the comer 7.8 Mi Total

h’ you are on Cermak Rd and reach Mandef Ave you've gone a !:rﬂe too far

ﬁ 2400 WOLF RD is on the rlghL an

Your destination is 0.1 miles past Wesfbrook Carporate Ctr
i you reach Windsor Or your've gone a fittle too far

q) 2400 Wolf Rd, Westchester, IL 60154-5625

e LS VU R RGPS S S S

http://www.mapquest. com/print?a=app.core,a8f7a535d6fc1a5791192445 AP%&E&Z
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 2400 Wolf Rd, Westchester, Hlinois 6... Page2of2

Total Travel Estimate: 7.76 miles - about 13 minutes
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62011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of direcfons and maps is subjeci to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
{helr content, road conditions or route usabllity. You assume all risk of use. Miew Tanng of Use

$15 for $30 in New & Used Sporting Goods

I
on La Grange Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, llinois 60181 to 1859 N Neltnor Blvd, West Chicago, 1.. Page 1 of 2

mapquest m>

Trip to:
1859 N Neltnor Bivd
West Chicago, IL 60185-5300

12.35 miles / 19 minutes
Notes

——— ey

i
! Pyit ‘praﬂmlﬂ
|
|

o o "Don't Pay Full Prlce me

@ 200 E North Av; Vilia Park IL 60181 1221

. 1. Starl out going west on E North Ave ! !L-S4 Wtoward S Ellsworth Ave ap 12 2 Mi
_ R _ ) 12.2 Mi Total
ﬁ @ 2. Turn left onto IL-59 / N Neltnor Blvd. Map 0.2mMi
IL-5% is 0.7 miles past Frontage Rd 12.3 Mi Tota!
lf you reach Franc:scan Way you‘ve gone a I.'me too far
| 3. 1859 N NELTNOR BLVD. Map

If you reach Hentage Woods Dr you've gone ebout 0 1 miles too far

9 1859 N Neltnor Blvd, West Chicago, IL 60185- 5900

hitp:/fwww.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.dcbc6addeaf2{99d6bd9 542
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1859 N Neltnor Blvd, West Chicago, I... Page2of2

Total Travel Estimate: 12.35 miles - about 19 minutes
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=
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©2011 MapQuest, inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantea of the accurscy of
thelr contant, road conditions or route usability. You assume all Ask of use, View Terms gf {se

SEIW 530 for a $60 1-Hour Holistic Massage on \
PatCh Wheaton Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1300 S Oak St, West Chicago, Illinois ... Page 1 of 2

mapquest m>

Trip to:
1300 S Qak St
West Chicago, IL 80185-3944

14.35 miles / 24 minutes
Notes

FMC - Central DuPage Py ‘
= .*‘** I D "t Know 52}
% =!‘ s on IJW“
=

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward $ Ellsworth Ave, Map 9.1 Mi

¢ : e e ennann D1 Mi TolE]
‘ 2. Turn slight left. Map 0.08 Mi
0.1 miles past Ethet St 9.2 Mi Total

Gurdeep & Sons Inc is on the comer
ﬁ 3. Tumn left onto County Farm Rd M ap 14 Mi
] e e e e _1O.5 Mi TotA]
" 4. Turn right onto Geneva Rd. Map 1.8 Mi
Geneva Rd is 0.2 miles past Chestnut Lin 12.4 Mi Tolal

Chinese Ho Carryout is on the comer
If you reach Winfield Scott Dr you've gone about 0.2 miles foo far

Mt L ke | i b o e TR T | mmart e B4R S P R Y rashre T iaems =+ Sim o b AR vm e e TR L LR pitebme ¢ b ARSI SR e

1 5. Geneva Rd becomes E Washington St. Map 0.4 Mi
o o o . 12BMiTotal

h @ 6. Turn laft onto S Neltnor Bivd / lL-59 ap 1.3 Mi
S Nefinor Bivd is just past Easton Ave 14.1 Mi Total
I you reach N Oak St you‘ve gone a fftﬁe too far

" 7. Turn right onto Augusta Ave, Mag 0.06 Mi
Augusta Ave is just past Dale Ave 14.2 Mi Toilal
It you reach Daﬂon Ave you ‘ve gone abouf 0.1 m:!es loo far

h 8. Take the 1st left onto S Oak St. Map 0.2 Mi
if you reach Gates Sf you‘ve gone a btﬂe foo far 14.3 Mi Total

] 9. 1300 S OAK ST is on the right. Map

Your desfination is just past Dayton Avs
i you reach E Roosevelt Rd you've gone a little too far

? 1300 S Oak St, West Chicago, IL 60185-3944

PR AL S mrs smmaapm 4 L0 wEl 0 Do e mmmiea AR b sv e boamamre. = S M rm s A rem o imgere o i mrmmsms & tm e e L e g ————
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1300 S Oak St, West Chicago, Iilinois ... Page 2 of2

Total Travel Estimate: 14.35 miles - about 24 minutes

[ L Wy s A e G s B s s
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of direclions and maps i5 subject to the MapQuest Terms of Usa. We make no guarantee of the atcuracy of
thelr cantent, road condifions or route usabilily. You assume all risk of use, View Terms of Use

FaLTMY 530 for a $60 1-Hour Holistic Massage on ,
patCh Wheaton Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, lllinois 60181 to 149 E Irving Park Rd, Streamwood, I1l... Page | of 2

mapquest i~

Trip to:

149 E Irving Park Rd
Streamwood, IL 60107-2850
16.55 miles / 26 minules

Notes
I ]
| |
;
. i
]
: - —.
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181 1221
® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward s Ellsworth Ave, Map 0.01 Mi
— — 0.01 Mi Total
n @ 2. Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave ! IL-64 E.Map 0.5 Mi
If you reach Chatham Ave you've gone about 0.1 miles foo far 0.5 Mi Total
“ foerk 3. Tumn left onto IL-83 N / Kingery Hwy. Continue to foflow IL-83 N. Map 0.8 Mi
j IL-83 N is 0.2 miles past Villa Ave 1.3 Mi Total
if you reach N Rrver Gt'en Ave you've gone a htt‘.‘e roo far
4, Take the I 290 l US 20 / Lake St ramp toward Chicago / Rockford ! Grand A\re 0.2 Mi
o Men ] . . TAMiTotal
7 5. Keep left at the fork in the ramp Magp 0.3 Mi
—_ O 2 L. L. N
? 6 Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map . 0.3 Mi
e s SO . €. 1L .0
ﬁ @ 7. Merge onto |- 290 W toward Rockford Map 5.5 Mi
7.5 Mi Totat
[ > ] 8. Take the Thorndale Ave exit, EXIT 5. Map 0.4Mi
oﬂB OGOt £1. 2. < I
ﬂ 9. Tun left onto Thorndale Ave. Map 0.6 Mi
. S . <-1.( L, .- 1
1 10 Stay straight to go onto Elgin Ohare Expy W, Map 4.2 Mi
et e e e e 128 M Totad
Exn' 11 Take the Irving Park Rd / IL-19 exit toward Springinsguth Rd 0.4 Mi
r’ - 12 Tum nght onto W Innng Park Rd t‘ IL 19 g 34 Mi
It you reach S Springinsguth Rd you've gone about 0 1 mrtes too far 16 5 Mi Total
13. 149 E IRVING PARK RD is on the left. Map
Your destination is 0.1 miles past S Park Ave
if you reach S Bartlett Rd you've gone about 0.2 miles too far
? 149 E Irving Park Rd, Streamwood, IL 60107-2950
. AFPPENDIX 2 265
http:/frwrw . mapquest.com/print7a=app.core.a22f74e206ea86f3¢ 7163696 2/20/2012




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 149 E Irving Park Rd, Streamwood, Ill... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 16.55 miles - about 26 minutes
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®2011 MapQuesi, inc. Use of directions and maps is subjact to the MapQuest Terms of Use, We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or routa usabllity. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

{ P ¢* DEALS $20 for $40 Worth of Children's Shoes on
p atChm Palatine Patch Get the Deall
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Vitla Park, [llinois 60181 to 1156 § Roselle Rd, Schaumburg, Illin... Page | of 3

mapquest m>
Trip to:

1156 S Roselle Rd
Schaumburg, 1L 60193-4072
11.92 miles / 18 minutes

Notes o
@ 200 E North Ave Vllla Park L 60181 1221
1. Start out going west on E North Ave f IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave Mag 004 Mi
I . e en .. 001 Mi Tolal
n @ 2. Make a U-turn at § Elisworth Ave ontc E North Ave JIL-64 E, Map 0.5Mi
!f you raach Chatham Ave you've gone about 0.1 mffes oo far 0 5 M.' Tolal
‘1 . 3. Turn left onto IL-83 N { Kingery Hwy Conhnue ta fo!lnw IL 83 N M_a_lg 0 B Mi
iL-83 N is 0.2 miles pasf Villa Ave 1.3 Mi Total
If you reach N River Glen Ave you've gong a !.-me too far
4. Take the 1-290 / US-20 / Lake St ramp toward Chicago / Rockford / Grand Ave 0.2 Mi
Map 1.4 Mi Tolal
Y 5. Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.3 Mi
— . e . e i . ... 1.8MiTotal
Y B Keep left at the fork in the ramp M ap 0.3 Mi
e . S s e s e eemn v oSO M TOME]
E 7 Merge ontol 290 W toward Rockford, Map 5.5Mi
4 7.5 Mi Total
'__:T 8 Take lhe Thorndale Ava exn EXIT 5. M ap 0.4 Mi
. e e e 7.9 MiTotal
‘1 9. Tumn left onto Thorndale Ave. Map 0.6 Mi
— e e e .. B5 M Total
f 10. Stay straight to go onto Elgin Ohare Expy W. Map 23 M
: e e o m JJOB MiTOMB]
EXIT 11. Take the Roselle Rd exit. Map 0.3 Mi
D et e e e 112 MiTotal
r' 12 Tum rightonto N Roselle Rd I S Roselle Rd Continue to follow N Roselle Rd 0.8 Mi
Map 11.9 Mi Total

First Merit Bank is on the comer
I you reach Efgm Chare Expy w you've gone abou! O 2 mnfes too far

13. 1156 S ROSELLE RD is on the left, M_Q

Your destinaiion is just past W Wise Rd
n' you reach WHartford Dr you‘ve gone abou( 0.7 m.-!es foo far

- PR — mraw ame matan sl e mmmma e e [

hitp://www mapquest.com/print?a=app.core,a22{74e206¢a863671¢3696
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hllinois 60181 to 1156 § Roselle Rd, Schaumburg, Illin... Page2of3

e 1156 S Roselle Rd, Schaumburg, IL 601934072

http://www mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.a22{74¢206ea8613e71c3696 Appﬁﬁ}itﬁz 258




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1156 S Roselle Rd, Schaumburg, Illin... Page 3 of 3

Total Travel Estimate: 11.92 miles - about 18 minutes
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LI 320 for 340 Worth of Children's Shoes on :
patCh~ Palatine Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hlinois 60181 to 3150 W Higgins Rd, Hoffman Estates, ...

mapquest’ >

Trip to:

3150 W Higgins Rd
Hoffman Estates, L 60169-7237

18.30 miles / 27 minutes

Notes e _
; ,mIJDon t'Knuwwlar‘???j 3
: - ~{'Findr0ut msmmﬁl{ﬂ”:f
; -
i
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, iL 60181-1221
an out going west on orth Ave / IL~6 fowa: SWO! ve. Map . i
o 1, St EN A 4 W rd S Ell rth A M 0.01 Mi
e e e e e e e 12001 M TORR]
n @ 2 Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave I |L-64 E. Map 0.5 Mi
If you reach Chatham Ave you've gone about 0.1 miles foo far 0.5 Mi Total
“ @ 3. Turn left onto IL-83 N/ Kingery Hwy. Continue to follow IL-B3 N. Map 0.8 Mi
IL-83 N is 0.2 miles past Villa Ave 1.3 Mi Tolal
if you mach N River Glen Ave ycu ve gone a hm'e foo far
4, Take the 1-290 { US-20 { Lake St ramp toward Chicago ! Rockford H Grand Ave 0.2 Ml
Map 1.4 Mi Total
Y 5. Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.3 Mi
_ 1.8 Mi Total
Y ’ * B, Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.3 Mi
- S e et e ettt e e+ oo = et nrne 2 20 M TolB]
’:1. w7 Merge onto [-290 W toward Rockford, Map 9.1 Mi
v @y 1.1 Mi Tote!
8. Take the H:ggms Rd / IL-72 exlt EXIT 1B toward IL-Sa : Golf Rd ' Woodf‘eld 0.4 Mi
. . Rd. Map 11.5 Mi Total
9. Turn left onto IL-72 W ! nggms Rd M_g 6.7 Mi

4

if you are on E Frontage Rd and reach E Woodfield Rd you've gone about 0.4 mifes
roo far

10 Turn rfght onto Greenspolnt Pky. M g

if you are on W Higgins Rd and reach W Mundhank Rd you've gone about 0.9 miles
tao far

11. Take the 1st left onta W nggins Rd Ma

Career Education Corp is on the comer
i you reach Hasseﬂ Rd you va gone about O 4 mn'es too far

] 12. 3150 w HIGGINS RD is on the nght ap
if you reac:h me end of WH.'ggms Rd you've gone a little too far

@ 3150 W nggms Rd Hoffman Estétes L 60169 7237

http:/fwww.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.a22{74¢206ea863e71c3696

18.2 Mi Total

18.2 Mi Total

0 05 Mi
18.3 Mi Total

APPENDIX 2
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 3150 W Higgins Rd, Hoffiman Estates,... Page 2 of 2

’

Total Travel Estimate: 18.30 miles - about 27 minutes
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©2011 MapQuesl, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Lise, We make no guarantes of the accuracy of
thelr conteni, road conditions or route tsability. You assume afl risk of use. View Terms of Use

YN 320 for $40 Worth of Children’s Shoes on
patCﬁ,@ Palatine Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hlinois 60181 to 1940 Springer Dr, Lombard, 1llinois 6... Page 1 of 2

mapgquest ™
Trip to:
19p40 Springer Dr

Lombard, L 60148-6419
7.35 miles / 15 minutes

Notes .
|
|
‘ |
i !
| . |
@ 200 E North Ave Villa Park IL 60181 1221
1 Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 w tl:mrard S Ellsworth Ave M ap 3 o Mi
e o e e e e e et e eemees e et oo oo e e oo 3O M TR
“ 2. Tumn left onto IL 63/ S Rohlwing Rd, Contlnue to follow IL~ 53 Map 1.1 Mi
IL-53 is 0.1 miles past N Broadview Ave 4.2 Mi Total
ﬁ 3. Turn left onto W St Charles Rd. Map 0.4 Mi
W St Charles Rd is 0.1 miles past W Woodland Ave 4.6 Mi Total
Chicago Ceniral Korean Sda Chr is on the comer
i you are on /IL-53 and reach Chades Ln you ‘ve gone abouf o 8 mﬂes too far
ﬂ 4. Take the 2nd right onto Crescent Blvd Map 0.1 Wi
Crescent Bivd is just past N West Rd 4.7 Mi Total
If you reach N Elizabeth St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far
ﬁ 5. Take the 1st left onto 8 Finley Rd, Map 24 Mi
i i you reach S Glenview Ave you've gone about 0.1 m.'!e.s too far ? 1 Mr Tofaf
ﬂ S Tum right onto Oak Creek Dr. Map 0 1 Ml
Qak Creek Dr is 0.1 miles past Pinebrook Dr 7.3 Mi Total
If you reach Foxworth Bivd you've gone about 0.2 milss too far
ﬂ 7. Take the 1st left onto Springer Dr. Map 0.1 Mi
If you are on Foxworth Blvd and reach S Valiey Rd you've gone about 0.6 miles too 7.4 Mi Total
far
8. 1940 SPRINGER DR is on the right. Map
if you reach Foxworth Bivd you've gone abom O 1 mdes foo far
@ 1940 Sprlnger Dr Lombard fL 60148 6419
. APPI X 2 262
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1940 Springer Dr, Lombard, Illinois 6... Page2cf 2

Total Travel Estimate: 7,35 miles - about 15 minutes

©€2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use, We make no guarantee of the acouracy of
their content, road condilions or route usabillty. You: assume all risk of use, View Terms of Use

LM 530 for a $60 1-Hour Hotistic Massage on
patcn% Glen E"yn Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 520 North Ave, Glendale Heights, 1lli... Page | of 2

mapquest m>
TFrip to:
5290 North Ave

Glendale Heights, IL 60138-3119

4.79 miles / 8 minutes
Noles

Fihd Your Graduating-Class,

! clagsmates:conr

' @ 200 E North Ave, Vila Park, IL 60181-1221

1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward $ Ellsworth Ave, Map 4.8 Mi
4.8 Mi Total

[ ] 2. 520 NORTH AVE is on the right. Map

Your destination is 0,1 mites past Glen Eflyn Rd
I you reach Peart Ave you've gone about 0.2 miles too far

) @ 520 North Ave, Glendale Heights, IL 60139-3119

i DIX 2 264
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 520 North Ave, Glendale Heights, Ili... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 4.79 miles - about B minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subjact to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road condllions or route usabliity. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 820 Biesterfield Rd, Elk Grove Villag... Page1of2

mapquest "

Trip to:

820 Biesterfield Rd

Elk Grove Village, L 60007-7335
9.78 miles / 14 minutes

\Notes
1
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park IL 60181 1221
® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave ! IL 64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave Ma 0.01 Mi
a L o e 0.01 Mi Total
n gr) 2 Make a U-tumn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave | IL-64 E Map 0.5MI
f a‘f you reach Chatham Ave you've gone about 0.7 mf!es too far .5 Mr Tofaf
ﬂ ’3 3 Turn left onto IL-83 N/ Kingery Hwy. Contmue to follow IL-83 N. Map 0 8 Mi
IL-83 N is 0.2 miles past Villa Ave 1.3 Mi Total
.'f you reach N River Glen Ave you ve gcne 8 hme too far
4. Take the 1-290 / US-20 { Lake St ramp toward Chicago ! Rackford / Grand Ave. 0.2 M
Map 1.4 Mi Total
Y 5. Keep left at the fork in the ramp, Map 0.3 Mi
- e e 1B M Tofad
Y 6. Keep left at the fork in the ramp, Map 0.3 Mi
e _ - . . . 2.0 M Total
’.:1. E-'_ 7. Merge onto 1-230 W toward Rockford. Map 6.8 Mi
7554 8.8 Mi Tofal
8. Take the Biesterfield Rcl exit, EXIT 4, toward IL-53 5. Map 0.4 MI
B 9.2 Mi Total_
ﬂ 9. Tum right onto Biesterfield Rd. Map 0.5 Mi
- 9.7 Mj Tola!
n 10. Make a U-turn onto Biesterfield Rd. Map 0.1 Mi
e s ot eeeneeeeemtn e - e o o e o e . 8.8MiToial
] 11 820 BIESTERF!ELD RD is on the rnght Ma
Your destination is 0.1 miles past Alexian Way
If you reach Beisner Rd your've gone a little foo far
Q 820 Biesterfield Rd, Elk Grove Vlllage IL 600077335
. APPENDIX 2
hitp.//www mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.a22{74e206ea86f3e7 13696 212072
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 820 Biesterfield Rd, Elk Grove Villag... Page2of2

Total Travel Estimate; 9.78 miles - about 14 minutes
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©2011 MapQues!, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use, We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, read conditions or route usabliity. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

P DEALS $20 for $40 Worth of Children’s Shoes on
patChﬂ Palatine Patch Get the Deal!
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, [llinois 60181 to [1-38 E, EImhurst,... Page 1 of 2
R q Notes o R
mapguest' m -
Trip to:
I1-38 E : l.
Eimhurst, IL 60126 F
5.67 miles / 9 minutes
Q 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, |L 60181-1221
B . o __—1 Sta_rtM(;Lt going west on E No»r't-f:.;v; IML-64Wtoward N E'l]sw;orth Ave. mg 6.01 Mi
L 0.01 Mi Total
n @ 2. Make a U-tum at § Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-64 E. Map 0.4 Mi
0.4 Mi ?“ota-‘
. 3. Take the 2nd rlght onto IL-83 5/ Kingery Hwy Contmue to foch IL-83 S. Map 3.4 Mi
R ] . S8 MiTotal
@ 4. Merge onto IL-56 E / Butterfield Rd toward IL 38 E f Roosevelt Rd Map 0.5 Mi
’“‘1". . o S M‘{._4Mf'Tofa_n‘_
5 Merge onto IL-38E ! Roosevelt Rd. Map 1.3Mi
’11. 5.7 Mi Total
m 6. IL-38 E. Map
Q 11-38 E, Elmhurst IL 6012641 861540, -87.930687
(Address is approximate)
hitp://www mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.e8bc0c1606a9843020f1 bed8 2292012
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, ilinois 60181 to II-38 E, Elmhurst,... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 5.67 miles - about 9 minutes
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92011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of direclions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guaraniee of the accuracy of
their content, road congditions or route usability, You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 4180 Winnetk... Page I of 2

. & Notes i}
mapq vest it FMC - Rolling Meadows ]
Trip to: =
4180 Winnetka Ave =
Rolling Meadows, IL 60008-1375 é
16.00 miles / 22 minutes =

|

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221
® 1, Start cut going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
0.01 Mi Total
n 2. Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-84 E. Map 0.5 Mi
0.5 Mi Tolal
“ 3. Tum left onto IL-83 N / Kingery Hwy, Continue to follow IL-83 N. Map 0.8 MI
L83 4 1.3 Mi Total
4, Take the |-280 7 US-20 / Lake St ramp toward Chicago / Rockford ! Grand Ave. 0.2 Mi
Map 1.4 Mi Total
Y 5. Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.3 Mi

o o ) 1.8 Mi Total

Y 6. Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.3 Mi
: 2,0 Mi Total
,;i" @ 7. Merge onto |-280 W toward Rockford, Map 10.1 Wi
12.1 Mi Total
1 8. Take 1L-53 N toward Kirchoff Rd / North Suburbs. Map 3.1 Mi
534 15.2 Mi Total
’4:1. 5. Merge onto W Euclid Ave. Map 0.5 Mi
o 15.6 Mi Total
ﬂ 10. Turn right onto Hicks Rd. Map 0.3 Mi
L L 16,0 Mi Total
r’ 11. Turn right onto Winnetka Ave. Map 0.02 Mi
16.0 Mi Tolal

. 12. 4180 WINNETKA AVE Is on the left. Map

9 4180 Winnetka Ave, Rolling Meadows, IL 60008-1375

st "




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 4180 Winnetk... Page2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate; 16.00 miles - about 22 minutes
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€2011 MapQuest, inc. Use of directions and maps s subject 1o the MapQuest Terms of Use. Wa make no guarantee of the accuracy of
thelr centent, road conditions or route usabliity. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use :
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w

~ Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Ilinois 60181 to 17 W Golf Rd... Page 1 of 2

. @ Notes ~
mapqueSt m DSl - Arfington Heights b
Trip to: g

=
17 W Golf Rd
Arlington Heights, I 60005-3905 2=
12.22 miles / 20 minutes &
|
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221
® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
0.01 Mi Tofal
n . 2. Make a U-turn at § Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-84 E. Map 0.5 Mi
0.5 Mi Total
. 3 Tum left nnm IL-83 N I Klngery Hwy Ccntmue to follow IL-83 N. Map 8.2 M
8.6 Mi Total
f 4. Stay straight o go onlo Busse Rd. Map 0.9 Mi
e 9.5 Mi Total
. 5, Turn left onto W Algonquin Rd 7 IL-62. Map ' 2.4 Wi
11.6 Mi Total
6. Tum sharp right onto W Golf Rd / lL-58. Map 0.8 Mi |

12.2 Mi Total

- 7. 17 W GOLF RD is on the right. Map

Q 17 W Golf Rd, Arlington Heights, IL 60005-3805

APPENBIN B ()12 272 ;




Pri~<=ing Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, lllinois 60181 to 17 W Golf Rd... Page 2 of 2

Tot=== Travel Estimate: 12.22 miles - about 20 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1625 Oakton ... Page ! of 2

. @ Notes .
mapquest m Fresenius Medical Care Des Plaines
Trip to;
1625 QOakton Pl

Des Plaines, L 60018-2002
11.86 miles / 20 minutes

@ 200 E North Ave, Vila Park, IL 60181-1221

® 1. Siarl out going west on E North Ave / IL.-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
N e e e e e . . - 0.01 Mi Total _
n 2. Make a U-turn at S Elisworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-64 E, Map 0.5 Mi

34 0.5 Mi Total

h 3. Turn left onto IL-83 N { Kingery Hwy. Continue to follow H.-83 N. Map 8.2Mi
W 8.6 Mi Totai

ﬂ 4. Turn right onto E Higgins Rd / Oakton St / [L-72 { IL-83. Continue to follow 3.2Mi
Oakton St. Map 11.8 Mi Tota/

r' 5. Tum right onto Oakton P{. Map 0.03 Mi

11.9 Mi Total

" 6. 1625 QAKTON PL is on the left. Map

q’ 1625 Oakton PI. Des Plaines, IL 60018-2002

APPENDIX 2
2/27/2012
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, [llinois 60181 to 1625 Qakton ... Page2of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 11.86 miles - about 20 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of direclions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantea of ihe accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Ilinois 60181 to 1201 W Roos... Page 1 of 2

Notes

mapquest m® o

Trip to:

1201 W Roosevelt Rd
Maywood, IL 60153-4046
8.91 miles / 16 minutes

Rilliint i

&

-

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

0.01 Mi

1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map
L :
0.01 Mi Tolal
n 2. Make a U-turn at § Elisworth Ave onlo E North Ave [ IL-64 E. Map 2.4 Mi
f : 2.4 Mi Total
: & 3. Merge onto 1-280 E { Eisenhower Expy E toward [-294-TOLL S f Chicago. Map 58 Mi-
’;11 8.0 Mi Totaf
4, Take the 17th Ave exit, EXIT 19A, Map 0.2 Mi
_‘_ 8.1 Mi Total
1 5. Stay straight to go onto Bataan Dr. Map 0.03 Mi
8.1 Mi Total
" 6. Take the 1st right onto S 17th Ave. Map 0.4 Mi
e e o 8.6 Mi Total
0.3Mi
8.9 Mi Total

h 7. Turn {eft onto W Roosevelt Rd. Map

8. 1201 W ROOSEVELT RD is on the left. Map

Rt




Page 2 of 2

Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1201 W Roos...

Total Travel Estimate: 8.91 miles - about 16 minutes
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*. Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Iilinois 60181 to 1111 Superior... Page 1 of2

mapq UESt' m@ N:I\t:{,:- Melrose Park ‘:
Trip to:

1111 Superior St
Melrose Park, IL 60160-4138
6.70 miles / 17 minutes

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park L 60181-1221

® 1. Start cut going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
e o e 0.01 Mi Total

- 2. Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave fIL-64 E. Map 27 M

- i 2.7 Mi Total

3. Take the US-20 € / Lake St/1-294 N ramp toward Milwaukee. Map 0.z M

. o . e 2.8 Mi Total

Y 4. Keep left at the fork in the ramp. Map 0.04 Mi
— 28 MiTotal

F S, Turn slight right onto W Lake 5t / U5-20 / Ulysses S Grant Memorial Hwy. .6 M

Continue to follow W Lake St. Map 6.5 Mi Tote!

‘ 6. Turn slight left onto Supetior St. Map 0.2 Mi

_ 6.7 Mi Total

- 7. 1411 SUPERIOR ST Is on ihe right. Map

9 1111 Superlor St, Melrose Park IL 60160-4138

AEFENDN T2
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‘ Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hlinois 60181 to 1111 Superior... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 6.70 miles - about 17 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 2601 Harlem ... Page 1 of 2

mapquest 2 e
Trip to:

2601 Harlem Ave
Berwyn, IL 60402-2100

12.96 miles / 23 minutes 5
- ]
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221
. 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
0.07 Mi Total
n @ 2. Make a U-tum at S Elisworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-64 E. Map 2.4 Mi
2.4 Mi Total
’Et % 3. Marge onto 1-290 E / Eisenhower Expy E toward 1-294-TOLL S / Chicago. Map 8.1 Mi
/[ 10.5 Mi Total
4. Take the IL-43 { Harlem Ave exit, EXIT 218, on the left. Map 0.2 Mi
__ e 107 Mi Tolal
l’ @ 5. Turn right ontc Hartem Ave ! S Harlem Ave / IL-43. Continue to follow Harlern 22Mi
Ave/IL-43. Map 12.9 Mi Total
n @ 6. Make a U-turn onto Harlem Ave / 1.-43, Map 0.08 Mi
13.0 Mi Total

n 7. 2601 HARLEM AVE is on the right. Map

@ 2601 Harlem Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402-2100

IR




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, 1llinois 60181 to 2601 Harlem ...

Total Travel Estimate: 42.96 miles - about 23 minutes

Page 2 of 2

82011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps ks subject to the MapQues! Terms of Use. We make no guarantae of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or rouls usabillity. You assume all sk of use. View Terms of Use
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.., Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Iilinois 60181 to 610 S Maple ... Page | of2

' . @ Notes
mapq vest s Oak Park Kidney Centers, LLC B
&3
Trip to: %
610 S Maple Ave =
Oak Park, IL. 60304-1091 =
11.06 miles / 18 minutes k=
[T |
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221
® 1, Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Elisworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
J— 0.01 Mi Total
n 2, Make a U-tum at § Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-64 E. Map 2.4 Mi
2 2.4 Mi Total
: 3. Merge onto 1-290 E / Elsenhower Expy E toward 1-294-TOLL S / Chicago, Map 8.1 Ml
D 10.5 Mi Total
4. Take the IL-43 / Harlem Ave exit, EXIT 21B, on the left. Map 0.2 Mi
_m_ e L 10.7 Mi Tolal _
.‘1 @ §. Tum left onto IL-43 / Harlem Ave / 5 Harlem Ave. Map 0.3 Mi
11.0 Mi Total
ﬂ 6. Turn right onto Monroe 5t. Map 0.05 Mi
______ ) 11.0Mi Total
r’ 7. Tura right onto S Maple Ave. Map 0.01 M
) 11.1 Mi Total
- 8. 610 S MAPLE AVE Is on the left. Map

Qw*sw S Maple Ave, Oak Park, IL 60304-1091
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, lilinois 60181 to 610 S Maple ... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 11.06 miles - about 18 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, 1llinois 60181 to 719 W North ... Page 1 of 2

. @ Notes
mapquest m FMC North Avenue M
Trip to: %
719 W North Ave ==
Melrose Park, IL 60160-1612 ==
6.84 miles / 15 minutes =
—
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

® 1, Start out going west on E North Ave I IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi

G.01 Mi Tolal

n - 2, Make a U-turn at S Elisworth Ave anto E North Ave / [L-64 E. Map 8.8 Mi

B e o o 6.8 Mi Tolal

n - 3. Make a U-turn onto W North Ave / IL-64 W. Ma 0.05Mi

6.8 Mi Total

. 4. 719w NORTH AVE is on the right. Map

Q 719 W North Ave, Melrose Park, 1L 60160-1612
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Iljinois 60181 to 719 W North ... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 6.84 miles - about 15 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 103 Forest Av... Page 1 of 2

. & Netes
mapquest m Fresenius Medical Care River Forest
Trip fo;

103 Forest Ave
River Forest, 1L 60305-2003

10.72 miles / 20 minutes £
—_ !
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221
1. Start out going west on € North Ave / li.-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
@ :
0.01 Mi Total
n @ 2. Make a U-turn at § Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / 1L-64 E. Map 2.4 Mi
2.4 Mi Total
,51. ammea 3. Merge onto 1-290 E / Eisenhower Expy E toward 1-294-TOLL S / Chicago. Map 6.5 Mi
LIS 8.9 Mi Total
4, Take EXIT 20 toward IL-171 / st Ave. Map 0.2 Mi
_ 8.1 Mi Total
1 5, Stay straight to go onto Bataan Dr. Map 0.06 Mi
OO L .. L. 08
ﬂ 6. Take the 1st left onto IL-471/ 5 1st Ave. Map 0.8 Mi
10.6 Mi Toltal
ﬁ 7. Turn right onto Washington Blvd. Map 0.7 Mi

10.6 Mi Tolal

" 8. Turn right onto Forest Ave, Map 0.10 Mi
10.7 Mi Total
. 9, 103 FOREST AVE Is on the left. Map

@ 103 Forest Ave, River Forest, |L 60305-2003

AOPERRIBE2 286




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 103 Forest Av.., Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 10,72 miles - about 20 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Iliinois 60181 to 4701 N Cumb... Page 1 of 2

v L] Notes
mapqueSt m Fresenius Medical Care - Northwest
Trip to:
4701 N Cumberland Ave

Norridge, IL 60708-2905
12.96 miles / 22 minutes

-

e e

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / 1L-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
e 0.01 Mi Total
n 2. Make a U-turn at S Elisworth Ave onto E North Ave f IL-64 E. Map 27T Mi
ﬁ 2.7 Mi Totaf
3. Take the US-20 E / Lake St/ 1-284 N ramp toward Milwaukee. Map 0.2 Mi
2.8 Mi Total
’E' % 4, Merge onto 1-284 N toward Wisconsin {Portions toll). Map 6.8 Mi
1 ‘ 9.6 Mi Total
: sz 5, Merge onto 1-90 E toward Kennedy Expy / Chicago {Porions toll}. Map 19 M
’:11 W 11.4 Mi Tolal
‘?'r"-n 6. Merge onto N Cumberland Ave / IL-171 S via EXIT 79A. Map 1.5 Mi
(714 13.0 Mi Tolel
n 7. Make a U-turn at W Leland Ave onto N Cumberland Ave /iL-171 N, Map 0.0 M
hi7 1 13.0 Mi Total

| 8. 4701 N CUMBERLAND AVE is on the right. Map

@ 4701 N Cumberland Ave, Norridge, IL 60706-2805
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hlinois 60181 to 4701 N Cumb... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 12.96 miles - about 22 minutes
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Driving Dircctions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 7435 W Talco... Page 1 of 2
. @ Notes
mapq uest m Dialysis Management Services =
Trip to: B
7435 W Talcott Ave sl
Chicago, IL 60631-3707 %"
14.02 miles / 23 minutes (]
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa F’ark iL 60181-1221
. 1, Start out going west on E North Ave /IL-64 W toward $ ENsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
e 0.01 Mi Total
n - 2. Make a U-tumn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL-64 E, Map 27T Mi
2.7 Mi Total
3. Take the US-20 E f Lake St/ 1-294 N ramp toward Milwaukee, Map 0.2 Mi
L 2.8 Mi Total
rwm— Merge onto 1-294 N toward Wisconsin (Portions toll}. Map 6.8 Mi
% 9.6 Mi Tolal
: 5. Merge onto {-90 E toward Kennedy Expy / Chicago (Portions toll}. Map 33 Mi
’41 5% 12.9M Total
z’ :fr‘ 6. Take EXIT BA1A toward [L-43 / Harlem Ave. Map 0.2 Mi
i, 13.2 Mi Tolal
1 @ 7. Stay straight to go onto W Higgins Ave / {L-72 E. Map 0.2 Mi
13.3 Mi Total
ﬁ @ 8. Turn left onto N Harlem Ave /IL-43. Map 0.3 Mi
13.6 Mi Total
ﬂ 9. Turn left onto W Talcott Ave. | Map 0.4 Mi
o o . o 14.0 Mi Total
. 10 7435 W TALCOTT AVE is on the left. Ma

Q 7435 W Talcott Ave, Chicago, IL 60631-3707
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, [llinois 60181 to 7435 W Talco... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 14.02 miles - about 23 mintrtes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 733 Madison ...

Notes

Page 1 of 2

mapquest m>

Trip to:

733 Madison St
Qak Park, IL 60302-4419
11.93 miles / 21 minutes

FMC - Qak Park Dialysis Center

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

‘ 1 Start out gomg west on E North Ave 1 IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
et o et e et ot et e - v 001 Mi Total
n - 2, Make a U-tum at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave / IL 64 E. Map 2.4 Mi
2.4 Mi Total

ﬂ % 3. Merge onto 1-290 E / Eisenhower Expy E toward [-294-TOLL S / Chicago. Map 8.1 Mi

A% g 10.5 MF Totaf

4. Take the IL-43 f Harlem Ave exit, EXIT 21B, on the left. Map 0.2 Mi
H 10.7 Mi Total
@ 5. Tum left onto IL-43 / Harlem Ave / 8 Harlem Ave. Map 0.5 Mi

11.2 Mi Total

6. Turn right onto Washington Blvd. Map 0.5 Mi

11.8 Mi Total

7. Tum right onto 5 Oak Park Ave. Map 0.1 Mi

8 Take the 1st Ieft onto Madrson St

P

11.9 Mi Total

0.05 Mi

11.9 Mi Total _

| 9 733 MADISON ST is on the right. Mag

e 733 Madison St, Oak Park IL 60302-4419

I




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 733 Madison ... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 11.93 miies - about 21 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1 Erie Ct, Oak... Page 1 of 2

R @ Notes
maquESt ™M FMC - West Suburban Dialysis Unit =
Trip to: z
1 Erie Ct :
Oak Park, Il 80302-2566
13.69 miles / 23 minutes (=
—
@ 200 E North Ave, Vilia Park, IL 60181-1221
o 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward 3 Ellsworth Ave, Map 0.01 Mi
0.01 Mi Total
n 2. Make a U-turn at S Elisworth Ave onto € North Ave /IL-64 E. Map 24 Mi
2.4 Mi Total
ﬂ:f @ 3. Merge onto 1-290 E / Eisenhower Expy E toward 1-294-TOLL S / Chicago. Map 8.6 Mi
. 12.0 Mi Total
4. Take the Austin Blvd exit, EXIT 23A, on the left. Map 0.3 Mi
_ 12.2 Mi Tolal
ﬁ 5. Tum left onto S Austin Bivd, Map 14Mi
! 13.7 Mi Total
. 6. 1 ERIE CT. Map
Q 1 Erie Ct, Oak Park, IL 60302-2566
AMIPEYEE2
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1 Erie Ct, Qak... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 13.69 miles - about 23 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 7009 W Belm... Page ! of 2

mapquest fi"
Trip to:

7009 W Belmont Ave
Chicago, IL 60634-4533
40.95 miles / 24 minutes

Notes

DaVita - Monteclare Dialysis Center

e

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, L 60181-1221

® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
0.01 Mi Total
n 2. Make a U-+turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave /1L-64 E. Map 7.2M
: 7.2 Mi Total
ﬁ @ 3. Tum jeft onto N st Ave / IL-171. Continue to follow IL-171. Map 2.0 Mi
9.2 Mi Total
" 4, Turn right onto W Belmont Ave. Map 1.8 Mi
11.0 Mi Total

| 5. 7008 W BELMONT AVE is on the right. Map

Q 7009 W Belmont Ave, Chicago, IL 60634-4533
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 70609 W Belm... Page2of2

Total Travel Estimate: 10.95 miles - about 24 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 4800 N Kilpat... Page ! of 2

. @ Notes
mapqueSt ¥4 FMC - North Kilpatrick
Trip to: =
4800 N Kilpatrick Ave
Chicago, IL. 60630-1725
17.47 miles / 28 minutes

@ 200 E North Ave, Vilia Park, IL 60181-1221

@ 1. Start out going west on E North Ave { IL-64 W toward $ Ellsworth Ave, Map 0.01 Mi
I e e D01 Mi Total
n @ 2. Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave /IL.64 E. Map 2.7 Mi
2,7 Mi Tolal
3. Take the US-20 E / Lake St/ 1-294 N ramp toward Milwaukee. Map 0.2 Wi
o 2,8 Mi Total
’it @ 4. Merge onto 1-294 N toward Wisconsin (Portions toll). Map 6.8 Mi
A . 2.6 Mi Tolal
’Et seswe. £ Merge onto 1-90 E toward Kennedy Expy / Chicago (Portions toll). Map 6.5 Mi
ZL 5 16.1 Mi Total
6. Take the Lawrence Ave exit, EXIT 84. Map 0.2 Mi
.~ . . . 16.2 Mi Total
‘ 7. Turn slight left ontc W Lawrence Ave. Map 0.5 M
. — R e e —— e 16.7 Mi Total
ﬁ @ 8. Turn left onto N Cicero Ave / IL-50. Map 0.3 Mi
17.0 Mi Total
ﬂ 8. Tumn sharp right onto N Elston Ave. Map 0.3 Mi
17.3 Mi Tolal
r’ 10. Turn right onte N Kilpatrick Ave. Map 0.2 Mi
. B 17.5 Mi Total -
. 11. 4800 N KILPATRICK AVE is on the right. Map '

. Q 480N Kilpatrick Ave, Chicago, IL 60630-1725

W7y rilY)

298




Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Iilinois 60181 to 4800 N Kilpat... Page 2 of2

Total Travel Estimate: 17.47 miles - about 28 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 3410 W Van ...

Page 1 of 2

15.7 Mi Tolal

8. 3410 W VAN BUREN 5T is on the right. Map

9 3410 W Van Buren St, Chicago, IL 60624-3358

. @ Notes
mapq UeSt m FMC Dialysis Services of Congress Parkway 2y
Trip to: g
3410 W Van Buren St
Chicago, IL 60624-3358 =
15.71 miles / 24 minutes &al|
[—— i
@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221
® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / IL-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi
—_— L 0.01 Mi Total
n 2, Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onio E North Ave /IL-64 E. Map 2.4 Mi
f 2.4 Mi Total
”it % 3. Merge onto 1-290 E / Eisenhower Expy E toward 1-294-TOLL $ / Chicago. Map 12.5 M
14.9 Mi Total
4, Take EXIT 26A toward Independence Bivd. Map 0.1 Mi
— 15.0 Mi Total
t 5. Stay straight to go onto W Harrison St. Map 0.6 Mi
15.6 Mi Tofal
ﬂ 6. Turn left onto S Homan Ave. Map 0.1 Mi
............. — ; o 15.7 Mi Total
7. Take the 2nd left onto W Van Buren St. Map 0.02 Mi

AR 2
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, lllinois 60181 to 3410 W Van ... Page2of2

Total Travel Estimate: 15.71 miles - about 24 minutes
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Hlinois 60181 to 1901 W Harri... Page 1 of 2

. iR Notes
mapquest i Cook County Hospital Dialysis

Trip to:

1901 W Harrison St
Chicago, IL 60612-3714
17.53 miles / 26 minutes

@ 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, IL 60181-1221

® 1. Start out going west on E North Ave / [L-64 W toward S Ellsworth Ave. Map 0.01 Mi

— Q.01 Mi Tolal
n 2, Make a U-turn at S Ellsworth Ave onto E North Ave /IL-64 E. Map 2.4 Mi

: 2.4 M Total

"1. % 3. Merge onto 1-290 E / Eisenhower Expy E toward [-294-TOLL. 5 / Chicago. Map 14.8 Mi

4 17.2 Mi Total

4. Take EXIT 28A toward Damen Ave. Map 0.1 Mi
__h 17.3 Mi Total
1 5. Stay straight to go onto W Congress Pky. Map 0.2Mi
. 17.5 Mi Total

ﬂ 5. Turn right onto S Wolcott Ave. Map 0.06 Mi
L 17.5 Mi Total

r’ 7. Tum right onto W Harrison St. Magp 0.0t MI'
17.5Mi Totat

] 8. 1901 W HARRISON ST is on the left. Map

|

9 1901 W Harrison St, Chicago, IL 60612-3714
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Driving Directions from 200 E North Ave, Villa Park, Illinois 60181 to 1901 W Harri... Page 20f2

Total Travel Estimate: 17.53 miles - about 26 minutes

R ey T |
=Sl

“Hillside i
co} =5

BN
B i 20

©2011 MapQuesi, Inc. Use of direclions and maps is subject lo the MapQuest Terms of Use, We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their cantent, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Termns of Use

AR OB




